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UGI Corporation is a distributor and marketer of energy products and

services. We are a domestic and international distributor of propane. We

also distribute and market natural gas and electricity, and sell related

products and services, in the Middle Atlantic region of the United States.

Propane

Majority-owned AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (NYSE:
APU) is the nation’s largest retail marketer of
propane, delivering nearly 1.2 billion gallons to
more than 1.2 million customers from local-market
distribution locations in 46 states. UGI Corporation
also markets propane in Austria, the Czech Republic,
France, Slovakia and China through its wholly-
owned subsidiary UGI Enterprises, Inc.
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Gas and Electric

Wholly-owned UGI Utilities, Inc. is a local
distributor of natural gas and electricity to nearly
350,000 customers in eastern Pennsylvania. It also
owns interests in electricity generating facilities in
Pennsylvania. Through UGI Enterprises, Inc., UGI
markets natural gas, electricity and heating oil and
provides heating and cooling products and services
to residential, commercial and industrial customers
in the Middle Atlantic region of the United States.



Total Assets (millions)

Electric
$109.0

Domestic Propane
$1,492.2

Natural Gas
$689.1

Other
$183.0

International Propane
$141.1

Year Ended September 30, 2002 2001 2000

Income Statement Data (millions, except per share data)
Revenues $ 2,213.7 $ 2,468.1 $ 1,761.7
EBITDA (a) $ 346.1 $ 334.2 $ 289.6
Operating income $ 252.6 $ 229.0 $ 192.1
Net income $ 75.5 $ 56.5 $ 44.7
Diluted earnings per common share $ 2.70 $ 2.06 $ 1.64

Balance Sheet Data (millions)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 194.3 $ 87.5 $ 93.9
Total assets $ 2,614.4 $ 2,550.2 $ 2,275.8
Capitalization:

Total debt $ 1,331.5 $ 1,363.0 $ 1,250.3
Minority interests in AmeriGas Partners 276.0 246.2 177.1
UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock 20.0 20.0 20.0
Common stockholders’ equity 317.3 255.6 247.2

Total capitalization $ 1,944.8 $ 1,884.8 $ 1,694.6

Common Stock Data

Shares outstanding – end of year (millions) 27.7 27.3 27.0
Return on average common equity 26.4% 22.5% 18.0%
Book value per common share – end of year $ 11.45 $ 9.36 $ 9.15
Dividend rate per common share – end of year $ 1.65 $ 1.60 $ 1.55
Market price of common stock:

High $ 36.76 $ 29.48 $ 24.31
Low $ 25.67 $ 21.38 $ 18.19
Close $ 36.35 $ 27.10 $ 24.25

(a) EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, minority interests, income (loss) from
equity investees and the cumulative effect of accounting changes) should not be considered as an alternative to net income (as an
indicator of operating performance) or as an alternative to cash flow (as a measure of liquidity or ability to service debt obligations)
and is not a measure of performance or financial condition under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
Company’s definition of EBITDA may be different from that used by other companies.

F i n a n c i a l  H i g h l i g h t s
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T o  O u r  S h a r e h o l d e r s :
I am very proud of what we achieved at UGI during Fiscal Year 2002. I am also
delighted to report that our achievements were once again recognized in the market: our
total return to shareholders for the one-year period ended November 30, 2002 was
31.3%, compared to a negative 30.9% return posted by Standard & Poor’s Utility Index.
This marks the third consecutive year in which our total annual return exceeded 20%.

Our employees have an unmistakable and richly deserved sense of pride in having their
efforts so recognized. The “thrill of victory” is a heady experience. It is precisely this
kind of feeling that can transform the momentum gained from a track record of success
into a tradition of success. Yet, this same “heady experience” can be a curse that breeds
complacency. We are conscious of this risk. We are, therefore, redoubling our efforts and
reintensifying our drive to create value for you over the long term.

It is, of course, no accident that your ownership in UGI has been richly rewarded these past
several years. We have long believed that delivering superior results will inevitably lead to
growth in shareholder wealth. We have thus sought to differentiate ourselves from others by
creating a track record of success founded on meeting our financial commitments to you,
which remain to:

• Grow earnings per share between 6 to 10% per year;

• Increase dividends per share 3% annually; and

• Reduce our dividend payout ratio over time to between 50% and 75%.

Since 1998, our earnings per share have grown at a compound annual rate of nearly
22%, the dividend on a share of UGI Common Stock has increased from $1.46 to
$1.65 or more than 3% annually, and our dividend payout ratio has fallen from 120%
to 61%. As we embarked on this journey, we promised to focus our efforts on managing
what is controllable and to have the wisdom to accept what is not. We kept our word
and our business is stronger than ever.

Fiscal Year 2002 was a good year for UGI in more ways than just providing superior
total return to shareholders. Despite winter weather that was significantly warmer than
normal, your Company accomplished the following:

• Our earnings grew by 34% to $75.5 million, and earnings per share increased
by 31% to $2.70 from $2.06 the prior year;

• We ended the year with $114 million of cash available for long-term
investment;

• We invested $35.9 million in our core utility business, grew our gas utility
residential heating customer base by over 4% and improved earnings in our
electric business;

• We successfully integrated Columbia Energy’s propane business into AmeriGas
and experienced notable improvement in AmeriGas’ overall customer focus
efforts and in its PPX® grill cylinder exchange business;

• Our international propane businesses contributed 27 cents in earnings per
share compared to a loss of 16 cents last year;

• Our GASMARK® and HVAC energy services businesses continued to grow
and show significant improvements in earnings.
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Lon R. Greenberg

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

December 17, 2002

In many ways, our success in 2002 was attributable to our commitment to our strategy
and our focus on execution. Also contributing to our progress was our ability to capital-
ize on opportunities arising from the changing complexion of the energy industry over
the last few years.

We have assembled a group of energy products and services businesses, with each busi-
ness independent enough to stand on its own while at the same time enhancing the
strength of the others. With clear strategic choices, operational excellence and financial
discipline, we have returned to the reliable earnings and cash flow growth that share-
holders expect from a balanced growth and income investment vehicle. Now that our
financial foundation is strong and we have gained some momentum, what comes next?

We enter Fiscal Year 2003 excited and optimistic about our future. Like all companies,
we have challenges ahead, but we also have the team in place to take advantage of our
opportunities. I have long believed that in great companies, people do more than accept
change…they embrace it. We are committed to ensuring that we squarely face the
changing realities of the energy marketplace and make whatever refinements to our
direction that are necessary.

We will be on the lookout for opportunities to grow further. While growth sometimes
comes in dramatic fashion like the acquisition of Columbia Propane, it also often occurs
in smaller steps through careful design and implementation. Our efforts will be directed
towards pursuing those growth opportunities that permit us to capitalize on our existing
network of assets and intellectual capital. The year ahead will also be one of continued
focus, refinement and execution.

Last year I stated that common sense precluded me from promising you annual total
returns like the 40% we delivered in Fiscal Year 2001. While we once again delivered
outstanding total returns to you during Fiscal Year 2002, we cannot control how the
market views our securities at any given time. There are times when the market is
favorably disposed toward value-oriented growth and income investments, and times
when it is not. We cannot manage to what is in fashion. Instead, we will keep our
attention directed toward seizing the opportunities before us, while we maintain our
focus on execution. We remain convinced that over the long term the market will
reward companies that distinguish themselves through performance.

I would like to express my gratitude to our Board of Directors for the excellent leader-
ship they have provided. We are fortunate to have a Board comprised of individuals with
diverse backgrounds and skills and who are willing to provide their insights on the wide
variety of issues we face in setting the direction of the Company. I also want to recognize
in particular the many employees of UGI whose daily efforts permit us to deliver on
our promises. Each of you deserves a hearty “thanks” for your commitment to winning.
We have a promising future and our greatest achievements are yet to come.
I look forward to reporting our continuing progress to you in the future.
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Our AmeriGas Propane

subsidiary serves customers

from coast to coast. Clean-

burning propane gas is used

in dozens of residential and

commercial applications, from

home heating to powering

over-the-road vehicles.

The combination of

AmeriGas and Columbia

Propane expands our

national presence,

enhances our supply and

distribution infrastructure

and allows us to serve

customers better.

D o m e s t i c  P r o p a n e
Fiscal Year 2002 was filled with many accomplishments for AmeriGas, as

we used our operating strengths to overcome that which we cannot control –

the weather.

Columbia Propane Acquisition. One of AmeriGas’ core growth strategies

is to acquire high-quality propane businesses. Since our founding in 1959,

we have grown from a three-location propane distributor into the largest retail

propane marketer in the United States, with approximately 650 locations.

Throughout 2002, we worked to integrate the operations of Columbia

Propane, acquired at the end of fiscal 2001. As a result of this combination,

AmeriGas gained locations in 86 new markets and substantially increased

customer density in nearly 100 additional markets. The integration process

was completed ahead of schedule and the benefits of the combination are

exceeding our expectations.

PPX® Cylinder Exchange. Nearly 16,000 home centers, supermarkets and

convenience stores now carry PPX® brand cylinders, most commonly used

for barbecue grills. Major distributors include Home Depot, Wal-Mart,

Lowe’s and Albertson’s. The cylinder exchange business is an especially attrac-

tive growth initiative because sales occur mainly in our slower summer season.

During 2002 we experienced PPX® volume growth of more than 60%. We

will continue to grow the PPX® business by adding new retail distribution

points and through acquisitions.

National Accounts Program. Our extensive national coverage enables us

to offer services that few other propane retailers can provide. Our National

Accounts Program serves large, multi-location propane users who benefit

from value-added services like summary billing, centralized account manage-

ment and fuel consumption forecasting. We added 1,100 National Account

locations in 2002 and our volume growth rate exceeded 8%. We continue to

add many new locations from existing customers, a testament to our strong

service ethic and competitive pricing.

Continuous Improvement Initiatives. We are working on new operating

processes and technologies that improve the way we do business, especially

as they relate to customer satisfaction and retention. In 2002, we selectively

added sales staff in certain test markets, which resulted in substantially

improved performance in customer growth and retention and ancillary sales.

We expect to further strengthen our sales team in 2003. Other pilot programs
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We have investments in

propane operations in four

European countries and

China. Antargaz is one of the

largest distributors in France.

using centralized truck dispatching, innovative call center approaches and

state-of-the-art technology will be expanded as they demonstrate improve-

ments in productivity and value to our customers.

No matter what we change at AmeriGas, we will never sacrifice safety.

AmeriGas is an industry leader in safety because of our training programs and the

commitment of our employees. A culture of safety pervades everything we do.

Purchasing and Supply Strategies. In recent years, we have leveraged our

scale to gain efficiencies in purchasing. In 2002, we negotiated single-supplier

agreements for the purchase of certain items, and we have consolidated many of

our other purchases through a group of approved vendors. The result has been

better service, reduction of paperwork and significant savings in transaction

costs. We also improved our vehicle preventive maintenance program so we can

better track costs and ensure the safety, reliability and longevity of our fleet.

We continue to strengthen our relationships with key propane suppliers

and transporters who help us ensure stable, reliable delivery capability at

competitive prices. We also monitor the financial stability of our propane

suppliers to ensure product availability for our customers. Our extensive stor-

age and distribution network of terminals, rail cars and tanker trucks enable

us to transport propane to our local market distribution locations using the

most cost-effective method. This network has been further enhanced through

our combination with Columbia Propane.

Fueling Comfortable, More Productive Lives. AmeriGas is committed

to remaining America’s propane supplier of choice. We are not just the

nation’s largest supplier. We have the most extensive supply and distribution

network and highly dedicated delivery and service professionals. We do not

just deliver propane, we fuel comfortable, more productive lives.

I n t e r n a t i o n a l  P r o p a n e
Several years ago, we began to look for opportunities to leverage our propane

expertise in foreign markets that have the potential to contribute to our

growth strategy. In 2002, we demonstrated the effectiveness of that plan.

Antargaz. Last year we acquired a 20% stake in the French distributor

Antargaz, one of the largest propane marketers in France, which sells more

than 350 million gallons annually. In 2002, we worked with our skilled part-

ners to develop a strong local management team and create a supply group to

focus on reducing the purchased cost of product. The efforts of employees, in

Propane distribution

is one of our core

competencies. We

expect our domestic

and international

propane businesses to

contribute to meeting

our financial goals.
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UGI’s natural gas utility had a

record-breaking year in

residential customer growth.

Strong housing starts in our

service territory led more

than 9,200 new homeowners

to choose gas.

combination with declining product costs and careful expense management,

led to an outstanding year despite weather that was 8% warmer than normal.

FLAGA. FLAGA is the largest propane supplier in Austria and one of the

largest suppliers in the Czech Republic and Slovakia, selling approximately

36 million gallons annually. Since acquiring FLAGA in 1999 we have used our

knowledge of the propane distribution business to enhance supply infrastruc-

ture, improve productivity and margins and lower the cost to service our cus-

tomers. Despite weather that was 10% warmer than normal in 2002, we made

progress on all initiatives. In 2003, we look to expand our base business through

marketing programs targeted at both new and existing customers. We will also

improve our storage and distribution infrastructure in the Czech Republic and

Slovakia to support our marketing initiatives in these two fast-growing markets.

Nantong Huayang LPG Sales Company. China has the potential to be-

come one of the largest propane markets in the world and we are in a position

to participate in that growth as a 50% owner of a retail distribution company

with annual sales of 20 million gallons. Our investment in China is modest,

but it gives us a strong foothold in this rapidly changing and growing market.

U G I  G a s  S e r v i c e
Clean-burning and economical, natural gas is the fuel of choice for nearly all

homeowners and businesses in areas served by our pipelines. UGI provides gas

service to approximately 286,000 customers in 15 counties in eastern Pennsyl-

vania, including the cities of Allentown, Bethlehem, Easton, Harrisburg,

Lancaster and Reading.

Record Customer Growth. Despite a weakened economy, housing starts

and demand for natural gas remained strong, contributing to a net 4.3%

growth in our residential heating customer base. A record 9,229 residential

customers and more than 1,100 commercial-industrial customers chose gas in

2002. We continue to provide natural gas to nearly all new homes in our

service territory where gas is available. In addition, we made investments in

several pipeline extensions to fuel future growth.

Employee-driven Productivity Improvements. Our employees suc-

ceeded in controlling costs while maintaining reliability and customer satisfac-

tion. One initiative to reduce costs is our participation in a consortium of

utility companies who use e-commerce and supply chain management to

G A S  S E R V I C E

In surveys during 2002,

92% of our customers

rated their experiences

with UGI as good or

excellent, reflecting our

strong commitment to

service.
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reduce the cost of purchasing non-fuel materials and services. In 2002, we

achieved savings of about 8% on such purchases made through the consor-

tium. We plan to expand the volume of purchases made through this system

in the next few years. We also participated in the development and use of a

new leak repair system, which reduces the cost of excavation and road restora-

tion after gas main repairs and reduces inconvenience to customers.

Reliable Service and Higher Customer Satisfaction in an Era of

Deregulation. We continue to provide safe, reliable service at competitive

prices, and strive to fulfill our utility vision to deliver energy and ideas to serve

the future. Our employees’ efforts to fulfill that vision have resulted in higher

customer satisfaction ratings again this year. In surveys, 92% of our customers

rated their experiences with UGI as good or excellent, reflecting our strong

commitment to service.

U G I  E l e c t r i c  S e r v i c e
Electric Utility Delivers Reliable Service. We continue to provide safe,

reliable service to more than 61,000 customers in northeastern Pennsylvania.

As a result of the successful deregulation process in Pennsylvania, our power

generation business has been separated from the utility distribution business

and the energy portion of the electric bill of our customers has become

subject to market conditions. This year, our electric utility purchased a major-

ity of its energy needs in the open market at favorable rates. The remaining

needs came from generating facilities owned by our affiliates. To reduce future

volatility in prices to our customers, UGI has secured competitively priced

power supplies for the next two years. Competitive prices, along with our

culture of service, have led to greater customer satisfaction even as we met the

challenges of deregulation.

Electric Generation. We own 65 megawatts of coal- and natural gas-fired

generation facilities. Because we no longer commit the output of these

plants to our distribution utility, we are now able to market the output of

these plants to others. We are continuing to evaluate opportunities to invest

in additional generation facilities.

Our growing heating,

ventilating and air condition-

ing subsidiary capitalizes on

our expertise in the gas and

electric business. Existing

utility customers have

confidence in UGI’s capability

to install and service gas and

electric heating and cooling

equipment.

E L E C T R I C  S E R V I C E

We bring value to

our electric service

customers by delivering

reliable service at

competitive prices.
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R e l a t e d  E n e r g y  S e r v i c e s
Growth Continues at GASMARK®. UGI Energy Services’ GASMARK®

operation is one of the largest retail energy marketers in the Middle Atlantic

region, serving thousands of large and mid-sized commercial and industrial

customers on 21 utility systems. Last year we expanded our gas marketing

operation with the acquisition of the energy marketing business of PG Energy

Services, which significantly enhanced our earnings during 2002. We also

experienced organic growth despite warm weather and a sluggish economy.

Turmoil in the energy marketing industry during 2002 created opportuni-

ties for GASMARK®, as many of our weaker competitors have ceased opera-

tion. We prospered by reducing our customers’ exposure to supply disruptions

and energy price volatility. GASMARK® continued its profitable and disci-

plined approach to marketing value-added energy services to its customers in

a region where the knowledge and experience of our employees give us a

competitive advantage.

UGI Energy Services will continue to pursue organic growth in the areas we

serve and seek out horizontal expansion through acquisitions. We also expect

to invest in complementary infrastructure assets to give us greater flexibility to

manage the delivered cost of natural gas to our customers. For example,

in 2002 we installed a pipeline to serve a new natural gas-fired power plant in

Bethlehem, which benefits from our access to multiple pipeline suppliers.

HVAC Business Adds New Services. We continue to expand our

ServiceMarkTM heating and cooling operation on a regional basis. We install,

service and provide service contracts covering heating, air conditioning

and water heating systems to more than 70,000 customers in southeastern

Pennsylvania and northern Delaware. In 2002, we began marketing engineer-

ing and design services, giving us an ability to work competitively on large-

scale projects. We have now penetrated the market for specialized projects in

the pharmaceutical and medical industries and are actively engaged in grow-

ing ServiceMarkTM to be a premier supplier of such services.

UGI Corporation continues

to expand in related energy

businesses with high

earnings growth potential.
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Business Overview
UGI Corporation (“UGI”) is a holding company that, through
subsidiaries and joint-venture affiliates, distributes and markets
energy products and related services. We are a domestic and inter-
national distributor of propane; a provider of natural gas and elec-
tricity service through regulated local distribution utilities; a gen-
erator of electricity through our ownership interests in electric
generation facilities; a regional marketer of energy commodities;
and a provider of heating and cooling services.

We conduct a national propane distribution business through
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (“AmeriGas Partners”) and its principal
operating subsidiaries AmeriGas Propane, L.P. (“AmeriGas OLP”)
and AmeriGas Eagle Propane, L.P. (“Eagle OLP”). At September
30, 2002, UGI, through its wholly owned second-tier subsidiary
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. (the “General Partner”), held an approxi-
mate 51% effective interest in the Partnership. We refer to
AmeriGas Partners and its subsidiaries together as “the
Partnership” and the General Partner and its subsidiaries, includ-
ing the Partnership, as “AmeriGas Propane.”

Our natural gas and electric distribution utilities and electric
generation businesses are conducted through UGI Utilities, Inc.
and its subsidiaries (“UGI Utilities”). UGI Utilities owns and
operates a natural gas distribution utility (“Gas Utility”) in parts
of eastern and southeastern Pennsylvania and an electricity distri-
bution utility (“Electric Utility”) in northeastern Pennsylvania.
UGI Utilities also owns interests in electricity generating facilities
in Pennsylvania which, together with Electric Utility, are referred
to herein as “Electric Operations.”

Our wholly owned subsidiary UGI Enterprises, Inc.
(“Enterprises”) conducts an energy marketing business primarily
in the Middle Atlantic region of the United States through its
wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Energy Services, Inc. (“Energy
Services”). Through other subsidiaries, Enterprises (1) owns and
operates a propane distribution business in Austria, the Czech
Republic and Slovakia (“FLAGA”); (2) owns and operates a heat-
ing, ventilation and air-conditioning service business in the
Middle Atlantic states (“HVAC”); and (3) participates in propane
joint-venture businesses in France (“Antargaz”) and in the
Nantong region of China.

This Financial Review should be read in conjunction with our
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements including the business segment information
included in Note 21.

Results of Operations

2002 Compared with 2001
Consolidated Results 

Variance–
Favorable

2002 2001 (Unfavorable)
Diluted Diluted

Diluted Net Earnings Net Earnings
Net Earnings Income (Loss) Income (Loss)

Income Per Share (Loss) Per Share (Loss) Per Share

(Millions of dollars, except per share)

AmeriGas Propane $17.4 $0.62 $13.5 $ 0.49 $ 3.9 $ 0.13
UGI Utilities 42.5 1.52 46.6 1.70 (4.1) (0.18)
Energy Services 6.5 0.23 4.0 0.15 2.5 0.08
International Propane 7.5 0.27 (4.4) (0.16) 11.9 0.43
Corporate & Other (a) 1.6 0.06 (7.7) (0.28) 9.3 0.34
Changes in accounting (b) – – 4.5 0.16 (4.5) (0.16)

Total (c) $75.5 $2.70 $56.5 $ 2.06 $19.0 $ 0.64

(a) Consists principally of UGI, HVAC, UGI Enterprises’ corporate and general expenses
and in Fiscal 2001, Hearth USA™. Hearth USA™ ceased operations in October 2001. Net
loss in Fiscal 2001 includes after-tax shut-down costs of $5.5 million or $0.20 per share
associated with Hearth USA™ (see Note 16 to Consolidated Financial Statements).

(b) Fiscal 2001 amounts include cumulative effect of accounting changes associated
with (1) the Partnership’s changes in accounting for tank fee revenue and tank installa-
tion costs and (2) the Company’s adoption of SFAS 133 (see Note 3 to Consolidated
Financial Statements).

(c) Results for Fiscal 2002 reflect the elimination of goodwill amortization resulting
from the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Pro Forma net income and diluted earnings per
share for Fiscal 2001 as if the adoption of SFAS 142 had occurred as of October 1, 2000
is $70.5 million and $2.58, respectively. For a detailed discussion of SFAS 142 and its
impact on the Company’s results, see Note 1 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Although significantly warmer than normal weather negatively
affected UGI Utilities’ and AmeriGas Propane’s Fiscal 2002 oper-
ating results, our Fiscal 2002 net income and earnings per share
increased more than 30%. The increase in net income reflects the
elimination of goodwill amortization as a result of the adoption of
SFAS 142, a significant increase in income from our International
Propane businesses, and the benefit of higher growth-related earn-
ings from our Energy Services business. In addition, results in
Fiscal 2001 were negatively impacted by operating losses and
shut-down costs associated with Hearth USA™.
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The following table presents certain financial and statistical
information by reportable segment for Fiscal 2002 and Fiscal 2001:

Increase
2002 2001 (Decrease)

(Millions of dollars)

AmeriGas Propane:
Revenues $ 1,307.9 $1,418.4 $(110.5) (7.8)%
Total margin (a) $ 675.8 $ 582.4 $ 93.4 16.0%
EBITDA (b) $ 210.7 $ 209.3  $ 1.4 0.7%
Operating income $ 144.3 $ 133.8  $ 10.5 7.8%
Retail gallons sold (millions) 932.8 820.8  112.0 13.6%
Degree days – % colder (warmer) 

than normal (c) (10.0)% 2.6%  – –

Gas Utility:
Revenues $ 404.5 $ 500.8 $ (96.3) (19.2)%
Total margin (a) $ 162.9 $ 177.9 $ (15.0) (8.4)%
Operating income $ 77.1 $ 87.8   $ (10.7) (12.2)%
System throughput – 

billions of cubic feet (“bcf”) 70.5 77.3 (6.8) (8.8)%
Degree days – % colder (warmer) 

than normal (17.4)% 2.0% – –

Electric Operations:
Revenues $ 86.0 $ 83.9 $ 2.1 2.5%
Total margin (a) $ 32.8 $ 28.6 $ 4.2 14.7%
Operating income $ 13.2 $ 10.7 $ 2.5 23.4%
Distribution sales – millions of 

kilowatt hours (“gwh”) 933.6 945.5 (11.9) (1.3)%

Energy Services:
Revenues $ 332.3 $ 370.7 $ (38.4) (10.4)%
Total margin (a) $ 21.4 $ 13.4 $ 8.0 59.7%
Operating income $ 11.1 $ 7.3 $ 3.8 52.1%

International Propane:
Revenues $ 46.7 $ 50.9  $ (4.2) (8.3)%
Total margin (a) $ 24.1 $ 22.5  $ 1.6 7.1%
EBITDA (b) $ 7.1 $ 5.1 $ 2.0 39.2%
Operating income $ 3.9 $ 0.8 $ 3.1 387.5%
Income (loss) from equity investees $ 8.3 $ (1.5) $ 9.8 N.M.

N.M. – Not meaningful.

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less cost of sales and, with respect to Electric
Operations, revenue-related taxes, i.e. Electric Utility gross receipts taxes. For financial
statement purposes, revenue-related taxes are included in “taxes other than income
taxes” on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

b) EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortiza-
tion, minority interests, income (loss) from equity investees, and the cumulative effect of
accounting changes) should not be considered as an alternative to net income (as an indi-
cator of operating performance) or as an alternative to cash flow (as a measure of liquidi-
ty or ability to service debt obligations) and is not a measure of performance or financial
condition under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
Company’s definition of EBITDA may be different from that used by other companies.

(c) Deviation from average heating degree days during the 30-year period from 1961 to
1990, based upon national weather statistics provided by the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) for 335 airports in the continental United States.

AmeriGas Propane. The Partnership’s Fiscal 2002 operating
results were negatively impacted by significantly warmer than nor-
mal heating-season weather. Fiscal 2002 temperatures based upon
heating degree day data provided by NOAA were approximately
10.0% warmer than normal and 12.3% warmer than Fiscal 2001.
Notwithstanding the impact of the warmer weather on heating-
related sales and the effects of a sluggish U.S. economy on com-
mercial sales, retail gallons sold increased 112.0 million gallons
principally as a result of the full-year effect of the Partnership’s
August 21, 2001, acquisition of Columbia Propane (see Note 2 to
Consolidated Financial Statements) and, to a much lesser extent,
greater volumes from our PPX® grill cylinder exchange business.
The increase in PPX® sales principally reflects the effect on Fiscal
2002 grill cylinder exchanges resulting from recently enacted
National Fire Protection Association (“NFPA”) guidelines and, to
a lesser extent, the full-year effects of Fiscal 2001 increases in the
number of PPX® distribution outlets. The NFPA guidelines
require that propane grill cylinders refilled after April 1, 2002, be
fitted with overfill protection devices (“OPDs”).

Retail propane revenues were $1,070.6 million in Fiscal 2002,
a decrease of $37.8 million from Fiscal 2001, reflecting a $189.0
million decrease as a result of lower average selling prices partially
offset by a $151.2 million increase as a result of the greater retail
volumes sold. Wholesale propane revenues were $121.1 million in
Fiscal 2002, a decrease of $93.5 million, reflecting a $62.0 mil-
lion decrease due to lower average selling prices and a $31.5 mil-
lion decrease as a result of lower wholesale volumes sold. The
lower Fiscal 2002 retail and wholesale selling prices resulted from
lower Fiscal 2002 propane product costs. Revenues from other
sales and services increased $20.8 million primarily due to the
full-year impact of Columbia Propane. Total cost of sales declined
$203.9 million in Fiscal 2002 reflecting lower average propane
product costs and the lower wholesale sales partially offset by the
higher retail gallons sold.

Total margin increased $93.4 million reflecting the full-year
volume impact of the Columbia Propane acquisition and a $35.5
million increase in total margin from PPX® reflecting higher vol-
umes and unit margins. PPX® propane unit margins in Fiscal
2002 were higher than in Fiscal 2001 reflecting increases in sales
prices to fund OPD valve replacement capital expenditures on
out-of-compliance grill cylinders. The extent to which this greater
level of PPX® margin is sustainable in the future will depend
upon a number of factors, including the continuing rate of OPD
valve replacement and competitive market conditions.

EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depre-
ciation and amortization, minority interests, income from equity
investees, and the cumulative effect of accounting changes)
increased $1.4 million in Fiscal 2002 as the significant increase in
total margin was substantially offset by an $88.8 million increase
in Partnership operating and administrative expenses and a
decrease in other income. EBITDA of PPX® increased approxi-
mately $21 million in Fiscal 2002 partially offsetting the effects of
the significantly warmer winter weather on our heating-related vol-
umes. Although EBITDA is not a measure of performance or
financial condition under accounting principles generally accepted
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in the United States, it is included in this analysis to provide addi-
tional information for evaluating the Partnership’s ability to pay
and declare the Minimum Quarterly Distribution of $0.55
(“MQD”) and for evaluating the Partnership’s performance. The
Partnership’s definition of EBITDA may be different from the def-
inition of EBITDA used by other companies. The greater operat-
ing and administrative expenses in Fiscal 2002 resulted primarily
from the full-year impact of the Columbia Propane acquisition
and higher volume-driven PPX® expenses. During Fiscal 2002, the
Partnership completed its planned blending of 90 Columbia
Propane distribution locations with existing AmeriGas Propane
locations. As a result of these district consolidations and other cost
reduction activities, management believes that by September 30,
2002 it achieved its anticipated $24 million reduction in annual-
ized operating cost savings subsequent to the acquisition of
Columbia Propane. Operating income increased $10.5 million,
significantly more than the increase in EBITDA, principally due to
the cessation of goodwill amortization in Fiscal 2002 as a result of
the adoption of SFAS 142 (see Note 1 to Consolidated Financial
Statements) partially offset by higher depreciation and intangible
asset amortization associated with Columbia Propane and higher
PPX® depreciation. Fiscal 2001 operating income includes $23.8
million of goodwill amortization.

Gas Utility. Weather in Gas Utility’s service territory during Fiscal
2002 based upon heating degree days was 17.4% warmer than
normal compared to weather that was 2.0% colder than normal in
Fiscal 2001. As a result of the significantly warmer weather and the
effects of a weak economy on commercial and industrial natural
gas usage, distribution system throughput declined 8.8%.

The $96.3 million decrease in Fiscal 2002 Gas Utility revenue
reflects the impact of lower purchased gas cost (“PGC”) rates,
resulting from the pass through of lower natural gas costs to firm-
residential, commercial and industrial (collectively, “core-market”)
customers, and the lower distribution system throughput. Gas
Utility cost of gas was $241.7 million in Fiscal 2002 compared to
$322.9 million in Fiscal 2001 reflecting lower natural gas costs
and the decline in core-market throughput in Fiscal 2002.

The decline in Gas Utility margin principally reflects a $6.0
million decline in core-market margin due to the lower sales; a
$6.6 million decline in interruptible margin due principally to the
flowback of certain interruptible customer margin to core-market
customers beginning December 1, 2001 pursuant to the Gas
Restructuring Order; and lower firm delivery service total margin
due to lower sales. Interruptible customers are those who have the
ability to switch to alternate fuels.

Gas Utility operating income declined $10.7 million in Fiscal
2002 reflecting the previously mentioned decline in total margin
and a decrease in pension income partially offset by lower operat-
ing expenses. Operating expenses declined $4.1 million primarily
as a result of lower charges for uncollectible accounts and lower
distribution system expenses. Depreciation expense declined $1.2
million due to a change effective April 1, 2002 in the estimated
useful lives of Gas Utility’s natural gas distribution assets resulting
from an asset life study required by the PUC.

Electric Operations. The decline in Electric Utility kilowatt-hour
sales in Fiscal 2002 reflects the effects on heating-related sales of
significantly warmer winter weather partially offset by the benefi-
cial effect on air conditioning sales of warmer summer weather.
Notwithstanding the decrease in total kilowatt-hour sales, rev-
enues increased $2.1 million principally due to an increase in state
tax surcharge revenue and greater third-party sales of electricity
produced by our Pennsylvania-based electric generation facilities.
Electric Operations cost of sales was $48.6 million in Fiscal 2002
compared to $51.9 million in Fiscal 2001 principally reflecting
the impact of the lower sales and lower purchased power unit
costs partially offset by the full-period increase to cost of sales
resulting from the transfer of our Hunlock Creek electricity gener-
ation assets to Hunlock Creek Energy Ventures (“Energy
Ventures”) in December 2000. Energy Ventures is an electricity
generation joint-venture with a subsidiary of Allegheny Energy,
Inc. Subsequent to the formation of Energy Ventures, our electric
generating business purchases its share of the power produced by
Energy Ventures rather than producing this electricity itself. As a
result, the cost of this power is reflected in cost of sales whereas
prior to the formation of Energy Ventures such costs were reflect-
ed as operating and administrative expenses. 

Electric Operations total margin increased $4.2 million in
Fiscal 2002 as a result of lower purchased power unit costs partial-
ly offset by the winter weather-driven decline in sales. Operating
income increased $2.5 million reflecting the greater total margin
and lower operating costs subsequent to the formation of Energy
Ventures partially offset by a decline in other income. 

Energy Services. Revenues from Energy Services declined $38.4
million, notwithstanding a 27% increase in natural gas volumes
sold, reflecting significantly lower natural gas prices. Total margin
increased principally as a result of the acquisition of the energy
marketing businesses of PG Energy in July 2001, income from
providing winter storage services and higher average unit margins.
The increase in total margin was partially offset by higher operat-
ing expenses subsequent to the PG Energy acquisition. 

International Propane. FLAGA’s revenues in Fiscal 2002 were
lower than in the prior year as a result of lower average selling
prices reflecting lower average propane product costs. Weather
based upon heating degree days was approximately 10% warmer
than normal in Fiscal 2002 compared to weather that was 12%
warmer than normal in Fiscal 2001. The increase in FLAGA’s
total margin reflects higher average unit margins principally as a
result of declining propane product costs. FLAGA’s operating
results also benefited from lower operating expenses, principally
reduced payroll costs, and a $1.2 million decrease in goodwill
amortization resulting from the adoption of SFAS 142. 

The significant increase in income from our international
propane joint ventures in Fiscal 2002 principally reflects the full-
year benefits from our debt and equity investments in AGZ
Holdings (“AGZ”), the parent company of Antargaz, acquired on
March 27, 2001. Operating results of Antargaz in Fiscal 2002
benefited from higher than normal unit margins, principally as a
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result of lower propane product costs, and the elimination of
goodwill amortization effective April 1, 2002. In addition, income
from our debt investments in AGZ in Fiscal 2002 includes $0.9
million of interest income and a currency transaction gain of $1.6
million resulting from AGZ’s early redemption of this euro-
denominated debt in July 2002. As a result of the redemption of
AGZ debt during Fiscal 2002 and an expected decrease in
Antargaz unit margins to more normal levels, we anticipate
income from our investment in AGZ in Fiscal 2003 to decline
significantly from Fiscal 2002. Loss from International Propane
joint ventures in Fiscal 2001 includes a loss of $1.1 million from
the write-off of our propane joint-venture investment located in
Romania. 

Corporate & Other. Corporate & Other operating income was
$3.0 million in Fiscal 2002 compared to a loss of $11.0 million in
Fiscal 2001. The prior-year results include operating losses, and
$8.5 million of shut-down costs, associated with Hearth USA™,
and a $2.0 million loss from the write-down of an investment in a
business-to-business e-commerce company.

Interest Expense and Income Taxes. The increase in interest
expense principally reflects higher Partnership long-term debt out-
standing resulting from the Columbia Propane acquisition partial-
ly offset by lower levels of UGI Utilities and Partnership bank
loans outstanding and lower short-term interest rates. The lower
effective income tax rate in Fiscal 2002 principally reflects the
elimination of nondeductible goodwill amortization resulting
from the adoption of SFAS 142 and greater equity income from
Antargaz.

2001 Compared with 2000
Consolidated Results 

Variance–
Favorable

2001 2000 (Unfavorable)
Diluted Diluted Diluted

Net Earnings Net Earnings Net Earnings
Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Income (Loss)

(Loss) Per Share (Loss) Per Share (Loss) Per Share

(Millions of dollars, except per share)

AmeriGas Propane $13.5 $ 0.49 $ – $ – $13.5 $ 0.49
UGI Utilities 46.6 1.70 48.9 1.79 (2.3) (0.09)
Energy Services 4.0 0.15 1.6 0.06 2.4 0.09
International Propane (4.4) (0.16) (5.6) (0.20) 1.2 0.04
Corporate & Other (7.7) (0.28) (0.2) (0.01) (7.5) (0.27)
Changes in accounting 4.5 0.16 – –  4.5 0.16

Total $56.5 $ 2.06 $44.7 $ 1.64 $11.8 $ 0.42

The higher Fiscal 2001 net income and earnings per share reflect
a significant increase in the Partnership’s and Energy Services’
results. Excluding the cumulative effect of accounting changes and
one-time costs to close the Hearth USA™ retail stores, diluted
earnings per share increased 28% to $2.10 in Fiscal 2001.

The following table presents certain financial and statistical
information by business segment for Fiscal 2001 and Fiscal 2000:

Increase
2001 2000 (Decrease)

(Millions of dollars)

AmeriGas Propane:
Revenues $1,418.4 $1,120.1  $298.3 26.6%
Total margin $ 582.4 $ 491.8     $ 90.6 18.4%
EBITDA $ 209.3 $ 158.6    $ 50.7 32.0%
Operating income $ 133.8 $ 90.2  $ 43.6 48.3%
Retail gallons sold (millions) 820.8 771.2  49.6 6.4%
Degree days – % colder (warmer) 

than normal 2.6% (13.7)%   – –

Gas Utility:
Revenues $ 500.8 $ 359.0    $141.8 39.5%
Total margin $ 177.9 $ 170.8    $ 7.1 4.2%
Operating income $ 87.8 $ 86.2   $ 1.6 1.9%
System throughput – 

billions of cubic feet (“bcf”) 77.3 79.7   (2.4) (3.0)%
Degree days – % colder (warmer) 

than normal 2.0% (9.9)%   – –  

Electric Operations:
Revenues $ 83.9 $ 77.9    $ 6.0 7.7%
Total margin $ 28.6 $ 40.8    $ (12.2) (29.9)%
Operating income $ 10.7 $ 15.1    $ (4.4) (29.1)%
Distribution sales – millions of 

kilowatt hours (“gwh”) 945.5 907.2    38.3 4.2%    

Energy Services:
Revenues $ 370.7 $ 146.9    $223.8 152.3%
Total margin $ 13.4 $ 6.2    $ 7.2 116.1%
Operating income $ 7.3 $ 2.8    $ 4.5 160.7%

International Propane:
Revenues $ 50.9 $ 50.5  $ 0.4 0.8%
Total margin $ 22.5 $ 20.8  $ 1.7 8.2%
EBITDA $ 5.1 $ 2.8  $ 2.3 82.1%
Operating income (loss) $ 0.8 $ (1.8)  $ 2.6 144.4%
Loss from equity investees $ (1.5) $ (0.9)  $ 0.6 66.7%

AmeriGas Propane. Retail propane gallons sold increased 49.6
million gallons (6.4%) primarily due to the effects of colder
weather and the impact of acquisitions, including the August 21,
2001 acquisition of Columbia Propane. Temperatures based upon
heating degree days were 2.6% colder than normal in Fiscal 2001
compared to temperatures that were 13.7% warmer than normal
in Fiscal 2000. The greater acquisition and weather-related sales
were reduced by customer conservation resulting from higher
product costs and a slowing U.S. economy. The wholesale price of
propane at Mont Belvieu, Texas, a major U.S. supply point,
reached a high of 95 cents per gallon in Fiscal 2001 compared to
a high of 74 cents per gallon during Fiscal 2000. 

Total revenues from retail propane sales increased $238.1 million
reflecting a $182.1 million increase as a result of higher average sell-
ing prices and a $56.0 million increase as a result of the higher
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retail volumes sold. Wholesale propane revenues increased $61.9
million principally reflecting higher average prices and greater sales
associated with product cost management activities. Cost of sales
increased $207.7 million as a result of higher per unit propane
product costs and the greater retail and wholesale volumes sold.

Total margin increased $90.6 million due to the impact of
higher-than-normal average retail unit margins and, to a lesser
extent, the greater retail propane volumes sold. Retail propane
unit margins in Fiscal 2001 benefited from gains on derivative
hedge instruments and favorably priced supply arrangements. 

The significant increase in EBITDA in Fiscal 2001 resulted
from the increase in margin partially offset by a $37.3 million
increase in Partnership operating and administrative expenses.
Operating and administrative expenses of the Partnership were
$380.0 million in Fiscal 2001 compared to $342.7 million in
Fiscal 2000. Adjusting Fiscal 2000 expenses for the impact of the
Partnership’s change in accounting for tank installation costs, oper-
ating and administrative expenses of the Partnership increased
$44.3 million. The higher Fiscal 2001 expenses reflect (1) higher
employee-related costs, including greater overtime and incentive
compensation costs; (2) growth-related expenses, including the
impact of Columbia Propane and other acquisitions, and expenses
associated with our PPX® grill cylinder exchange business; and (3)
higher distribution costs, including vehicle fuel and lease expense.
Depreciation and amortization expense of the Partnership
increased $7.4 million reflecting greater depreciation associated
with acquisitions and $4.4 million of depreciation expense result-
ing from the change in accounting for tank installation costs.

Gas Utility. Although temperatures based upon heating degree
days were colder in Fiscal 2001, total system throughput declined
3.0% as the impact of the colder weather was more than offset by
lower interruptible and firm delivery service volumes, the impact
of price-induced customer conservation, and the effects of a slow-
ing economy. Natural gas prices were significantly higher in Fiscal
2001 than in the prior year. The higher prices resulted in fuel
switching by many of our interruptible customers, who have the
ability to switch to alternate fuels, and encouraged price-induced
conservation by many of our firm customers. Throughput to our
core-market customers increased 3.3 bcf (10.6%) reflecting the
impact of the colder Fiscal 2001 weather.

The significant increase in Gas Utility revenues is primarily a
result of higher core-market revenues reflecting greater PGC rates
and higher revenues from sales to customers not on our distribu-
tion system (“off-system sales”). Gas Utility’s tariffs permit it to
pass through prudently incurred gas costs to its core-market cus-
tomers through higher PGC rates.

Gas Utility cost of gas totaled $322.9 million in Fiscal 2001
compared with $184.2 million in Fiscal 2000 principally reflect-
ing the higher average PGC rates and, to a lesser extent, higher
core-market and off-system sales.

Gas Utility total margin increased $7.1 million reflecting a
$12.1 million increase in core-market margin partially offset by
lower total margin from interruptible customers. The decline in
interruptible margin reflects lower average interruptible unit mar-
gins due to a decline in the spread between oil and natural gas
prices and the lower interruptible throughput.

Gas Utility operating income increased $1.6 million as the pre-
viously mentioned increase in total margin and an increase in
pension income was partially offset by higher operating and
administrative expenses. The increase in operating and adminis-
trative expenses includes, among other things, greater allowances
for uncollectible accounts, reflecting significantly higher Fiscal
2001 customer bills, and lower income from environmental insur-
ance litigation settlements. Such settlements totaled $0.9 million
in Fiscal 2001 compared with $4.5 million in Fiscal 2000.
Depreciation expense increased $1.1 million reflecting greater
depreciation associated with distribution system capital expenditures.

Electric Operations. Electric Utility distribution system sales in
Fiscal 2001 increased 4.2% on favorable weather. Revenues
increased as a result of the higher distribution system sales as well
as off-system sales of electricity generated by Energy Ventures.
Cost of sales totaled $51.9 million in Fiscal 2001 compared to
$34.2 million in the prior year. The increase reflects higher per-
unit purchased power costs, the impact on cost of sales resulting
from the formation of Energy Ventures, and the higher Fiscal
2001 sales.

Electric Operations total margin decreased $12.2 million as a
result of the higher purchased power costs. Operating income
declined less than the decline in total margin reflecting lower
power production and depreciation expenses subsequent to the
formation of Energy Ventures and lower utility realty taxes.

Energy Services. Revenues from Energy Services increased signifi-
cantly reflecting higher natural gas prices and acquisition-related
volume growth. Energy Services acquired the energy marketing
businesses of Conectiv in October 2000 and PG Energy in July
2001. Total margin and operating income were also substantially
higher in Fiscal 2001 reflecting the greater acquisition-driven sales
volumes and higher average unit margins. 

International Propane. FLAGA’s results in Fiscal 2001 were
adversely impacted by weather that was approximately 12%
warmer than normal. Propane volumes sold were 8.5% lower than
in Fiscal 2000 reflecting the impact of the warm weather and
price-induced conservation. The increase in total margin, notwith-
standing the decline in sales volumes, reflects higher unit margins
partially offset by the impact of a weaker euro in Fiscal 2001.
International Propane EBITDA increased in Fiscal 2001 reflecting
the greater total margin and a decline in FLAGA operating expens-
es. International Propane loss from equity investees in Fiscal 2001
includes (1) a loss of $1.1 million from the write-off of our
propane joint-venture investment in Romania and (2) $0.5 million
of income associated with our investments in AGZ.

Corporate & Other. The increase in Corporate & Other revenues
is principally a result of HVAC, which was acquired in late Fiscal
2000. Corporate & Other operating income in Fiscal 2001
declined $10.6 million principally reflecting an $8.5 million pro-
vision for shut-down costs of Hearth USA™. Corporate & Other
operating loss in Fiscal 2001 also includes a $2.0 million loss
resulting from the write-down of an investment in a business-to-
business e-commerce company, lower interest and investment
income, and greater incentive compensation costs. 
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Interest Expense and Income Taxes. Interest expense increased
$6.3 million in Fiscal 2001 primarily as a result of greater
amounts of Partnership long-term debt outstanding. The effective
income tax rate was 45.9% in Fiscal 2001 compared to a rate of
46.4% in Fiscal 2000.

Financial Condition and Liquidity

Capitalization and Liquidity
Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $194.3 million at
September 30, 2002 compared with $87.5 million at September
30, 2001. These amounts include $114.0 million and $31.9 mil-
lion, respectively, of cash and short-term investments held by UGI. 

The primary sources of UGI’s cash and short-term investments
are the cash dividends it receives from its principal operating sub-
sidiaries AmeriGas, Inc. and UGI Utilities. AmeriGas, Inc.’s abili-
ty to pay dividends to UGI is largely dependent upon distribu-
tions on AmeriGas Partners’ limited partner units. During Fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000, AmeriGas, Inc. and UGI Utilities paid
cash dividends to UGI as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 2002 2001 2000

(Millions of dollars)

AmeriGas, Inc. $49.4 $41.0 $51.6 
UGI Utilities 37.9 35.3 44.0 

Total dividends to UGI $87.3 $76.3 $95.6 

Dividends received by UGI from AmeriGas, Inc. and UGI
Utilities, in addition to dividends from UGI’s other operating
subsidiaries, are available to pay dividends on UGI Common
Stock and for investment purposes.

AmeriGas Partners. The Partnership’s debt outstanding at
September 30, 2002 totaled $955.8 million. Included in this
amount is $10 million outstanding under AmeriGas OLP’s
Revolving Credit Facility.

In December 2001, AmeriGas Partners issued 1,843,047
Common Units to the public through an underwritten public
offering. In January 2002, the underwriters exercised a portion of
their overallotment option in the amount of 585,000 shares. The
net proceeds from these Common Unit offerings of $49.7 mil-
lion, $6.9 million of proceeds from an October 2001 sale of
350,000 Common Units to the General Partner, and related capi-
tal contributions by the General Partner in order to maintain its
general partner interests, were contributed to AmeriGas OLP and
used to reduce Bank Credit Agreement borrowings and for work-
ing capital.

The Partnership also completed a number of debt transactions
during Fiscal 2002. In November 2001, AmeriGas Partners pre-
paid $15 million of 10.125% Senior Notes at a redemption price
of 103.375%. In April 2002, AmeriGas OLP repaid $60 million
of maturing First Mortgage Notes from then-existing cash balances
and Revolving Credit Facility borrowings. In May 2002, AmeriGas
Partners issued $40 million of Senior Notes due 2011 at an effec-
tive interest rate of 8.25%. The proceeds were contributed to

AmeriGas OLP and, along with related General Partner capital
contributions, used to reduce Revolving Credit Facility borrowings
and for working capital and general business purposes. On
December 3, 2002, after the end of Fiscal 2002, AmeriGas
Partners issued $88 million principal amount of 8.875% Senior
Notes due 2011 at an effective interest rate of 8.30%. The net pro-
ceeds will be used to redeem in January 2003 the remaining $85
million of 10.125% Senior Notes of AmeriGas Partners at a
redemption price of 102.25%.

In August 2002, AmeriGas OLP amended and restated its
Bank Credit Agreement. AmeriGas OLP’s Bank Credit Agreement
expires October 1, 2003 and consists of (1) a $100 million
Revolving Credit Facility and (2) a $75 million Acquisition
Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility may be used for working
capital and general purposes of AmeriGas OLP. There was $10
million outstanding under this facility at September 30, 2002.
Issued and outstanding letters of credit under the Revolving
Credit Facility, which reduce the amount available for borrowings,
totaled $19.8 million at September 30, 2002. AmeriGas OLP’s
short-term borrowing needs are seasonal and are typically greatest
during the fall and winter heating-season months due to the need
to fund higher levels of working capital. AmeriGas OLP may bor-
row under its Acquisition Facility to finance the purchase of
propane businesses or propane business assets. In addition to the
$100 million available under the Revolving Credit Facility, the
Bank Credit Agreement allows up to $30 million of the
Acquisition Facility to be used for working capital purposes.
There were no loans outstanding under the Acquisition Facility at
September 30, 2002. AmeriGas OLP could borrow up to $67.7
million under the Acquisition Facility based upon eligible capital
expenditures made through September 30, 2002.

AmeriGas OLP also has a credit agreement with the General
Partner to borrow up to $20 million on an unsecured, subordinat-
ed basis, for working capital and general purposes. UGI has
agreed to contribute up to $20 million to the General Partner to
fund such borrowings. 

AmeriGas Partners also has debt and equity shelf registration state-
ments with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

The Partnership must maintain certain financial ratios in order
to borrow under the Bank Credit Agreement including a mini-
mum interest coverage ratio and a maximum debt to EBITDA
ratio. The Partnership’s ratios calculated as of September 30, 2002
permit it to borrow up to the maximum amount available. For a
more detailed discussion of the Partnership’s credit facilities, see
Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements. Based upon existing
cash balances, cash expected to be generated from operations, bor-
rowings available under its Bank Credit Agreement, and the
expected refinancing of its maturing long-term debt, the
Partnership’s management believes that the Partnership will be
able to meet its anticipated contractual commitments and project-
ed cash needs in Fiscal 2003. 

UGI Utilities. UGI Utilities’ debt outstanding totaled $285.6 mil-
lion at September 30, 2002. Included in this amount is $37.2
million under revolving credit agreements. 
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UGI Utilities may borrow up to a total of $97 million under
its revolving credit agreements. The revolving credit agreements
contain financial covenants including interest coverage ratios, debt
service, and minimum tangible net worth. In September 2002,
UGI Utilities issued $40 million face value of Series C Medium-
Term notes under a shelf registration statement with the SEC.
The proceeds of the issuance were used after the end of Fiscal
2002 principally to repay debt maturing in October 2002. UGI
Utilities may issue up to an additional $85 million of debt securi-
ties under the shelf registration statement. 

Based upon cash expected to be generated from operations, the
expected ability to refinance all or a portion of long-term debt
maturing in Fiscal 2003, and borrowings available under revolving
credit agreements, management believes that UGI Utilities will be
able to meet its anticipated contractual and projected cash com-
mitments in Fiscal 2003. For a more detailed discussion of UGI
Utilities’ debt and credit facilities, see Note 5 to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Energy Services. Energy Services has a receivables purchase facility
(“Receivables Facility”) with an issuer of receivables-backed com-
mercial paper expiring November 30, 2004. Under the Receivables
Facility, Energy Services transfers, on an ongoing basis and without
recourse, its trade accounts receivable to its wholly owned, special
purpose, bankruptcy-remote subsidiary, Energy Services Funding
Corporation (“ESFC”) which is consolidated for financial state-
ment purposes. ESFC pays Energy Services for the receivables it
purchases as these receivables are collected from customers. In
addition, from time to time ESFC may sell an undivided interest
in these receivables for up to $50 million in proceeds to a com-
mercial paper conduit of a major bank. The proceeds of these sales
are less than the face amount of the accounts receivable sold by an
amount that approximates the purchaser’s financing cost of issuing
its own receivables-backed commercial paper. ESFC was created
and has been structured to isolate its assets from creditors of
Energy Services and its affiliates, including UGI. In accordance
with a servicing arrangement, Energy Services continues to service,
administer and collect trade receivables on behalf of the commer-
cial paper issuer and ESFC. This two-step transaction is accounted
for as a sale of receivables following the provisions of SFAS No.
140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets
and Extinguishments of Liabilities.”

At September 30, 2002, no receivables had been sold to the
commercial paper conduit and removed from the balance sheet.
During Fiscal 2002, ESFC sold a total of $34 million of receiv-
ables to the commercial paper conduit. Losses on sales of receiv-
ables that occurred during Fiscal 2002 were not material. 

FLAGA. FLAGA has a 15 million euro working capital loan com-
mitment from a European bank. Borrowings under the working
capital facility totaled 8.7 million euro ($8.6 million U.S. dollar
equivalent) at September 30, 2002. Debt issued under this agree-
ment, as well as $75.1 million of acquisition and special purpose
debt of FLAGA, are subject to guarantees of UGI. For a more
detailed discussion of FLAGA’s debt, see Note 5 to Consolidated
Financial Statements. FLAGA’s management expects to repay
long-term debt maturing in Fiscal 2003 principally through cash

generated from operations as well as short-term borrowings and
capital contributions from UGI.

Cash Flows
Operating activities. Cash flow from operating activities was
$247.5 million in Fiscal 2002 compared to $203.5 million in
Fiscal 2001. Cash flow from operating activities before consider-
ing changes in working capital was $233.7 million in Fiscal 2002
compared to $179.8 million in Fiscal 2001 principally reflecting
significantly higher noncash charges for income taxes and the
impact of settlement payments in Fiscal 2001 associated with the
Energy Services’ exchange-traded natural gas derivative hedge con-
tracts. In Fiscal 2002, changes in operating working capital pro-
vided $13.8 million of operating cash flow compared to $23.7
million of such cash flow in Fiscal 2001. 

Investing activities. Cash spent for property, plant and equipment
totaled $94.7 million in Fiscal 2002, an increase of $15.7 million
from Fiscal 2001, reflecting a $15.6 million increase in Partnership
capital expenditures principally for PPX®, including expenditures
for grill cylinder OPDs to comply with NFPA guidelines, and to a
much lesser extent the full-year effect of capital expenditures associ-
ated with the Columbia Propane businesses. Cash flows from
investing activities in Fiscal 2002 also include $17.7 million of cash
proceeds from the early redemption of AGZ bonds in July 2002.

Financing activities. During Fiscal 2002, we paid cash dividends
on UGI Common Stock of $44.8 million compared to $53.2 mil-
lion in Fiscal 2001. The higher dividends paid in the prior year
reflect the one-time impact of a change in the timing of funding
the quarterly dividend from the first day of the quarter to the last
day of the previous quarter. During Fiscal 2002, AmeriGas Partners
received net proceeds of $49.7 million from its public offering of
2.4 million Common Units. During Fiscal 2002, AmeriGas OLP
repaid $20 million of Acquisition Facility borrowings and $60 mil-
lion of maturing First Mortgage Notes, and AmeriGas Partners
redeemed prior to maturity $15 million of its 10.125% Senior
Notes. In addition, AmeriGas Partners issued $40 million face
amount of 8.875% Senior Notes and contributed the proceeds to
AmeriGas OLP to reduce indebtedness under its Revolving Credit
Facility and for working capital and general business purposes. In
September 2002, UGI Utilities issued $40 million face amount of
Medium-Term Notes and used the proceeds, after the end of Fiscal
2002, principally to repay maturing long-term debt. 

Dividends and Distributions
In April 2002, our board of directors increased the annual dividend
rate on UGI Common Stock to $1.65 a share from $1.60. Dividends
declared on our Common Stock in Fiscal 2002 totaled $44.8 million.

At September 30, 2002, our approximate 51% effective owner-
ship interest in the Partnership consisted of (1) 14.6 million
Common Units; (2) 9.9 million Subordinated Units; and (3) a
2% general partner interest. The remaining approximate 49%
effective interest consisted of 24.9 million publicly held Common
Units. Approximately 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter,
the Partnership distributes all of its Available Cash (as defined in
the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of



Financial Review (continued)

20

AmeriGas Partners, the “Partnership Agreement”) relating to such
fiscal quarter. Common Unitholders receive the MQD, plus any
arrearages, before a distribution of Available Cash could be made
on the Subordinated Units. Because certain cash-based perform-
ance and distribution requirements were met in respect of the
quarter ended September 30, 2002, effective November 18, 2002
the remaining 9.9 million Subordinated Units held by the
General Partner were converted to Common Units (see
“Conversion of Subordinated Units” below).

Since its formation in 1995, the Partnership has paid the MQD
on all limited partner units outstanding. The amount of Available
Cash needed annually to pay the MQD on all units and the general
partner interests in Fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 was approximately
$109 million, $99 million and $94 million, respectively. Based
upon the number of Partnership units outstanding on September
30, 2002, the amount of Available Cash needed annually to pay the
MQD on all units and the general partner interests is approximate-
ly $111 million. A reasonable proxy for the amount of cash avail-
able for distribution that is generated by the Partnership can be cal-
culated by subtracting from the Partnership’s EBITDA (1) cash
interest expense and (2) capital expenditures needed to maintain
operating capacity. Partnership distributable cash flow as calculated
under this method for Fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 is as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 2002 2001 2000

(Millions of dollars)

EBITDA $210.4 $208.6 $157.6
Cash interest expense (a) (88.5) (82.0) (76.7)  
Maintenance capital expenditures (20.7) (17.8) (11.6)   

Distributable cash flow $101.2 $108.8 $ 69.3

(a) Interest expense adjusted for noncash items.

Although distributable cash flow is a reasonable estimate of the
amount of cash generated by the Partnership, it does not reflect,
among other things, the impact of changes in working capital,
which can significantly affect cash available for distribution, and is
not a measure of performance or financial condition under account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States but provides
additional information for evaluating the Partnership’s ability to
declare and pay the MQD. The Partnership’s definition of distrib-
utable cash flow may be different from the definition used by other
companies. Although the levels of distributable cash flow in Fiscal
2002 and 2000 were less than the full MQD, other sources of cash,
including cash from equity offerings and borrowings, was more than
sufficient to permit the Partnership to pay the full MQD. The abili-
ty of the Partnership to pay the MQD on all units depends upon a
number of factors. These factors include (1) the level of Partnership
earnings; (2) the cash needs of the Partnership’s operations (includ-
ing cash needed for maintaining and increasing operating capacity);
(3) changes in operating working capital; and (4) the Partnership’s
ability to borrow under its Bank Credit Agreement, to refinance
maturing debt and to increase its long-term debt. Some of these fac-
tors are affected by conditions beyond our control including weath-
er, competition in markets we serve, the cost of propane and changes
in capital market conditions. 

Conversion of AmeriGas Partners Subordinated Units
Pursuant to the Agreement of Limited Partnership of AmeriGas
Partners, the 9.9 million AmeriGas Partners Subordinated Units
held by the General Partner as of September 30, 2002 were
eligible to convert to Common Units on the first day after the
record date for any quarter ending on or after March 31, 2000 in
respect of which certain cash-based performance and distribution
requirements were met. 

In December 2002, the General Partner determined that the
cash-based performance and distribution requirements in respect of
the quarter ended September 30, 2002 had been met and, as a
result, the remaining 9.9 million Subordinated Units held by the
Company were converted to Common Units effective
November 18, 2002. Concurrent with the Subordinated Unit
conversion, the Company recorded an increase in common stock-
holders’ equity and a decrease in minority interest of approximately
$160 million associated with gains from sales of Common Units by
AmeriGas Partners in conjunction with, and subsequent to, its April
19, 1995 initial public offering in accordance with the accounting
guidance in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 51, “Accounting for
Sales of Common Stock by a Subsidiary.” The gains result because
the public offering prices of the AmeriGas Partners Common Units
at the dates of their sales exceeded the associated carrying amount of
our investment in the Partnership. No deferred taxes were recorded
related to the gains due to the Company’s intent to hold its invest-
ment in the Partnership indefinitely. The changes to the Company’s
balance sheet resulting from the Subordinated Unit conversion had
no effect on the Company’s net income or cash flow. The conversion
of the Subordinated Units did not result in an increase in the num-
ber of AmeriGas Partners limited partner units outstanding.

Redemption of AGZ Bonds
In July 2002, the Company received $19.3 million in cash from
AGZ representing repayment of 18 million euro face value (90%),
$17.7 million U.S. dollar equivalent, of redeemable bonds of AGZ
(“AGZ Bonds”) held by the Company, plus accrued interest. This
repayment was funded from the proceeds of an AGZ placement of
high-yield debt. The Company purchased the AGZ Bonds on March
27, 2001 in conjunction with its joint-venture investment, through
AGZ, in Antargaz, a leading distributor of propane and related gases
in France. Concurrent with the repayment, the remaining 2.0 million
euro (10%) investment in AGZ Bonds was converted to additional
shares of AGZ. The Company recorded a pretax currency transaction
gain of $1.6 million as a result of the repayment of the AGZ Bonds.
After these transactions, the Company continues to hold an approxi-
mate 19.5% equity investment in AGZ. 

UGI Utilities Pension Plan
UGI Utilities sponsors a defined benefit pension plan (“Pension
Plan”) for employees of UGI, UGI Utilities, and certain of UGI’s
other subsidiaries. During Fiscal 2002 and 2001, the market value of
plan assets was negatively affected by persistent declines in the equity
markets. Notwithstanding the significant decline in the market value
of plan assets during these years, at September 30, 2002 the Pension
Plan’s assets exceeded its accumulated benefit obligations by approxi-
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mately $7.2 million. The Company is in full compliance with regula-
tions governing defined benefit pension plans, including ERISA rules
and regulations, and does not anticipate it will be required to make a
contribution to the Pension Plan in Fiscal 2003. Pretax pension
income reflected in Fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $4.0 million,
$5.9 million, and $3.0 million, respectively. Pension income in Fiscal
2003 is expected to decline to approximately $1.0 million principally
as a result of the impact of declines through September 2002 in the
market value of Pension Plan assets.

Capital Expenditures
In the following table, we present capital expenditures (which
include expenditures for capital leases but exclude acquisitions) by
business segment for Fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000. We also provide
amounts we expect to spend in Fiscal 2003. We expect to finance
Fiscal 2003 capital expenditures principally from cash generated by
operations and borrowings under our credit facilities.

Year Ended September 30, 2003 2002 2001 2000

(Millions of dollars) (estimate)
AmeriGas Propane $ 52.2 $53.5 $39.2 $30.4
UGI Utilities 44.9 35.9 36.8 36.4
International Propane 5.9 4.0  2.7 1.8
Other 1.8 1.3 0.6 2.4

Total $104.8 $94.7 $79.3 $71.0

Contractual Cash Obligations and Commitments
The following table presents significant contractual cash obligations
under agreements existing as of September 30, 2002 (in millions). 

Fiscal Fiscal
2003 & 2004 2005 & 2006 Thereafter Total

Long-term debt $207.0 $296.8 $771.9 $1,275.7
UGI Utilities preferred stock –  2.0 18.0 20.0 
Operating leases 71.7 50.8 63.6 186.1 
Energy Services 

supply contracts 157.5 –  – 157.5 
Gas and Electric

utility supply contracts 202.9 80.2 107.3 390.4 

Total $639.1 $429.8 $960.8 $2,029.7 

Utility Regulatory Matters
The Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (“PUC”) approved a
settlement establishing rules for Electric Utility Provider of Last
Resort (“POLR”) service on March 28, 2002, and a separate settle-
ment that modified these rules on June 13, 2002 (collectively the
“POLR Settlement”). Under the terms of the POLR Settlement,
Electric Utility terminated stranded cost recovery through its
Competitive Transition Charge (“CTC”) from commercial and
industrial (“C&I”) customers on July 31, 2002, and from residen-
tial customers on October 31, 2002, and is no longer subject to
the statutory rate caps as of August 1, 2002 for C&I customers
and as of November 1, 2002 for residential customers. Stranded
costs are electric generation-related costs that traditionally would
be recoverable in a regulated environment but may not be recover-

able in a competitive electric generation market. Charges for gener-
ation service will (1) initially be set at a level equal to the rates paid
by Electric Utility customers for POLR service under the statutory
rate caps; (2) may be raised at certain designated times up to cer-
tain specified caps through December 2004; and (3) may be set at
market rates thereafter. Electric Utility may also offer multiple year
POLR contracts to its customers. The POLR Settlement provides
for annual shopping periods during which customers may elect to
remain on POLR service or choose an alternate supplier.
Customers who do not select an alternate supplier will be obligated
to remain on POLR service until the next shopping period.
Residential customers who return to POLR service at a time other
than during the annual shopping period must remain on POLR
service until the date of the second open shopping period after
returning. C&I customers who return to POLR service at a time
other than during the annual shopping period must remain on
POLR service until the next open shopping period, and may, in
certain circumstances, be subject to generation rate surcharges. 

On June 29, 2000, the PUC issued its order (“Gas
Restructuring Order”) approving Gas Utility’s restructuring plan
filed by Gas Utility pursuant to Pennsylvania’s Natural Gas Choice
and Competition Act. Among other things, the implementation of
the Gas Restructuring Order resulted in an increase in Gas Utility’s
core-market base rates effective October 1, 2000. This base rate
increase was designed to generate approximately $16.7 million in
additional net annual revenues. In accordance with the Gas
Restructuring Order, Gas Utility reduced its core-market PGC
rates by an annualized amount of $16.7 million in the first 14
months following the October 1, 2000 base rate increase. 

Effective December 1, 2001, Gas Utility was required to
reduce its PGC rates by amounts equal to the margin it receives
from interruptible customers using pipeline capacity contracted
by Gas Utility for core-market customers. As a result, Gas Utility
operating results are more sensitive to the effects of heating-season
weather and less sensitive to the market prices of alternative fuels. 

Manufactured Gas Plants
From the late 1800s through the mid-1900s, UGI Utilities and its
former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of manufac-
tured gas plants (“MGPs”) prior to the general availability of nat-
ural gas. Some constituents of coal tars and other residues of the
manufactured gas process are today considered hazardous sub-
stances under the Superfund Law and may be present on the sites
of former MGPs. Between 1882 and 1953, UGI Utilities owned
the stock of subsidiary gas companies in Pennsylvania and else-
where and also operated the businesses of some gas companies
under agreement. Pursuant to the requirements of the Public
Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, UGI Utilities divested all
of its utility operations other than those which now constitute
Gas Utility and Electric Utility.

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for investigation and
remediation of hazardous substances at Pennsylvania MGP sites to
be material to its results of operations because Gas Utility is cur-
rently permitted to include in rates, through future base rate pro-
ceedings, prudently incurred remediation costs associated with
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such sites. UGI Utilities has been notified of several sites outside
Pennsylvania on which (1) MGPs were formerly operated by it or
owned or operated by its former subsidiaries and (2) either envi-
ronmental agencies or private parties are investigating the extent
of environmental contamination or performing environmental
remediation. UGI Utilities is currently litigating two claims
against it relating to out-of-state sites.

Management believes that under applicable law UGI Utilities
should not be liable in those instances in which a former sub-
sidiary operated an MGP. There could be, however, significant
future costs of an uncertain amount associated with environmen-
tal damage caused by MGPs outside Pennsylvania that UGI
Utilities directly operated, or that were owned or operated by for-
mer subsidiaries of UGI Utilities if a court were to conclude that
the subsidiary’s separate corporate form should be disregarded.

UGI Utilities has filed suit against more than fifty insurance
companies alleging that the defendants breached contracts of
insurance by failing to indemnify UGI Utilities for certain envi-
ronmental costs. The suit seeks to recover more than $11 million
in such costs. During Fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, UGI Utilities
entered into settlement agreements with several of the insurers and
recorded pretax income of $0.4 million, $0.9 million and $4.5
million, respectively, which amounts are included in operating and
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Market Risk Disclosures
Our primary market risk exposures are (1) market prices for
propane, natural gas and electricity; (2) changes in interest rates;
and (3) foreign currency exchange rates. 

The risk associated with fluctuations in the prices the
Partnership and our International Propane operations pay for
propane is principally a result of market forces reflecting changes
in supply and demand for propane and other energy commodi-
ties. The Partnership’s profitability is sensitive to changes in
propane supply costs, and the Partnership generally attempts to
pass on increases in such costs to customers. The Partnership may
not, however, always be able to pass through product cost increas-
es fully, particularly when product costs rise rapidly. In order to
reduce the volatility of the Partnership’s propane market price
risk, it uses contracts for the forward purchase or sale of propane,
propane fixed-price supply agreements, and over-the-counter
derivative commodity instruments including price swap and
option contracts. International Propane’s profitability is also sensi-
tive to changes in propane supply costs. On occasion, FLAGA
uses derivative commodity instruments to reduce market risk asso-
ciated with a portion of its propane purchases. Over-the-counter
derivative commodity instruments utilized by the Partnership and
FLAGA to hedge forecasted purchases of propane are generally
settled at expiration of the contract. In order to minimize credit
risk associated with its  derivative commodity contracts, the
Partnership monitors established credit limits with the contract
counterparties. Although we use derivative financial and com-

modity instruments to reduce market price risk associated with
forecasted transactions, we do not use derivative financial and
commodity instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Gas Utility’s tariffs contain clauses that permit recovery of sub-
stantially all of the prudently incurred cost of natural gas it sells to
its customers. The recovery clauses provide for a periodic adjust-
ment for the difference between the total amount actually collect-
ed from customers and the recoverable costs incurred. Because of
this ratemaking mechanism, there is limited commodity price risk
associated with our Gas Utility operations.

During Fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, Electric Utility purchased
all of its electric power needs, in excess of the electric power it
obtained from its interests in electric generating facilities, under
power supply arrangements of various lengths and on the spot mar-
ket. Beginning September 2002, Electric Utility began purchasing
its power needs from electricity suppliers under fixed-price energy
and capacity contracts and, to a much lesser extent, on the spot
market, and our electricity generation businesses began selling on
the spot market electric power produced from its interests in elec-
tricity generating facilities to third parties. Prices for electricity can
be volatile especially during periods of high demand or tight supply.
Although the generation component of Electric Utility’s rates is
subject to various rate cap provisions as a result of the Electricity
Restructuring Order and the POLR Settlement, Electric Utility’s
fixed-price contracts with electricity suppliers mitigate most risks
associated with offering customers a fixed price during the contract
periods. However, should any of the suppliers under these contracts
fail to provide electric power under the terms of the power and
capacity contracts, increases, if any, in the cost of replacement
power or capacity would negatively impact Electric Utility results.
In order to reduce this non-performance risk, Electric Utility has
diversified its purchases across several suppliers and entered into
bilateral collateral arrangements with certain of them. 

In order to manage market price risk relating to substantially
all of Energy Services’ forecasted fixed-price sales of natural gas,
we purchase exchange-traded natural gas futures contracts or enter
into fixed-price supply arrangements. Exchange-traded natural gas
futures contracts are guaranteed by the New York Mercantile
Exchange (“NYMEX”) and have nominal credit risk. The change
in market value of these contracts generally requires daily cash
deposits in margin accounts with brokers. Although Energy
Services’ fixed-price supply arrangements mitigate most risks asso-
ciated with its fixed-price sales contracts, should any of the natu-
ral gas suppliers under these arrangements fail to perform, increas-
es, if any, in the cost of replacement natural gas would adversely
impact Energy Services’ results. In order to reduce this risk of sup-
plier nonperformance, Energy Services has diversified its purchas-
es across a number of suppliers.

We have both fixed-rate and variable-rate debt. Changes in
interest rates impact the cash flows of variable-rate debt but gen-
erally do not impact its fair value. Conversely, changes in interest
rates impact the fair value of fixed-rate debt but do not impact
their cash flows. 
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Our variable-rate debt includes borrowings under AmeriGas
OLP’s Bank Credit Agreement, borrowings under UGI Utilities’
revolving credit agreements, and a substantial portion of FLAGA’s
debt. These debt agreements have interest rates that are generally
indexed to short-term market interest rates. At September 30,
2002 and 2001, combined borrowings outstanding under these
agreements totaled $131.0 million and $162.3 million, respective-
ly. Based upon weighted average borrowings outstanding under
these agreements during Fiscal 2002 and Fiscal 2001, an increase
in short-term interest rates of 100 basis points (1%) would have
increased our interest expense by $1.4 million and $2.4 million,
respectively.

The remainder of our debt outstanding is subject to fixed rates
of interest. A 100 basis point increase in market interest rates
would result in decreases in the fair value of this fixed-rate debt of
$52.5 million and $57.9 million at September 30, 2002 and
2001, respectively. A 100 basis point decrease in market interest
rates would result in increases in the fair value of this fixed-rate
debt of $56.4 million and $58.8 million at September 30, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Our long-term debt is typically issued at fixed rates of interest
based upon market rates for debt having similar terms and credit
ratings. As these long-term debt issues mature, we may refinance
such debt with new debt having interest rates reflecting then-cur-
rent market conditions. This debt may have an interest rate that is
more or less than the refinanced debt. In order to reduce interest
rate risk associated with near-term forecasted issuances of fixed-
rate debt, from time to time we enter into interest rate protection
agreements. 

The primary currency for which the Company has exchange
rate risk is the U.S. dollar versus the euro. We do not currently
use derivative instruments to hedge foreign currency exposure
associated with our international propane businesses, principally
FLAGA and Antargaz. As a result, the U.S. dollar value of our
foreign-denominated assets and liabilities will fluctuate with
changes in the associated foreign currency exchange rates. With
respect to FLAGA, the net effect of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates on assets and liabilities has been significantly limit-
ed because FLAGA’s U.S. dollar denominated financial instru-
ment assets and liabilities are substantially equal in amount. With
respect to our equity investment in Antargaz, a 10% decline in
the value of the euro versus the U.S. dollar would reduce the
book value of this investment by approximately $2.0 million,
which amount would be reflected in other comprehensive income. 

The following table summarizes the fair values of unsettled
market risk sensitive derivative instruments held at September 30,
2002 and 2001. It also includes the changes in fair value that
would result if there were an adverse change in (1) the market
price of propane of 10 cents a gallon; (2) the market price of nat-
ural gas of 50 cents a dekatherm; and (3) interest rates on ten-year
U.S. treasury notes of 100 basis points.

Change in 
Fair Value Fair Value

(Millions of dollars)

September 30, 2002:
Propane commodity price risk $ 9.8 $(11.1)
Natural gas commodity price risk 5.1 (6.0)
Interest rate risk (4.0) (6.6)

September 30, 2001:
Propane commodity price risk $(10.5) $(19.3)
Natural gas commodity price risk (1.5) (2.2)
Interest rate risk (3.0) (4.2)

Because the Company’s derivative instruments generally qualify
as hedges under SFAS 133, we expect that changes in the fair
value of derivative instruments used to manage commodity or
interest rate market risk would be substantially offset by gains or
losses on the associated anticipated transactions.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
In response to the SEC’s Release No. 33-8040, “Cautionary
Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting Policies,”
the Company has identified the following critical accounting poli-
cies that are most important to the portrayal of the Company’s
financial condition and results of operations. The following poli-
cies require management’s most subjective or complex judgments,
as a result of the need to make estimates regarding matters that
are inherently uncertain.

Litigation accruals and environmental remediation liabilities. 
We are involved in litigation regarding pending claims and legal
actions that arise in the normal course of our businesses. In addi-
tion, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiaries owned and operat-
ed a number of MGPs in Pennsylvania and elsewhere at which
hazardous substances may be present. In accordance with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States, the
Company establishes reserves for pending claims and legal actions
or environmental remediation obligations when it is probable that
a liability exists and the amount or range of amounts can be rea-
sonably estimated. Reasonable estimates involve management
judgments based on a broad range of information and prior expe-
rience. These judgments are reviewed quarterly as more informa-
tion is received and the amounts reserved are updated as neces-
sary. Such estimated reserves may differ materially from the actual
liability, and such reserves may change materially as more infor-
mation becomes available and estimated reserves are adjusted.

Regulatory assets and liabilities. Gas Utility and Electric Utility
are subject to regulation by the Pennsylvania Public Utility
Commission (“PUC”). In accordance with SFAS No. 71,
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,” we
record the effects of rate regulation in our financial statements as
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities. We continually assess
whether the regulatory assets are probable of future recovery by
evaluating the regulatory environment, recent rate orders and
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public statements issued by the PUC and the status of any pend-
ing deregulation legislation. If future recovery of regulatory assets
ceases to be probable, the elimination of those regulatory assets
would adversely impact our results of operations.

Depreciation and amortization of long-lived assets. We compute
depreciation on UGI Utilities property, plant and equipment on a
straight-line basis over the average remaining lives of its various
classes of depreciable property and on other property, plant and
equipment on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives gen-
erally ranging from two to 40 years. We also use amortization
methods and determine asset values of intangible assets other than
goodwill using reasonable assumptions and projections. Changes
in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
changes in intangible asset amortization methods or values could
have a material effect on our results of operations. As of
September 30, 2002, our regulatory assets totaled $62.0 million.

Impairment of goodwill. Certain of the Company’s business units
have goodwill resulting from purchase business combinations. In
accordance with SFAS 142, each of our reporting units with goodwill
is required to perform impairment tests annually or whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the value of goodwill may be impaired.
In order to perform these impairment tests, management must deter-
mine the reporting unit’s fair value using quoted market prices or, in
the absence of quoted market prices, valuation techniques which use
discounted estimates of future cash flows to be generated by the
reporting unit. These cash flow estimates involve management judg-
ments based on a broad range of information and historical results.
To the extent estimated cash flows are revised downward, the report-
ing unit may be required to write down all or a portion of its good-
will which would adversely impact our results of operations. As of
September 30, 2002, our goodwill totaled $644.9 million.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) recently
issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations” (“SFAS 143”); SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”);
SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and
64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical
Corrections” (“SFAS 145”); and SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” (“SFAS 146”). 

SFAS 143 addresses financial accounting and reporting for
legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS 143
requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred with
a corresponding increase in the carrying value of the related asset.
Entities shall subsequently charge the retirement cost to expense
using a systematic and rational method over the related asset’s use-
ful life and adjust the fair value of the liability resulting from the
passage of time through charges to operating expense. We adopted
SFAS 143 effective October 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS 143
did not have a material effect on our financial position or results

of operations. Our joint venture, AGZ Holdings, is required to
adopt SFAS 143 effective April 1, 2003. We are currently in the
process of evaluating the impact of SFAS 143 on AGZ Holdings. 

SFAS 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be
Disposed Of” (“SFAS 121”), and the accounting and reporting
provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of
Operations – Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions,” as it relates to the disposal of a segment
of a business. SFAS 144 establishes a single accounting model for
long-lived assets to be disposed of based upon the framework of
SFAS 121, and resolves significant implementation issues of SFAS
121. We adopted SFAS 144 effective October 1, 2002. The
adoption of SFAS 144 did not affect our financial position or
results of operations.

SFAS 145 rescinded SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses
from Extinguishment of Debt” (an amendment of APB Opinion
No. 30) (“SFAS 4”), effective May 15, 2002. SFAS 4 had required
that material gains and losses on extinguishment of debt be classi-
fied as an extraordinary item. Under SFAS 145, it is less likely that
a gain or loss on extinguishment of debt would be classified as an
extraordinary item in our Consolidated Statement of Income.
Among other things, SFAS 145 also amends SFAS 13, “Accounting
for Leases,” to require that certain lease modifications that have eco-
nomic effects similar to sale-leaseback transactions be accounted for
in the same manner as sale-leaseback transactions. The provisions of
SFAS 145 relating to leases became effective for transactions occur-
ring after May 15, 2002. The adoption of SFAS 145 did not affect
our financial position or results of operations.

SFAS 146 addresses accounting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination
Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity.” Generally, SFAS 146
requires that a liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal
activity, including contract termination costs, employee termination
benefits and other associated costs, be recognized when the liability
is incurred. Under EITF No. 94-3, a liability was recognized at the
date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan. SFAS 146 will be
effective for disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. 

Forward-Looking Statements
Information contained in this Financial Review and elsewhere in this
Annual Report may contain forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such statements use
forward-looking words such as “believe,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “con-
tinue,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may,” “will,” or other similar words.
These statements discuss plans, strategies, events or developments
that we expect or anticipate will or may occur in the future.

A forward-looking statement may include a statement of the
assumptions or bases underlying the forward-looking statement.
We believe that we have chosen these assumptions or bases in good
faith and that they are reasonable. However, we caution you that
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actual results almost always vary from assumed facts or bases, and
the differences between actual results and assumed facts or bases
can be material, depending on the circumstances. When consider-
ing forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the fol-
lowing important factors which could affect our future results and
could cause those results to differ materially from those expressed
in our forward-looking statements: (1) adverse weather conditions
resulting in reduced demand; (2) price volatility and availability of
propane, oil, electricity, and natural gas and the capacity to trans-
port to market areas; (3) changes in laws and regulations, including
safety, tax and accounting matters; (4) competitive pressures from
the same and alternative energy sources; (5) failure to acquire new
customers thereby reducing or limiting any increase in revenues;
(6) liability for environmental claims; (7) customer conservation
measures and improvements in energy efficiency and technology
resulting in reduced demand; (8) adverse labor relations; (9) large
customer, counterparty or supplier defaults; (10) liability for per-
sonal injury and property damage arising from explosions and

other catastrophic events, including acts of terrorism, resulting
from operating hazards and risks incidental to generating and dis-
tributing electricity and transporting, storing and distributing nat-
ural gas and propane including liability in excess of insurance cov-
erage; (11) political, regulatory and economic conditions in the
United States and in foreign countries; (12) interest rate fluctua-
tions and other capital market conditions, including foreign cur-
rency rate fluctuations; (13) reduced distributions from sub-
sidiaries; and (14) the timing and success of the Company’s efforts
to develop new business opportunities.

These factors are not necessarily all of the important factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
expressed in any of our forward-looking statements. Other
unknown or unpredictable factors could also have material
adverse effects on future results. We undertake no obligation to
update publicly any forward-looking statement whether as a result
of new information or future events.

Report of Management

The Company’s consolidated financial statements and other finan-
cial information contained in this Annual Report are prepared by
management, which is responsible for their fairness, integrity and
objectivity. The consolidated financial statements and related infor-
mation were prepared in accordance with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America and include amounts
that are based on management’s best judgments and estimates.

The Company maintains a system of internal controls.
Management believes the system provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded and that transactions
are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and are
properly recorded to permit the preparation of reliable financial
information. There are limits in all systems of internal control, based
on the recognition that the cost of the system should not exceed the
benefits to be derived. We believe that the Company’s internal con-
trol system is cost effective and provides reasonable assurance that
material errors or irregularities will be prevented or detected within a
timely period. The internal control system and compliance therewith
are monitored by the Company’s internal audit staff.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of
three members, none of whom is an employee of the Company.
This Committee is responsible for overseeing the financial report-
ing process and the adequacy of controls, and for monitoring the
independence of the Company’s independent accountants and the
performance of the independent accountants and internal audit
staff. The Committee recommends to the Board of Directors the

engagement of the independent accountants to conduct the annual
audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The
Committee is also responsible for maintaining direct channels of
communication between the Board of Directors and both the
independent accountants and internal auditors.

The independent accountants, who are appointed by the Board
of Directors and ratified by the shareholders, perform certain pro-
cedures, including an evaluation of internal controls to the extent
required by auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, in order to express an opinion on the consoli-
dated financial statements and to obtain reasonable assurance that
such financial statements are free of material misstatement.

Lon R. Greenberg
Chief Executive Officer

Anthony J. Mendicino
Chief Financial Officer
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
UGI Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and
the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of UGI Corporation and its subsidiaries at September 30,
2002 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management;
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these state-
ments in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which require that we plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by man-

agement, and evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-
tion. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. The consolidated financial statements of UGI
Corporation and its subsidiaries as of September 30, 2001, and for
each of the two years in the period ended September 30, 2001,
were audited by other independent accountants who have ceased
operations. Those independent accountants expressed an unquali-
fied opinion on those financial statements in their report dated
November 16, 2001.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, in fiscal 2002.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
November 15, 2002,

except for Note 18 as to which 
the date is December 16, 2002

THIS REPORT IS A COPY OF THE PREVIOUSLY ISSUED ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT OF ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
AND HAS NOT BEEN REISSUED BY ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP.

Report of Independent Public Accountants

UGI Corporation 2002 Annual Report

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
UGI Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of UGI Corporation and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2001
and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended September 30, 2001. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stan-
dards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of mate-
rial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting prin-
ciples used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of UGI Corporation and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

As explained in Notes 1 and 3 to the financial statements,
effective October 1, 2000, the Partnership changed its methods
of accounting for tank installation costs and nonrefundable tank
fees and the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 133.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
November 16, 2001
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Year Ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000

Revenues
AmeriGas Propane $1,307.9 $1,418.4 $1,120.1
UGI Utilities 490.5 584.7 436.9
International Propane 46.7 50.9 50.5
Energy Services and other 368.6 414.1 154.2

2,213.7 2,468.1 1,761.7

Costs and Expenses
AmeriGas Propane cost of sales 632.1 836.0 628.3
UGI Utilities – gas, fuel and purchased power 290.3 374.8 218.1
International Propane cost of sales 22.6 28.4 29.7
Energy Services and other cost of sales 330.6 382.2 145.5
Operating and administrative expenses 597.5 517.8 461.2
Utility taxes other than income taxes 11.9 9.2 17.1
Depreciation and amortization 93.5 105.2 97.5
Provision for shut-down costs – Hearth USA™ – 8.5 –
Other income, net (17.4) (23.0) (27.8)

1,961.1 2,239.1 1,569.6

Operating Income 252.6 229.0 192.1
Income (loss) from equity investees 8.5 (1.6) (0.9)
Interest expense (109.1) (104.8) (98.5)
Minority interests in AmeriGas Partners (28.0) (23.6) (6.3)

Income before Income Taxes, Subsidiary Preferred Stock Dividends 
and Accounting Changes 124.0 99.0 86.4

Income taxes (46.9) (45.4) (40.1)
Dividends on UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock (1.6) (1.6) (1.6)

Income before accounting changes 75.5 52.0 44.7
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net – 4.5 –

Net Income $ 75.5 $ 56.5 $ 44.7

Earnings Per Common Share
Basic:

Income before accounting changes $ 2.74 $ 1.91 $ 1.64
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net – 0.17 –

Net income $ 2.74 $ 2.08 $ 1.64

Diluted:
Income before accounting changes $ 2.70 $ 1.90 $ 1.64
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net – 0.16 –

Net income $ 2.70 $ 2.06 $ 1.64

Average Common Shares Outstanding (millions)
Basic 27.550 27.163 27.219

Diluted 27.938 27.373 27.255

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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September 30,

Assets 2002 2001

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 194.3 $ 87.5
Accounts receivable (less allowances for doubtful accounts of $11.8 and $15.6, respectively) 157.7 180.8
Accrued utility revenues 8.1 11.1
Inventories 109.2 128.6
Deferred income taxes 10.4 25.2
Income taxes recoverable 1.7 –
Utility deferred fuel costs 4.3 –
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 44.3 25.7

Total current assets 530.0 458.9

Property, Plant and Equipment
AmeriGas Propane 1,028.6 984.0
UGI Utilities 883.3 855.2
Other 80.5 74.3

1,992.4 1,913.5
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (720.5) (645.5)

Net property, plant, and equipment 1,271.9 1,268.0

Other Assets
Goodwill and excess reorganization value 644.9 641.1
Intangible assets (less accumulated amortization of $10.3 and $5.8, respectively) 25.8 31.3
Utility regulatory assets 57.7 56.2
Other assets 84.1 94.7

Total assets $2,614.4 $2,550.2

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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September 30,

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 2002 2001

Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 148.7 $ 98.3
AmeriGas Propane bank loans 10.0 –
UGI Utilities bank loans 37.2 57.8
Other bank loans 8.6 10.0
Accounts payable 166.1 167.0
Employee compensation and benefits accrued 35.4 39.4
Dividends and interest accrued 41.5 38.4
Income taxes accrued – 11.6
Deposits and advances 63.0 55.6
Other current liabilities 75.9 89.4

Total current liabilities 586.4 567.5

Debt and Other Liabilities
Long-term debt 1,127.0 1,196.9
Deferred income taxes 200.2 182.4
Deferred investment tax credits 8.4 8.8
Other noncurrent liabilities 79.1 72.8

Commitments and contingencies (note 13)

Minority Interests
Minority interests in AmeriGas Partners 276.0 246.2

Preferred and Preference Stock
UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock Subject to Mandatory 

Redemption, without par value 20.0 20.0
Preference Stock, without par value (authorized – 5,000,000 shares) – –

Common Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock, without par value 

(authorized – 100,000,000 shares; issued – 33,198,731 shares) 396.6 395.0
Retained earnings 39.7 9.0
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 6.6 (13.5)

442.9 390.5
Treasury stock, at cost (125.6) (134.9)

Total common stockholders’ equity 317.3 255.6

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,614.4 $2,550.2
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Year Ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 75.5 $ 56.5 $ 44.7
Reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 93.5 105.2 97.5
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net – (4.5) –
Minority interests in AmeriGas Partners 28.0 23.6 6.3
Deferred income taxes, net 11.0 (5.5) 3.2
Net change in settled accumulated other comprehensive income 13.3 (16.9) –
Other, net 12.4 21.4 15.8
Net change in:

Accounts receivable and accrued utility revenues 12.6 (13.6) (63.4)
Inventories 19.7 (4.2) (26.1)
Deferred fuel costs (7.1) 9.9 (3.8)
Accounts payable (0.4) 5.8 52.0
Other current assets and liabilities (11.0) 25.8 6.5

Net cash provided by operating activities 247.5 203.5 132.7

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (94.7) (78.0) (71.0)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (0.7) (209.1) (65.3)
Proceeds from redemption of AGZ Bonds 17.7 – –
Net proceeds from disposals of assets 9.7 4.2 8.4
Investments in equity investees (0.3) (32.6) –
Other, net 1.9 2.2 6.4

Net cash used by investing activities (66.4) (313.3) (121.5)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Dividends on UGI Common Stock (44.8) (53.2) (41.2)
Distributions on AmeriGas Partners publicly held Common Units (53.5) (44.3) (39.1)
Issuance of long-term debt 81.1 308.2 209.7
Repayment of long-term debt (105.0) (137.0) (95.4)
AmeriGas Propane bank loans increase (decrease) 10.0 (30.0) 8.0
UGI Utilities bank loans increase (decrease) (20.6) (42.6) 13.0
Other bank loans increase (decrease) (2.2) 6.2 (6.8)
Issuance of AmeriGas Partners Common Units 49.7 39.8 –
Proceeds from sale of AmeriGas OLP interest – 50.0 –
Issuance of UGI Common Stock 11.0 7.6 3.8
Repurchases of UGI Common Stock – (1.0) (9.6)

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (74.3) 103.7 42.4

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash – (0.3) (0.2)

Cash and cash equivalents increase (decrease) $ 106.8 $ (6.4) $ 53.4

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
End of year $ 194.3 $ 87.5 $ 93.9
Beginning of year 87.5 93.9 40.5

Increase (decrease) $ 106.8 $ (6.4) $ 53.4

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



UGI Corporation 2002 Annual Report

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

31

Retained Accumulated Unearned
Earnings Other Compensation-

Common (Accumulated Comprehensive Restricted Treasury
Stock Deficit) Income (Loss) Stock Stock Total

Balance September 30, 1999 $394.8 $ (8.2) $ 0.5 $(1.7) $(136.2) $249.2

Net income 44.7 44.7
Reclassification of unrealized gains on available

for sale securities (0.5) (0.5)

Comprehensive income 44.7 (0.5) 44.2
Cash dividends on Common Stock

($1.525 per share) (41.4) (41.4)
Common Stock issued:

Employee and director plans (0.1) 1.5 1.4
Dividend reinvestment plan (0.2) 2.6 2.4

Common Stock reacquired (9.6) (9.6)
Amortization of unearned compensation-

restricted stock awards 1.0 1.0

Balance September 30, 2000 394.5 (4.9) – (0.7) (141.7) 247.2

Net income 56.5 56.5
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle – SFAS No. 133 (net of tax of $4.8) 7.1 7.1
Net loss on derivative instruments 

(net of tax of $7.9) (10.5) (10.5)
Reclassification of net gains on

derivative instruments (net of tax of $6.5) (10.3) (10.3)
Foreign currency translation adjustments

(net of tax of $0.1) 0.2 0.2

Comprehensive income 56.5 (13.5) 43.0
Cash dividends on Common Stock

($1.575 per share) (42.6) (42.6)
Common Stock issued:

Employee and director plans 0.3 5.5 5.8
Dividend reinvestment plan 0.2 2.3 2.5

Common Stock reacquired (1.0) (1.0)
Amortization of unearned compensation-

restricted stock awards 0.7 0.7

Balance September 30, 2001 395.0 9.0 (13.5) – (134.9) 255.6

Net income 75.5 75.5
Net loss on derivative instruments 

(net of tax of $0.4) (1.5) (1.5)
Reclassification of net losses on derivative instruments 

(net of tax of $11.6) 18.3 18.3
Foreign currency translation adjustments

(net of tax of $2.2) 4.4 4.4
Reclassification of foreign currency translation 

gain (net of tax of $0.5) (1.1) (1.1)

Comprehensive income 75.5 20.1 95.6
Cash dividends on Common Stock

($1.625 per share) (44.8) (44.8)
Common Stock issued:

Employee and director plans 1.0 7.4 8.4
Dividend reinvestment plan 0.6 2.0 2.6

Common Stock reacquired (0.1) (0.1)

Balance September 30, 2002 $396.6 $ 39.7 $ 6.6 $ – $ (125.6) $317.3

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1 – Organization and Significant Accounting Policies
Organization. UGI Corporation (“UGI”) is a holding company
that owns and operates natural gas and electric utility, electricity
generation, propane distribution, energy marketing and related
businesses in the United States. Through foreign subsidiaries and
joint-venture affiliates, UGI also distributes propane in Austria, the
Czech Republic, Slovakia, France and China. We refer to UGI and
its consolidated subsidiaries collectively as “the Company” or “we.”

Our utility business is conducted through our wholly owned
subsidiary, UGI Utilities, Inc. (“UGI Utilities”). UGI Utilities owns
and operates (1) a natural gas distribution utility (“Gas Utility”) in
parts of eastern and southeastern Pennsylvania and (2) an electricity
distribution utility (“Electric Utility”) and electricity generation
business (which together with Electric Utility are referred to herein
as “Electric Operations”) in northeastern Pennsylvania. 

We conduct a national propane distribution business through
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (“AmeriGas Partners”) and its principal
operating subsidiaries AmeriGas Propane, L.P. (“AmeriGas OLP”)
and AmeriGas Eagle Propane, L.P. (“Eagle OLP”). AmeriGas
Partners, AmeriGas OLP and Eagle OLP are Delaware limited part-
nerships. UGI’s wholly owned second-tier subsidiary AmeriGas
Propane, Inc. (the “General Partner”) serves as the general partner
of AmeriGas Partners and AmeriGas OLP. AmeriGas OLP and
Eagle OLP (collectively referred to as “the Operating Partnerships”)
comprise the largest retail propane distribution business in the
United States serving residential, commercial, industrial, motor fuel
and agricultural customers from locations in 46 states. We refer to
AmeriGas Partners and its subsidiaries together as “the Partnership”
and the General Partner and its subsidiaries, including the
Partnership, as “AmeriGas Propane.”

At September 30, 2002, the General Partner and its wholly
owned subsidiary Petrolane Incorporated (“Petrolane,” a predecessor
company of AmeriGas OLP) collectively held a 1% general partner
interest and a 49.1% limited partner interest in AmeriGas Partners,
and effective 50.6% and 50.5% ownership interests in AmeriGas
OLP and Eagle OLP, respectively. Our limited partnership interest
in AmeriGas Partners comprised 14,633,932 Common Units and
9,891,072 Subordinated Units. The remaining 49.9% interest in
AmeriGas Partners comprises 24,907,354 publicly held Common
Units representing limited partner interests. Effective November 18,
2002, the remaining 9,891,072 Subordinated Units held by us were
converted to Common Units (see Note 18).

The Partnership has no employees. Employees of the General
Partner conduct, direct and manage the activities of AmeriGas
Partners and AmeriGas OLP. The General Partner also provides
management and administrative services to AmeriGas Eagle
Holdings, Inc., the general partner of Eagle OLP, under a man-
agement services agreement. The General Partner is reimbursed
monthly for all direct and indirect expenses it incurs on behalf of
the Partnership including all General Partner employee compensa-
tion costs and a portion of UGI employee compensation and
administrative costs. Although the Partnership’s operating income
represents a significant portion of our consolidated operating
income, the Partnership’s impact on our consolidated net income
is considerably less due to the Partnership’s significant minority

interest; higher relative interest charges; and, prior to 2002, higher
effective income taxes associated with the Partnership’s pretax
income resulting from nondeductible goodwill amortization.

Our wholly owned subsidiary UGI Enterprises, Inc.
(“Enterprises”) conducts an energy marketing business primarily
in the Middle Atlantic region of the United States through its
wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Energy Services, Inc. (“Energy
Services”). Through other subsidiaries, Enterprises (1) owns and
operates a propane distribution business in Austria, the Czech
Republic and Slovakia (“FLAGA”); (2) owns and operates a heat-
ing, ventilation and air-conditioning service business in the
Middle Atlantic states (“HVAC”); and (3) participates in propane
joint-venture businesses in France and China.

UGI is exempt from registration as a holding company because
it files an annual exemption statement with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and is not otherwise subject
to regulation under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of
1935 except for acquisitions under Section 9(a)(2). UGI is not
subject to regulation by the Pennsylvania Public Utility
Commission (“PUC”).

Consolidation Principles. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of UGI and its majority-owned subsidiaries.
We eliminate all significant intercompany accounts and transac-
tions when we consolidate. We report the public’s limited partner
interests in the Partnership as minority interests. Entities in which
we own 50 percent or less and in which we exercise significant
influence over operating and financial policies are accounted for by
the equity method (see Note 19). Investments in equity investees
are included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Reclassifications. We have reclassified certain prior-period bal-
ances to conform with the current period presentation.

Use of Estimates. We make estimates and assumptions when
preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenues and expenses, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Regulated Utility Operations. Gas Utility and Electric Utility
(collectively, “Utilities”) are subject to regulation by the PUC. We
account for Gas Utility and Electric Utility in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 71,
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation”
(“SFAS 71”). SFAS 71 requires us to record the effects of rate reg-
ulation in the financial statements. If a separable portion of Gas
Utility or Electric Utility no longer meets the provisions of SFAS
71, we are required to eliminate the financial statement effects of
regulation for that portion of our operations.

On June 29, 2000, the PUC entered its order (“Gas
Restructuring Order”) in Gas Utility’s restructuring plan filed by
Gas Utility pursuant to Pennsylvania’s Natural Gas Choice and
Competition Act (“Gas Competition Act”). Based upon the provi-
sions of the Gas Restructuring Order and the Gas Competition
Act, we believe Gas Utility’s regulatory assets continue to satisfy
the criteria of SFAS 71. For further information on the impact of
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the Gas Competition Act and Pennsylvania’s Electricity Customer
Choice and Competition Act (“Electricity Choice Act”), see Note 4.

Derivative Instruments. Effective October 1, 2000, we adopted
SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”). SFAS 133, as amended, estab-
lishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments
and for hedging activities. It requires that all derivative instruments
be recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair
value. The accounting for changes in fair value depends upon the
purpose of the derivative instrument and whether it is designated
and qualifies for hedge accounting. To the extent a derivative
instrument qualifies and is designated as a hedge of the variability
of cash flows associated with a forecasted transaction (“cash flow
hedge”), the effective portion of the gain or loss on such derivative
instrument is generally reported in other comprehensive income
and the ineffective portion, if any, is reported in net income. Such
amounts reported in other comprehensive income are reclassified
into net income when the forecasted transaction affects earnings. If
a cash flow hedge is discontinued because it is probable that the
forecasted transaction will not occur, the net gain or loss is immedi-
ately reclassified into net income. To the extent derivative instru-
ments qualify and are designated as hedges of changes in the fair
value of an existing asset, liability or firm commitment (“fair value
hedge”), the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in
earnings along with changes in the fair value of the hedged asset,
liability or firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk.

The adoption of SFAS 133 resulted in an after-tax cumulative
effect charge to net income of $0.3 million and an after-tax cumu-
lative effect increase to accumulated other comprehensive income
of $7.1 million. The increase in accumulated other comprehensive
income is attributable to net gains on derivative instruments desig-
nated and qualifying as cash flow hedges on October 1, 2000.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 133, gains or losses on derivative
instruments associated with forecasted transactions generally were
recorded in net income when the forecasted transactions affected
earnings. If it became probable that the original forecasted transac-
tions would not occur, we immediately recognized in net income
any gains or losses on the derivative instruments.

For a detailed description of the derivative instruments we use,
our objectives for using them, and related supplemental informa-
tion required by SFAS 133, see Note 14.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. We define cash equiva-
lents as all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months
or less when purchased. We record cash equivalents at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates market value. We paid interest
totaling $106.2 million in 2002, $103.9 million in 2001, and $96.9
million in 2000. We paid income taxes totaling $48.0 million in
2002, $43.0 million in 2001, and $26.6 million in 2000. 

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenues from the sale of
propane principally as product is delivered to customers. Revenue
from the sale of appliances and equipment is recognized at the
time of sale or installation. We record Utilities’ regulated revenues
for service provided to the end of each month which includes an
accrual for certain unbilled amounts based upon estimated usage.

We reflect the impact of Utilities’ rate increases or decreases at the
time they become effective. Energy Services records revenues
when energy products are delivered to customers. 

Effective October 1, 2000, the Partnership applied the guid-
ance of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 entitled “Revenue
Recognition” (“SAB 101”) with respect to its annually billed non-
refundable tank fees. Under the new accounting method, revenues
from such fees are recorded on a straight-line basis over one year.
Prior to the change in accounting, such revenues were recorded
when billed. For a detailed description of this change in account-
ing and its impact on our results, see Note 3.

Inventories. Our inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. We determine cost principally on an average or first-in,
first-out (“FIFO”) method except for appliances for which we use
the specific identification method.

Earnings Per Common Share. Basic earnings per share reflect the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted
earnings per share include the effects of dilutive stock options and
common stock awards. In the following table, we present the
shares used in computing basic and diluted earnings per share for
2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000

Denominator (millions of shares):
Average common shares 

outstanding for basic computation 27.550 27.163 27.219
Incremental shares issuable for stock 

options and awards 0.388 0.210 0.036

Average common shares outstanding for
diluted computation 27.938 27.373 27.255

Income Taxes. AmeriGas Partners and the Operating Partnerships
are not directly subject to federal income taxes. Instead, their tax-
able income or loss is allocated to the individual partners. We
record income taxes on our share of (1) the Partnership’s current
taxable income or loss and (2) the differences between the book
and tax bases of the Partnership’s assets and liabilities. The
Operating Partnerships have subsidiaries which operate in corpo-
rate form and are directly subject to federal income taxes.

Gas Utility and Electric Utility record deferred income taxes in
the Consolidated Statements of Income resulting from the use of
accelerated depreciation methods based upon amounts recognized
for ratemaking purposes. They also record a deferred tax liability
for tax benefits that are flowed through to ratepayers when tem-
porary differences originate and record a regulatory income tax
asset for the probable increase in future revenues that will result
when the temporary differences reverse.

We are amortizing deferred investment tax credits related to
Utilities’ plant additions over the service lives of the related proper-
ty. Utilities reduces its deferred income tax liability for the future
tax benefits that will occur when investment tax credits, which are
not taxable, are amortized. We also reduce the regulatory income
tax asset for the probable reduction in future revenues that will
result when such deferred investment tax credits amortize.
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Related Depreciation. The
amounts we assign to property, plant and equipment of businesses
we acquire are based upon estimated fair value at date of acquisi-
tion. When we retire Utilities’ plant and equipment, we charge its
original cost and the net cost of its removal to accumulated depre-
ciation for financial accounting purposes. We record depreciation
expense for Utilities’ plant and equipment on a straight-line
method over the estimated average remaining lives of the various
classes of its depreciable property. Depreciation expense as a per-
centage of the related average depreciable base for Gas Utility was
2.5% in 2002 and 2.6% in each of 2001 and 2000. Depreciation
expense as a percentage of the related average depreciable base for
Electric Operations was 3.0% in each of 2002 and 2001, and
3.5% in 2000. We compute depreciation expense on plant and
equipment associated with our propane operations using the
straight-line method over estimated service lives generally ranging
from 15 to 40 years for buildings and improvements; 7 to 30
years for storage and customer tanks and cylinders; and 2 to 10
years for vehicles, equipment, and office furniture and fixtures.
Depreciation expense was $88.2 million in 2002, $75.7 million in
2001, and $69.3 million in 2000.

Effective October 1, 2000, the Partnership changed its method
of accounting for costs to install Partnership-owned tanks at cus-
tomer locations. Under the new accounting method, all costs to
install such tanks, net of amounts billed to customers, are capital-
ized and amortized over the estimated period of benefit not
exceeding ten years. For a detailed description of this change in
accounting and its impact on our results, see Note 3.

Intangible Assets. Intangible assets comprise the following at
September 30:

2002 2001

Subject to amortization:
Customer relationships, noncompete

agreements and other $ 36.1 $ 37.1
Accumulated amortization (10.3) (5.8)

$ 25.8 $ 31.3

Not subject to amortization:
Goodwill (a) $551.6 $547.8
Excess reorganization value 93.3 93.3

$644.9 $641.1

(a) The change in the carrying amount of goodwill from September 30, 2001 to
September 30, 2002 is principally the result of foreign currency translation.

Effective October 1, 2001, we early adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS
142”). SFAS 142 addresses the financial accounting and reporting
for acquired goodwill and other intangible assets and supersedes
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 17, “Intangible
Assets.” SFAS 142 addresses the financial accounting and reporting
for intangible assets acquired individually or with a group of other
assets (excluding those acquired in a business combination) at
acquisition and also addresses the financial accounting and report-

ing for goodwill and other intangible assets subsequent to their
acquisition. Under SFAS 142, an intangible asset is amortized over
its useful life unless that life is determined to be indefinite.
Goodwill, including excess reorganization value, and other intangi-
ble assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are subject to
tests for impairment at least annually. In accordance with the pro-
visions of SFAS 142, we ceased the amortization of goodwill and
excess reorganization value effective October 1, 2001.

We amortize customer relationship and noncompete agreement
intangibles over their estimated periods of benefit which do not
exceed 15 years. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 142, we amortized
goodwill resulting from purchase business combinations over 40
years, and excess reorganization value (resulting from Petrolane’s
July 1993 reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code) on a straight-line basis over 20 years. Amortization expense
of intangible assets was $4.6 million in 2002 including amortiza-
tion expense associated with customer contracts recorded in cost of
sales. Amortization expense of intangible assets in 2001 and 2000,
which includes amortization of goodwill and excess reorganization
value prior to the adoption of SFAS 142, was $27.7 million and
$26.5 million, respectively. Estimated amortization expense of
intangible assets during the next five fiscal years is as follows: Fiscal
2003 - $3.8 million; Fiscal 2004 - $3.4 million; Fiscal 2005 - $2.9
million; Fiscal 2006 - $2.4 million; Fiscal 2007 - $1.8 million.

The following table provides reconciliations of reported and
adjusted net income and diluted earnings per share as if SFAS 142
had been adopted as of October 1, 2000. Basic earnings per share
is not materially different from diluted earnings per share and,
therefore, is not presented:

Year Ended September 30,
2002 2001 2000

Net income:
Reported income before accounting changes $75.5 $ 52.0 $ 44.7
Add back goodwill and excess 

reorganization value amortization – 25.2 24.7
Adjust minority interests in AmeriGas Partners – (10.5) (9.7)
Adjust income tax expense – (0.7) (0.3)

Adjusted income before accounting changes 75.5 66.0 59.4 
Cumulative effect of accounting changes – 4.5 –

Adjusted net income $75.5 $ 70.5 $ 59.4

Diluted earnings per share:
Reported income before accounting changes $2.70 $ 1.90 $ 1.64
Add back goodwill and excess 

reorganization value amortization – 0.92 0.91
Adjust minority interests in AmeriGas Partners – (0.38) (0.36)
Adjust income tax expense – (0.03) (0.01)

Adjusted income per share before accounting 
changes 2.70 2.41 2.18

Cumulative effect of accounting changes – 0.17 –

Adjusted net income per share $2.70 $ 2.58 $ 2.18 

Note 1 continued
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In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142, we were
required to perform transitional goodwill impairment tests for each
of our reporting units having goodwill by March 31, 2002. In
addition, SFAS 142 requires that we perform impairment tests
annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate
that the value of goodwill might be impaired. No goodwill impair-
ments were recorded as a result of our SFAS 142 transitional
impairment tests or our annual impairment tests completed during
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.

Stock-Based Compensation. As permitted by SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”), we
apply the provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”), in recording compensa-
tion expense for grants of stock, stock options, and other equity
instruments to employees. For a description of stock-based com-
pensation and related disclosures, see Note 10.

Other Assets. Included in other assets are net deferred debt
issuance costs of $14.8 million at September 30, 2002 and $15.9
million at September 30, 2001. We are amortizing these costs
over the term of the related debt.

Computer Software Costs. We include in property, plant and equip-
ment costs associated with computer software we develop or obtain
for use in our businesses. We amortize computer software costs on a
straight-line basis over expected periods of benefit not exceeding ten
years once the installed software is ready for its intended use. 

Deferred Fuel Costs. Gas Utility’s tariffs contain clauses which
permit recovery of certain purchased gas costs through the appli-
cation of purchased gas cost (“PGC”) rates. The clauses provide
for periodic adjustments to PGC rates for the difference between
the total amount of purchased gas costs collected from customers
and the recoverable costs incurred. In accordance with SFAS 71,
we defer the difference between amounts recognized in revenues
and the applicable gas costs incurred until they are subsequently
billed or refunded to customers.

Environmental Liabilities. We accrue environmental investigation
and cleanup costs when it is probable that a liability exists and the
amount or range of amounts can be reasonably estimated. Our esti-
mated liability for environmental contamination is reduced to reflect
anticipated participation of other responsible parties but is not
reduced for possible recovery from insurance carriers. We do not dis-
count to present value the costs of future expenditures for environ-
mental liabilities. We intend to pursue recovery of any incurred costs
through all appropriate means, including regulatory relief. Gas
Utility is permitted to amortize as removal costs site-specific environ-
mental investigation and remediation costs, net of related third-party
payments, associated with Pennsylvania sites. Gas Utility is currently
permitted to include in rates, through future base rate proceedings, a
five-year average of such prudently incurred removal costs.

Foreign Currency Translation. Balance sheets of international sub-
sidiaries and investments in international propane joint ventures
are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at the bal-
ance sheet date. Income statements and equity method results are
translated into U.S. dollars using a weighted-average exchange rate
for each reporting period. Where the local currency is the func-
tional currency, translation adjustments are recorded in other com-
prehensive income. Where the local currency is not the functional
currency, translation adjustments are recorded in net income.

Comprehensive Income (Loss). Comprehensive income (loss)
comprises net income and other comprehensive income (loss).
Other comprehensive income (loss) principally results from gains
and losses on derivative instruments qualifying as cash flow
hedges and foreign currency translation adjustments. The compo-
nents of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at
September 30, 2001 and 2002 follows:

Derivative Foreign
Instruments Currency

Gains Translation
(Losses) Adjustments Total

Balance – September 30, 2001 $(13.7) $0.2 $(13.5)
Balance – September 30, 2002 $ 3.1 $3.5 $ 6.6

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements. The Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) recently issued SFAS No.
143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS
143”); SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”); SFAS No. 145,
“Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections” (“SFAS
145”); and SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities” (“SFAS 146”). 

SFAS 143 addresses financial accounting and reporting for
legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS 143
requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred with
a corresponding increase in the carrying value of the related asset.
Entities shall subsequently charge the retirement cost to expense
using a systematic and rational method over the related asset’s use-
ful life and adjust the fair value of the liability resulting from the
passage of time through charges to operating expense. We adopted
SFAS 143 effective October 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS 143
did not have a material effect on our financial position or results
of operations. Our joint venture, AGZ Holdings, is required to
adopt SFAS 143 effective April 1, 2003. We are currently in the
process of evaluating the impact of SFAS 143 on AGZ Holdings. 

SFAS 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be
Disposed Of” (“SFAS 121”), and the accounting and reporting
provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of
Operations – Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions,” as it relates to the disposal of a segment
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of a business. SFAS 144 establishes a single accounting model for
long-lived assets to be disposed of based upon the framework of
SFAS 121, and resolves significant implementation issues of SFAS
121. We adopted SFAS 144 effective October 1, 2002. The adop-
tion of SFAS 144 did not affect our financial position or results of
operations.

SFAS 145 rescinded SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses
from Extinguishment of Debt” (an amendment of APB Opinion
No. 30) (“SFAS 4”), effective for fiscal years beginning after May
15, 2002. SFAS 4 had required that material gains and losses on
extinguishment of debt be classified as an extraordinary item.
Under SFAS 145, it is less likely that a gain or loss on extinguish-
ment of debt would be classified as an extraordinary item in the
Consolidated Statement of Income. Among other things, SFAS
145 also amends SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” to require
that certain lease modifications that have economic effects similar
to sale-leaseback transactions be accounted for in the same manner
as sale-leaseback transactions. The provisions of SFAS 145 relating
to leases were effective for transactions occurring after May 15,
2002. The application of SFAS 145 did not affect our financial
position or results of operations during 2002. 

SFAS 146 addresses accounting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and replaces the guidance in Emerging Issues
Task Force (“EITF”) No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity.” Generally, SFAS 146 requires that a liability for costs
associated with an exit or disposal activity, including contract ter-
mination costs, employee termination benefits and other associat-
ed costs, be recognized when the liability is incurred. Under EITF
No. 94-3, a liability was recognized at the date an entity commit-
ted to an exit plan. SFAS 146 will be effective for disposal activi-
ties initiated after December 31, 2002. 

Note 2 – Acquisitions
On August 21, 2001, AmeriGas Partners, through AmeriGas OLP,
acquired the propane distribution businesses of Columbia Energy
Group (“Columbia Propane Businesses”) in a series of equity and
asset purchases pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement
dated January 30, 2001, and Amended and Restated August 7,
2001 (“Columbia Purchase Agreement”) by and among Columbia
Energy Group (“CEG”), Columbia Propane Corporation
(“Columbia Propane”), Columbia Propane, L.P. (“CPLP”), CP
Holdings, Inc. (“CPH”), AmeriGas Partners, AmeriGas OLP, and
the General Partner. The acquired businesses comprised the sev-
enth largest retail marketer of propane in the United States with
annual sales of over 300 million gallons from locations in 29 states.
The acquired businesses were principally conducted through
Columbia Propane and its approximate 99% owned subsidiary,
CPLP (referred to after the acquisition as “Eagle OLP”). AmeriGas
OLP acquired substantially all of the assets of Columbia Propane,
including an indirect 1% general partner interest and an approxi-
mate 99% limited partnership interest in Eagle OLP. 

The purchase price of the Columbia Propane Businesses consist-
ed of $201.8 million in cash. In addition, AmeriGas OLP agreed to
pay CEG for the amount of working capital, as defined, in excess of

$23 million. In April 2002, the Partnership’s management and CEG
agreed upon the amount of working capital acquired by AmeriGas
OLP and AmeriGas OLP made an additional payment for working
capital and other adjustments totaling $0.7 million. The Columbia
Purchase Agreement also provided for the purchase by CEG of lim-
ited partnership interests in AmeriGas OLP valued at $50 million
for $50 million in cash, which interests were exchanged for
2,356,953 Common Units of AmeriGas Partners having an estimat-
ed fair value of $54.4 million. Concurrently with the acquisition,
AmeriGas Partners issued $200 million of 8.875% Senior Notes due
May 2011, the net proceeds of which were contributed to AmeriGas
OLP to finance the acquisition of the Columbia Propane Businesses,
to fund related fees and expenses, and to repay debt outstanding
under AmeriGas OLP’s Bank Credit Agreement. The operating
results of the Columbia Propane Businesses are included in our
consolidated results from August 21, 2001.

The following table identifies the components of the purchase
price:

Cash paid $ 202.5
Cash received from sale of AmeriGas OLP limited partner interests (50.0)
Fair value of AmeriGas Partners’ Common Units issued in exchange

for the AmeriGas OLP limited partner interests 54.4 
Transaction costs and expenses 8.2 
Involuntary employee termination benefits and relocation costs 2.6 
Other liabilities and obligations incurred 1.0 

Total $ 218.7

As of September 30, 2002, substantially all involuntary employee
termination benefits and relocation costs had been paid.

The purchase price of the Columbia Propane Businesses has
been allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired as follows: 

Net current assets $ 16.7
Property, plant and equipment 182.8
Customer relationships and noncompete agreement

(estimated useful life of 15 and 5 years, respectively) 19.9
Other assets and liabilities (0.7)

Total $ 218.7

The following table presents unaudited pro forma income
statement and diluted per share data for 2001 and 2000 as if the
acquisition of the Columbia Propane Businesses had occurred as
of the beginning of those years: 

2001 2000

Revenues $2,838.3 $2,069.8
Income before accounting changes 50.8 39.5
Net income 55.3 39.5
Diluted earnings per share:

Income before accounting changes 1.86 1.45
Net income 2.02 1.45

Note 1 continued
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The pro forma results of operations reflect the Columbia Propane
Businesses’ historical operating results after giving effect to adjust-
ments directly attributable to the transaction that are expected to
have a continuing impact. They are not adjusted for, among other
things, the impact of normal weather conditions, operating synergies
and anticipated cost savings. In our opinion, the unaudited pro
forma results are not necessarily indicative of the actual results that
would have occurred had the acquisition of the Columbia Propane
Businesses occurred as of the beginning of the years presented or of
future operating results under our management. 

During 2001, Energy Services acquired two energy marketing
businesses and the Partnership acquired several small propane dis-
tribution businesses for total cash consideration of $5.4 million.
During 2000, the Partnership acquired several propane distribu-
tion businesses, and Enterprises acquired an HVAC business, for
net cash consideration of $65.3 million. The excess of the pur-
chase price over the amount allocated to the net assets acquired
for the 2000 acquisitions was approximately $42 million. The
operating results of these businesses have been included in the
consolidated results from their respective dates of acquisition. The
pro forma effect of these transactions was not material to our
2001 and 2000 results of operations. 

Note 3 – Changes in Accounting
Tank Fee Revenue Recognition. In order to apply the guidance of
SAB 101, effective October 1, 2000, the Partnership changed its
method of accounting for annually billed nonrefundable tank fees.
Prior to the change in accounting, nonrefundable tank fees for
installed Partnership-owned tanks were recorded as revenue when
billed. Under the new accounting method, revenues from such fees
are being recorded on a straight-line basis over one year. As a result
of this change in accounting, on October 1, 2000, we recorded an
after-tax charge of $2.1 million representing the cumulative effect
of the change in accounting on prior years. The change in account-
ing for nonrefundable tank fees did not have a material impact on
reported revenues in 2002 and 2001, and would not have had a
material impact on reported revenues in 2000. At September 30,
2002 and 2001, deferred revenues relating to nonrefundable tank
fees were $6.8 million and $6.2 million, respectively. 

Accounting for Tank Installation Costs. Effective October 1,
2000, the Partnership changed its method of accounting for tank
installation costs which are not billed to customers. Prior to the
change in accounting, costs to install Partnership-owned tanks at a
customer location were expensed as incurred. Under the new
accounting method, all such costs, net of amounts billed to cus-
tomers, are capitalized in property, plant and equipment and
amortized over the estimated period of benefit not exceeding ten
years. The Partnership believes that the new accounting method
better matches the costs of installing Partnership-owned tanks with
the periods benefited. As a result of this change in accounting, on
October 1, 2000, we recorded after-tax income of $6.9 million
representing the cumulative effect of the change in accounting on
prior years. The change in accounting for tank installation costs
did not have a material effect on 2001 net income.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes and Pro Forma
Disclosure. The cumulative effect reflected on the 2001
Consolidated Statement of Income and related diluted per share
amounts resulting from the above changes in accounting princi-
ples, as well as the cumulative effect resulting from the adoption
of SFAS 133 (see Note 1), comprise the following:

Diluted
Pre-Tax Income Tax After-Tax Earnings
Income (Expense) Income (Loss)

(Loss) Benefit (Loss) Per Share

Tank fees $ (3.5) $ 1.4 $ (2.1) $ (0.08)
Tank installation costs 11.3 (4.4) 6.9 0.25
SFAS 133 (0.4) 0.1 (0.3) (0.01)

Total $ 7.4 $ (2.9) $ 4.5 $ 0.16

The pro forma impact on 2000 net income and net income per
share after applying retroactively the changes in accounting for tank
installation costs and nonrefundable tank fees was not materially
different from reported amounts.

Note 4 – Utility Regulatory Matters

Gas Utility
Gas Competition Act. On June 22, 1999, the Gas Competition
Act was signed into law. The purpose of the Gas Competition Act
is to provide all natural gas consumers in Pennsylvania with the
ability to purchase their gas supplies from the supplier of their
choice. Under the Gas Competition Act, local gas distribution
companies (“LDCs”) like Gas Utility may continue to sell gas to
customers, and such sales of gas, as well as distribution services
provided by LDCs, continue to be subject to price regulation by
the PUC. LDCs serve as the supplier of last resort for all residen-
tial and small commercial and industrial (“core-market”) cus-
tomers unless the PUC approves another supplier of last resort.
The Gas Competition Act requires energy marketers seeking to
serve customers of LDCs to accept assignment of a portion of the
LDC’s pipeline capacity and storage contracts at contract rates,
thus avoiding the creation of stranded costs. After July 1, 2002, a
natural gas supplier may petition the PUC to avoid such contract
release or assignment. However, such petition may be granted
only if the LDC fully recovers the cost of contracts. The Gas
Competition Act, in conjunction with a companion bill, eliminat-
ed the gross receipts tax on sales of gas effective January 1, 2000.

On June 29, 2000, the PUC issued the Gas Restructuring
Order approving Gas Utility’s restructuring plan filed by Gas
Utility pursuant to the Gas Competition Act. Among other
things, the implementation of the Gas Restructuring Order result-
ed in an increase in Gas Utility’s core-market base rates effective
October 1, 2000. This base rate increase was designed to generate
approximately $16.7 million in additional net annual revenues. In
accordance with the Gas Restructuring Order, Gas Utility reduced
its core-market PGC rates by an annualized amount of $16.7 mil-
lion in the first 14 months following the October 1, 2000 base
rate increase.
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Effective December 1, 2001, Gas Utility was required to
reduce its core-market PGC rates by amounts equal to the margin
it receives from interruptible customers using pipeline capacity
contracted by Gas Utility for core-market customers. As a result,
Gas Utility operating results are more sensitive to the effects of
heating-season weather and less sensitive to the market prices of
alternative fuels.

Electric Utility
Electric Utility Restructuring Order. On June 19, 1998, the PUC
entered its Opinion and Order (“Electricity Restructuring Order”)
in Electric Utility’s restructuring proceeding pursuant to the
Electricity Choice Act. Under the terms of the Electricity
Restructuring Order, Electric Utility was authorized to recover
$32.5 million in stranded costs (on a full revenue requirements
basis which includes all income and gross receipts taxes) over a
four-year period beginning January 1, 1999 through a
Competitive Transition Charge (“CTC”) (together with carrying
charges on unrecovered balances of 7.94%) and to charge unbun-
dled rates for generation, transmission and distribution services.
Stranded costs are electric generation-related costs that traditional-
ly would be recoverable in a regulated environment but may not
be recoverable in a competitive electric generation market. Electric
Utility’s recoverable stranded costs included $8.7 million for the
buy-out of a 1993 power purchase agreement with an independ-
ent power producer. Under the terms of the Electricity
Restructuring Order and in accordance with the Electricity
Choice Act, Electric Utility generally could not increase the gener-
ation component of prices during the period that stranded costs
were being recovered through the CTC. Since January 1, 1999, all
of Electric Utility’s customers have been permitted to choose an
alternative generation supplier. Customers choosing an alternative
supplier during the stranded cost recovery period received a
“shopping credit.”

The PUC approved a settlement establishing rules for Electric
Utility Provider of Last Resort (“POLR”) service on March 28,
2002, and a separate settlement that modified these rules on June
13, 2002 (collectively the “POLR Settlement”) under which
Electric Utility terminated stranded cost recovery through its
CTC from commercial and industrial (“C&I”) customers on July
31, 2002, and from residential customers on October 31, 2002,
and is no longer subject to the statutory rate caps as of August 1,
2002 for C&I customers and as of November 1, 2002 for residen-
tial customers. Charges for generation service will (1) initially be
set at a level equal to the rates paid by Electric Utility customers
for POLR service under the statutory rate caps; (2)  may be raised
at certain designated times up to certain specified caps through
December 2004; and (3) may be set at market rates thereafter.
Electric Utility may also offer multiple-year POLR contracts to its
customers. The POLR Settlement provides for annual shopping
periods during which customers may elect to remain on POLR
service or choose an alternate supplier. Customers who do not
select an alternate supplier will be obligated to remain on POLR

service until the next shopping period. Residential customers who
return to POLR service at a time other than during the annual
shopping period must remain on POLR service until the date of
the second open shopping period after returning. C&I customers
who return to POLR service at a time other than during the
annual shopping period must remain on POLR service until the
next open shopping period, and may, in certain circumstances, be
subject to generation rate surcharges.

Formation of Hunlock Creek Energy Ventures. On December 8,
2000, a subsidiary of UGI Utilities contributed its coal-fired
Hunlock Creek generating station (“Hunlock”) and certain related
assets having a net book value of approximately $4.2 million, and
$6 million in cash, to Hunlock Creek Energy Ventures (“Energy
Ventures”), a general partnership jointly owned by us and a sub-
sidiary of Allegheny Energy, Inc. (“Allegheny”). The contribution
was recorded at carrying value and no gain was recognized by the
Company. Also on December 8, 2000, Allegheny contributed a
newly constructed, gas-fired combustion turbine generator to be
operated at the Hunlock site. Under the terms of our arrangement
with Allegheny, each partner is entitled to purchase 50% of the
output of the joint venture at cost. Total purchases from Energy
Ventures in 2002 and 2001 were $9.8 million and $8.0 million,
respectively.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
The following regulatory assets and liabilities are included in our
accompanying balance sheets at September 30:

2002 2001

Regulatory assets:
Income taxes recoverable $54.7 $51.8
Power agreement buy-out – 1.3
Other postretirement benefits 2.4 2.6
Deferred fuel costs 4.3 –
Other 0.6 0.5

Total regulatory assets $62.0 $56.2

Regulatory liabilities:
Other postretirement benefits $ 4.3 $ 4.3
Deferred fuel costs – 2.8

Total regulatory liabilities $ 4.3 $ 7.1

Utilities’ regulatory liabilities are included in “other current lia-
bilities” and “other noncurrent liabilities” on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. The Company’s regulatory assets do not earn a
return.

Note 4 continued
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Note 5 – Debt
Long-term debt comprises the following at September 30:

2002 2001

AmeriGas Propane:
AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes:

8.875%, due May 2011 (of which $40 in 2002 
includes unamortized premium of $1.5, 
effective rate – 8.25%) $ 241.6 $ 200.0

10%, due April 2006 (less unamortized discount of $0.2 
and $0.3, respectively, effective rate – 10.125%) 59.8 59.7

10.125%, due April 2007 85.0 100.0
AmeriGas OLP First Mortgage Notes:

Series A, 9.34% – 11.71%, due April 2001 through 
April 2009 (including unamortized premium of 
$7.9 and $9.2, respectively, effective rate – 8.91%) 167.9 189.2

Series B, 10.07%, due April 2001 through April 2005 
(including unamortized premium of $2.3 and $3.9, 
respectively, effective rate – 8.74%) 122.3 163.9

Series C, 8.83%, due April 2003 through April 2010 110.0 110.0
Series D, 7.11%, due March 2009 (including 

unamortized premium of $2.2 and $2.4, 
respectively, effective rate – 6.52%) 72.2 72.4

Series E, 8.50%, due July 2010 (including unamortized
premium of $0.1 and $0.2, respectively, effective 
rate – 8.47%) 80.1 80.2

AmeriGas OLP Acquisition Facility – 20.0
Other 6.9 10.5

Total AmeriGas Propane 945.8 1,005.9

UGI Utilities:
Medium-Term Notes:

7.25% Notes, due November 2017 20.0 20.0
7.17% Notes, due June 2007 20.0 20.0
7.37% Notes, due October 2015 22.0 22.0
6.73% Notes, due October 2002 26.0 26.0
6.62% Notes, due May 2005 20.0 20.0
7.14% Notes, due December 2005 (including

unamortized premium of $0.4 and $0.5, 
respectively, effective rate – 6.64%) 30.4 30.5

7.14% Notes, due December 2005 20.0 20.0
5.53% Notes, due September 2012 40.0 –

6.50% Senior Notes, due August 2003 (less unamortized
discount of $0.1 in 2001) 50.0 49.9

Total UGI Utilities 248.4 208.4

Other:
FLAGA Acquisition Note, due September 2002 

through September 2006 64.3 62.7
FLAGA euro special purpose facility 10.8 10.7
Other 6.4 7.5

Total long-term debt 1,275.7 1,295.2
Less current maturities (including net unamortized 

premiums of $2.9 and $3.3, respectively) (148.7) (98.3)

Total long-term debt due after one year $ 1,127.0 $1,196.9

Scheduled principal repayments of long-term debt due in fiscal
years 2003 to 2007 follows:

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

AmeriGas Propane $ 57.5 $55.1 $54.9 $113.2 $138.7
UGI Utilities 76.0 – 20.0 50.0 20.0
Other 12.3 6.1 11.1 47.6 1.4

Total $145.8 $61.2 $86.0 $210.8 $160.1

AmeriGas Propane
AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes. The 8.875% Senior Notes gener-
ally cannot be redeemed at our option prior to May 20, 2006. A
redemption premium applies thereafter through May 19, 2009.
However, prior to May 20, 2004, AmeriGas Partners may use the
proceeds of a public offering of Common Units to redeem up to
33% of the 8.875% Senior Notes at 108.875% plus accrued and
unpaid interest. The 10% Senior Notes generally cannot be
redeemed at our option prior to their maturity. The 10.125%
Senior Notes are redeemable prior to their maturity date. A
redemption premium applies until April 15, 2004. In November
2001, AmeriGas Partners prepaid $15 million of 10.125% Senior
Notes at a redemption price of 103.375%. AmeriGas Partners may,
under certain circumstances following the disposition of assets or a
change of control, be required to offer to prepay the Senior Notes.

AmeriGas OLP First Mortgage Notes. AmeriGas OLP’s First
Mortgage Notes are collateralized by substantially all of its assets.
The General Partner and Petrolane are co-obligors of the Series A,
B, and C First Mortgage Notes, and the General Partner is co-
obligor of the Series D and E First Mortgage Notes. AmeriGas
OLP may prepay the First Mortgage Notes, in whole or in part.
These prepayments include a make whole premium. Following
the disposition of assets or a change of control, AmeriGas OLP
may be required to offer to prepay the First Mortgage Notes, in
whole or in part.

AmeriGas OLP Bank Credit Agreement. AmeriGas OLP’s Second
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (“Bank Credit
Agreement”) consists of (1) a Revolving Credit Facility and (2) an
Acquisition Facility. AmeriGas OLP’s obligations under the Bank
Credit Agreement are collateralized by substantially all of its
assets. The General Partner and Petrolane are co-obligors of
amounts outstanding under the Bank Credit Agreement.

Under the Revolving Credit Facility, AmeriGas OLP may bor-
row up to $100 million (including a $35 million sublimit for let-
ters of credit) subject to restrictions in the AmeriGas Partners
Senior Notes indentures (see “Restrictive Covenants” below). The
Revolving Credit Facility may be used for working capital and gen-
eral purposes of AmeriGas OLP. The Revolving Credit Facility
expires October 1, 2003, but may be extended for additional one-
year periods with the consent of the participating banks represent-
ing at least 80% of the commitments thereunder. AmeriGas OLP
had borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility totaling $10
million at September 30, 2002, which we classify as bank loans.
There were no borrowings outstanding under the Revolving Credit
Facility at September 30, 2001. Issued and outstanding letters of
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credit, which reduce available borrowings under the Revolving
Credit Facility, totaled $19.8 million and $9.5 million at
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The Acquisition Facility provides AmeriGas OLP with the
ability to borrow up to $75 million to finance the purchase of
propane businesses or propane business assets. In addition, up to
$30 million of the Acquisition Facility may be used for working
capital purposes. The Acquisition Facility operates as a revolving
facility through October 1, 2003, at which time amounts then
outstanding will be immediately due and payable. 

The Revolving Credit Facility and the Acquisition Facility per-
mit AmeriGas OLP to borrow at prevailing interest rates, including
the base rate, defined as the higher of the Federal Funds rate plus
0.50% or the agent bank’s prime rate (4.75% at September 30,
2002), or at two-week, one-, two-, three-, or six-month Eurodollar
Rate, as defined in the Bank Credit Agreement, plus a margin. The
margin on Eurodollar Rate borrowings (which ranges from 1.00%
to 2.25%), and the Bank Credit Agreement commitment fee rate
(which ranges from 0.25% to 0.50%) are dependent upon
AmeriGas OLP’s ratio of funded debt to earnings before interest
expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”),
each as defined in the Bank Credit Agreement. The weighted-aver-
age interest rate on Revolving Credit Facility borrowings at
September 30, 2002 was 4.75%. The weighted-average interest rate
on Acquisition Facility loans outstanding at September 30, 2001
was 4.08%. AmeriGas OLP had the ability to borrow an additional
$67.7 million under the Acquisition Facility based upon eligible
propane business and asset expenditures made through September
30, 2002.

General Partner Facility. AmeriGas OLP also has a revolving cred-
it agreement with the General Partner under which it may borrow
up to $20 million for working capital and general purposes. This
agreement is coterminous with, and generally comparable to,
AmeriGas OLP’s Revolving Credit Facility except that borrowings
under the General Partner Facility are unsecured and subordinated
to all senior debt of AmeriGas OLP. Interest rates on borrowings
are based upon one-month offshore interbank offering rates.
Commitment fees are determined in the same manner as fees
under the Revolving Credit Facility. UGI has agreed to contribute
up to $20 million to the General Partner to fund such borrowings.

Restrictive Covenants. The Senior Notes of AmeriGas Partners
restrict the ability of the Partnership to, among other things, incur
additional indebtedness, make investments, incur liens, issue pre-
ferred interests, prepay subordinated indebtedness, and effect
mergers, consolidations and sales of assets. Under the Senior
Notes indentures, AmeriGas Partners is generally permitted to
make cash distributions equal to available cash, as defined, as of
the end of the immediately preceding quarter, if certain condi-
tions are met. These conditions include:

1. no event of default exists or would exist upon making such
distributions and

2. the Partnership’s consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio, as
defined, is greater than 1.75-to-1.

If the ratio in item 2 above is less than or equal to 1.75-to-1,
the Partnership may make cash distributions in a total amount
not to exceed $24 million less the total amount of distributions
made during the immediately preceding 16 fiscal quarters. At
September 30, 2002, such ratio was 2.41-to-1.

The Bank Credit Agreement and the First Mortgage Notes
restrict the incurrence of additional indebtedness and also restrict
certain liens, guarantees, investments, loans and advances, payments,
mergers, consolidations, asset transfers, transactions with affiliates,
sales of assets, acquisitions and other transactions. The Bank Credit
Agreement and First Mortgage Notes require the ratio of total
indebtedness, as defined, to EBITDA, as defined (calculated on a
rolling four-quarter basis or eight-quarter basis divided by two), to
be less than or equal to 4.75-to-1 with respect to the Bank Credit
Agreement and 5.25-to-1 with respect to the First Mortgage Notes.
In addition, the Bank Credit Agreement requires that AmeriGas
OLP maintain a ratio of EBITDA to interest expense, as defined, of
at least 2.25-to-1 on a rolling four-quarter basis. Generally, as long as
no default exists or would result, AmeriGas OLP is permitted to
make cash distributions not more frequently than quarterly in an
amount not to exceed available cash, as defined, for the immediately
preceding calendar quarter. At September 30, 2002, the Partnership
was in compliance with its financial covenants.

UGI Utilities
Revolving Credit Agreements. At September 30, 2002, UGI
Utilities had revolving credit agreements with four banks provid-
ing for borrowings of up to $97 million. These agreements expire
at various dates through September 2005. UGI Utilities may bor-
row at various prevailing interest rates, including LIBOR. UGI
Utilities pays quarterly commitment fees on these credit lines.
UGI Utilities had borrowings under these agreements totaling
$37.2 million at September 30, 2002 and $57.8 million at
September 30, 2001, which we classify as bank loans. The weight-
ed-average interest rates on UGI Utilities bank loans were 2.35%
at September 30, 2002 and 3.75% at September 30, 2001. 

Restrictive Covenants. UGI Utilities’ credit agreements have
restrictions on such items as total debt, debt service, and payments
for investments. They also require consolidated tangible net worth
of at least $125 million. At September 30, 2002, UGI Utilities was
in compliance with its financial covenants.

Other
At September 30, 2002, FLAGA’s multi-currency acquisition note
(“Acquisition Note”) consisted of a $14.5 million U.S. dollar
denominated obligation and a 50.5 million euro-denominated obli-
gation. During 2002, a portion of the euro-denominated acquisition
note was converted to a $16.7 million U.S. dollar denominated obli-
gation. The Acquisition Note bears interest at a rate of 1.25% over
one- to twelve-month euribor rates (as chosen by FLAGA from time
to time). The effective interest rates on the Acquisition Note at
September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001 were 4.86% and
5.42%, respectively. On or after September 10, 2003, FLAGA may
prepay the Acquisition Note, in whole or in part. Prior to March 11,
2005, such prepayments shall be at a premium.

Note 5 continued
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At September 30, 2002, FLAGA has a 15 million euro work-
ing capital loan commitment from a European bank. The work-
ing capital facility expires in September 2003, but may be extend-
ed with the bank’s consent. Loans under the working capital facil-
ity, as well as borrowings under FLAGA’s special purpose facility,
bear interest at market rates. The weighted-average interest rate on
FLAGA’s working capital facility at September 30, 2002 was
4.40%. Borrowings under the euro working capital facility at
September 30, 2002 and 2001 totaled $8.6 million and $10.0
million, respectively, and are classified as bank loans.

The FLAGA Acquisition Note, special purpose facility and the
working capital facility are subject to guarantees of UGI. In addi-
tion, under certain conditions regarding changes in the credit rat-
ing of UGI Utilities’ long-term debt, the lending bank may
require UGI to grant additional security or may accelerate repay-
ment of the debt.

Note 6 – Income Taxes
Income before income taxes comprises the following:

2002 2001 2000

Domestic $117.2 $103.0 $ 93.4
Foreign 6.8 (4.0) (7.0)

Total income before income taxes $124.0 $ 99.0 $ 86.4

The provisions for income taxes consist of the following:
2002 2001 2000

Current expense:
Federal $26.5 $39.2 $28.6
State 9.3 11.7 8.3
Foreign 0.1 – –

Total current expense 35.9 50.9 36.9
Deferred (benefit) expense:

Federal 11.8 (2.9) 5.7
State (0.4) (1.2) (0.2)
Foreign – (1.0) (1.9)
Investment tax credit amortization (0.4) (0.4) (0.4)

Total deferred (benefit) expense 11.0 (5.5) 3.2

Total income tax expense $46.9 $45.4 $40.1

A reconciliation from the statutory federal tax rate to our
effective tax rate is as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Statutory federal tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Difference in tax rate due to:

State income taxes, net of federal 5.3 7.3 7.5
Goodwill amortization – 4.4 5.8

Other, net (2.5) (0.8) (1.9)

Effective tax rate 37.8% 45.9% 46.4%

Deferred tax liabilities (assets) comprise the following at
September 30:

2002 2001

Excess book basis over tax basis of property, plant 
and equipment $199.2 $180.3

Regulatory assets 23.7 23.3
Pension plan asset 10.5 8.9
Other 17.0 12.6

Gross deferred tax liabilities 250.4 225.1

Self-insured property and casualty liability (9.0) (8.2)
Employee-related benefits (16.2) (14.5)
Premium on long-term debt (2.5) (3.2)
Deferred investment tax credits (3.5) (3.6)
Hearth USA™ shut-down costs – (3.3)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss – (9.7)
Operating loss carryforwards (13.3) (8.9)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2.4) (3.2)
Other (15.6) (15.1)

Gross deferred tax assets (62.5) (69.7)

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance 1.9 1.8

Net deferred tax liabilities $189.8 $157.2

Deferred income taxes of approximately $1.9 million have not
been provided on the excess of book basis over tax basis of our
equity investment in AGZ Holdings because the Company has no
present intent to dispose of this investment.

UGI Utilities had recorded deferred tax liabilities of approximate-
ly $35.5 million as of September 30, 2002 and $33.9 million as of
September 30, 2001, pertaining to utility temporary differences,
principally a result of accelerated tax depreciation, the tax benefits of
which previously were or will be flowed through to ratepayers. These
deferred tax liabilities have been reduced by deferred tax assets of
$3.5 million at September 30, 2002 and $3.6 million at September
30, 2001, pertaining to utility deferred investment tax credits. UGI
Utilities had recorded regulatory income tax assets related to these
net deferred taxes of $54.7 million as of September 30, 2002 and
$51.8 million as of September 30, 2001. These regulatory income
tax assets represent future revenues expected to be recovered through
the ratemaking process. We will recognize this regulatory income tax
asset in deferred tax expense as the corresponding temporary differ-
ences reverse and additional income taxes are incurred. 

Foreign net operating loss carryforwards of FLAGA totaled
approximately $33.0 million, $5.1 million of which expires
through 2007 and $27.9 million of which has no expiration date.
At September 30, 2002, deferred tax assets relating to operating
loss carryforwards include those of FLAGA and $2.3 million of
deferred tax assets associated with state net operating loss carryfor-
wards expiring through 2022. Substantially all of our deferred tax
valuation allowances relate to state operating loss carryforwards. 

Note 7 – Employee Retirement Plans
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. We spon-
sor a defined benefit pension plan (“UGI Utilities Pension Plan”) for
employees of UGI, UGI Utilities, and certain of UGI’s other wholly
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owned subsidiaries. In addition, we provide postretirement health
care benefits to certain retirees and a limited number of active
employees meeting certain age and service requirements, and postre-
tirement life insurance benefits to nearly all domestic active and
retired employees.

The following provides a reconciliation of benefit obligations,
plan assets, and funded status of these plans as of September 30:

Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2002 2001 2002 2001

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations – beginning of year $165.2 $150.9 $ 21.3 $ 19.7
Service cost 3.6 3.1 0.1 0.1
Interest cost 12.5 12.1 1.7 1.6
Plan amendments 0.4 – – –
Actuarial loss 18.6 7.9 5.8 1.8
Benefits paid (9.4) (8.8) (1.6) (1.9)

Benefit obligations – end of year $190.9 $165.2 $ 27.3 $ 21.3

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets – 

beginning of year $183.7 $223.5 $ 7.0 $ 6.4
Actual return on plan assets (8.3) (31.0) 0.1 0.2
Employer contributions – – 2.3 2.2
Benefits paid (9.3) (8.8) (1.6) (1.8)

Fair value of plan assets – end of year $166.1 $183.7 $ 7.8 $ 7.0

Funded status of the plans $(24.8) $ 18.5 $(19.5) $(14.3)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss 50.2 4.2 4.7 (1.4)
Unrecognized prior service cost 3.0 3.3 – –
Unrecognized net transition (asset) 

obligation (3.0) (4.6) 8.7 9.5

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost – end of year $ 25.4 $ 21.4 $ (6.1) $ (6.2)

Assumptions as of September 30:
Discount rate 6.8% 7.7% 6.8% 7.7%
Expected return on plan assets 9.5% 9.5% 6.0% 6.0%
Rate of increase in salary levels 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%

Net periodic pension income and other postretirement benefit
costs include the following components:

Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000

Service cost $ 3.6 $ 3.1 $ 3.2 $ 0.1 $ 0.1 $ 0.1
Interest cost 12.5 12.1 11.8 1.7 1.6 1.4
Expected return on assets (19.1) (18.9) (17.0) (0.3) (0.3) (0.3)
Amortization of:

Transition (asset) 
obligation (1.6) (1.6) (1.6) 0.9 0.9 0.9

Prior service cost 0.6 0.6 0.6 – – –
Actuarial gain – (1.2) – (0.1) (0.1) (0.2)

Net benefit cost (income) (4.0) (5.9) (3.0) 2.3 2.2 1.9
Change in regulatory 

assets and liabilities – – – 1.2 1.4 1.4

Net expense (income) $ (4.0) $ (5.9) $ (3.0) $ 3.5 $ 3.6 $ 3.3

UGI Utilities Pension Plan assets are held in trust and consist
principally of equity and fixed income mutual funds and a com-
mingled bond fund. UGI Common Stock comprised approxi-
mately 6% of trust assets at September 30, 2002. Although the
UGI Utilities Pension Plan projected benefit obligation exceeded
plan assets at September 30, 2002, plan assets exceeded accumu-
lated benefit obligations by approximately $7.2 million.

Pursuant to orders issued by the PUC, UGI Utilities has estab-
lished a Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association (“VEBA”)
trust to pay retiree health care and life insurance benefits and to
fund the UGI Utilities’ postretirement benefit liability. UGI Utilities
is required to fund its postretirement benefit obligations by deposit-
ing into the VEBA the annual amount of postretirement benefits
costs determined under SFAS No. 106, “Employers Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions.” The difference
between such amounts and amounts included in UGI Utilities’ rates
is deferred for future recovery from, or refund to, ratepayers. VEBA
investments consist principally of money market funds.

The assumed health care cost trend rates are 12.0% for fiscal
2003, decreasing to 5.5% in fiscal 2010. A one percentage point
change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would change
the 2002 postretirement benefit cost and obligation as follows:

1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on total service and interest costs $0.1 $(0.1)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $1.5 $(1.3)

We also sponsor unfunded retirement benefit plans for certain
key employees. At September 30, 2002 and 2001, the projected
benefit obligations of these plans were not material. We recorded
expense for these plans of $1.4 million in 2002, $1.2 million in
2001, and $0.9 million in 2000.

Defined Contribution Plans. We sponsor 401(k) savings plans for
eligible employees of UGI, UGI Utilities, AmeriGas Propane,
HVAC and certain of UGI’s other wholly owned domestic sub-
sidiaries. Generally, participants in these plans may contribute a por-
tion of their compensation on either a before-tax basis, or on both a
before-tax and after-tax basis. These plans also provide for either
mandatory or discretionary employer matching contributions at var-
ious rates. The cost of benefits under the savings plans totaled $4.5
million in 2002, $6.2 million in 2001, and $5.9 million in 2000.

Note 8 – Inventories
Inventories comprise the following at September 30:

2002 2001

Propane gas $ 40.4 $ 54.8
Utility fuel and gases 36.6 45.6
Materials, supplies and other 32.2 28.2

Total inventories $109.2 $128.6

Note 9 – Series Preferred Stock
The UGI Series Preferred Stock, including both series subject to
and series not subject to mandatory redemption, has 5,000,000

Note 7 continued
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shares authorized for issuance. We had no shares of UGI Series
Preferred Stock outstanding at September 30, 2002 or 2001.

UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock, including both series subject
to and series not subject to mandatory redemption, has 2,000,000
shares authorized for issuance. The holders of shares of UGI Utilities
Series Preferred Stock have the right to elect a majority of UGI
Utilities’ Board of Directors (without cumulative voting) if dividend
payments on any series are in arrears in an amount equal to four
quarterly dividends. This election right continues until the arrearage
has been cured. We have paid cash dividends at the specified annual
rates on all outstanding UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock.

At September 30, 2002 and 2001, UGI Utilities had outstanding
200,000 shares of $7.75 Series cumulative preferred stock. UGI
Utilities is required to establish a sinking fund to redeem on October
1 in each year, commencing October 1, 2004, 10,000 shares of its
$7.75 Series at a price of $100 per share. The $7.75 Series is
redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of UGI Utilities on or
after October 1, 2004, at a price of $100 per share. All outstanding
shares of $7.75 Series are subject to mandatory redemption on
October 1, 2009, at a price of $100 per share.

Note 10 – Common Stock and Incentive Stock Award Plans
Common Stock share activity for 2000, 2001 and 2002 follows: 

Issued Treasury Outstanding

Balance at September 30, 1999 33,198,731 (5,928,338) 27,270,393
Issued:

Employee and director plans – 62,525 62,525
Dividend reinvestment plan – 114,430 114,430

Reacquired – (453,639) (453,639)

Balance September 30, 2000 33,198,731 (6,205,022) 26,993,709
Issued:

Employee and director plans – 241,039 241,039
Dividend reinvestment plan – 98,812 98,812

Reacquired – (37,163) (37,163)

Balance September 30, 2001 33,198,731 (5,902,334) 27,296,397
Issued:

Employee and director plans – 321,863 321,863
Dividend reinvestment plan – 87,062 87,062

Reacquired – (3,592) (3,592)

Balance September 30, 2002 33,198,731 (5,497,001) 27,701,730

Stock Option and Incentive Plans. Under UGI’s current employee
stock option and incentive plans, we may grant options to acquire
shares of Common Stock, or issue awards of restricted stock, to key
employees. The exercise price for options granted under these plans
may not be less than the fair market value on the grant date. Grants
of stock options or awards of restricted stock under these plans may
vest immediately or ratably over a period of years, and stock options
generally can be exercised no later than ten years from the grant date.

Under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (“2000 Incentive Plan”),
awards representing up to 1,100,000 shares of Common Stock may
be granted in connection with stock options and awards of restrict-
ed stock. However, awards representing no more than 500,000

shares of restricted stock may be issued. In addition, the 2000
Incentive Plan provides that both option grants and restricted stock
awards may provide for the crediting of Common Stock dividend
equivalents to participants’ accounts. Dividend equivalents will be
paid in cash, and such payments may, at the participants’ request,
be deferred. Awards of restricted stock may be settled, at the option
of the Company, in shares of Common Stock, cash, or a combina-
tion of Common Stock and cash. The actual number of shares (or
their cash equivalent) ultimately issued, and the actual amount of
dividend equivalents paid, is dependent upon the achievement of
objective performance goals. During 2002 and 2001, the Company
made restricted stock awards representing 169,500 and 110,675
shares, respectively. At September 30, 2002, awards representing
280,175 shares of restricted stock were outstanding.

At September 30, 2002, there remained available for grant
options to acquire 111,861 shares of Common Stock under the
1997 Stock Option and Dividend Equivalent Plan (“1997
SODEP Plan”). Certain outstanding option grants under the
1997 SODEP Plan provided for the crediting of dividend equiva-
lents subject to UGI’s total shareholder return relative to a peer
group of companies during the three-year period ended December
31, 1999. Based upon such performance, no dividend equivalent
payments were made.

In addition to the 2000 Incentive Plan and the 1997 SODEP
Plan, we have non-qualified stock option plans under which we
may grant options to acquire shares of Common Stock to key
employees other than executive officers of UGI. 

In addition to these employee incentive plans, UGI may grant
options to acquire up to a total of 200,000 shares of Common
Stock to each of UGI’s nonemployee Directors. No Director may
be granted options to acquire more than 10,000 shares of
Common Stock in any calendar year, and the exercise price may
not be less than the fair market value of the Common Stock on
the grant date. Generally, all options will be fully vested on the
grant date. 

Stock option transactions under all of our plans for 2000,
2001, and 2002 follow:

Shares Average Option Price

Shares under option – September 30, 1999 1,215,561 $21.632

Granted 794,750 20.683
Exercised (30,000) 22.625
Forfeited (96,667) 22.302

Shares under option – September 30, 2000 1,883,644 21.181

Granted 33,600 25.875
Exercised (202,673) 20.807
Forfeited (12,333) 20.828

Shares under option – September 30, 2001 1,702,238 21.321

Granted 476,250 30.705
Exercised (291,978) 21.028

Shares under option – September 30, 2002 1,886,510 23.786

Options exercisable 2000 947,144 21.696
Options exercisable 2001 1,100,904 21.799
Options exercisable 2002 1,137,926 21.772
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The following table presents additional information relating to
stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2002:

Range of exercise prices
$20.00 - $30.60 - 
$25.875 $31.88

Options outstanding at September 30, 2002:
Number of options 1,410,260 476,250
Weighted average remaining

contractual life (in years) 6.25 9.29
Weighted average exercise price $21.379 $30.705

Options exercisable at September 30, 2002:
Number of options 1,109,926 28,000
Weighted average exercise price $21.583 $30.600

At September 30, 2002, 1,124,336 shares of Common Stock
were available for future option grants or restricted stock awards
under all of our stock option and incentive plans. 

Other Stock-Based Compensation Plans and Awards. Under the
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“2000
Propane Plan”), the General Partner may grant to key employees the
right to receive a total of 500,000 AmeriGas Partners Common
Units, or cash equivalent to the fair market value of such Common
Units, upon the achievement of performance goals. In addition, the
2000 Propane Plan may provide for the crediting of Partnership dis-
tribution equivalents to participants’ accounts. Distribution equiva-
lents will be paid in cash and such payments may, at the participants’
request, be deferred. The actual number of Common Units (or their
cash equivalent) ultimately issued, and the actual amount of distri-
bution equivalents paid, is dependent upon the achievement of
performance goals. Generally, each grant, unless paid, will terminate
when the participant ceases to be employed by the General Partner.
We also have a nonexecutive Common Unit plan under which the
General Partner may grant awards of up to a  total of 200,000
Common Units to key employees who do not participate in the
2000 Propane Plan. Generally, awards under the nonexecutive plan
vest at the end of a three-year period and will be paid in Common
Units and cash. The General Partner made awards under the 2000
Propane Plan and the  nonexecutive plan representing 43,250 and
66,075 Common Units in 2002 and 2001, respectively. At
September 30, 2002 and 2001, awards representing 105,825 and
65,325 Common Units, respectively, were outstanding.

Under the 1997 UGI Corporation Directors’ Equity
Compensation Plan (“1997 Directors’ Plan”), we make annual
awards to our nonemployee Directors of (1) “Units,” each repre-
senting an interest equivalent to one share of Common Stock, and
(2) Common Stock for a portion of their annual retainer. Through
December 31, 2002, Directors may also elect to receive the cash
portion of their retainer fee and all or a portion of their meeting
fees in the form of Units. The 1997 Directors’ Plan also provides
for the crediting of dividend equivalents in the form of additional
Units. Units and dividend equivalents are fully vested when credit-
ed to a Director’s account and will be converted to shares of
Common Stock and paid upon retirement or termination of serv-
ice. Units issued relating to annual awards and deferred compensa-

tion totaled 9,449, 11,556, and 12,017 in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. At September 30, 2002 and 2001, there were 63,185
and 53,736 Units, respectively, outstanding.

Fair Value Information. The per share weighted-average fair value
of stock options granted under our option plans was $4.91 in
2002, $4.35 in 2001, and $3.76 in 2000. These amounts were
determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which
values options based on the stock price at the grant date, the
expected life of the option, the estimated volatility of the stock,
expected dividend payments, and the risk-free interest rate over
the expected life of the option. 

The assumptions we used for option grants during 2002, 2001
and 2000 are as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Expected life of option 6 years 6 years 6 years
Expected volatility 28.8% 29.1% 26.5%
Expected dividend yield 6.7% 6.6% 6.2%
Risk free interest rate 4.7% 5.0% 6.6%

We use the intrinsic value method prescribed by APB 25 for
our stock-based employee compensation plans. We recognized
total stock-based compensation expense (income) of $5.7 million
in 2002, $2.7 million in 2001, and $(0.8) million in 2000. Stock-
based compensation income in 2000 reflects the reversal of $2.1
million of accrued dividend equivalent payments relating to the
1997 SODEP Plan. If we had determined compensation expense
under the fair value method prescribed by SFAS 123, net income
and diluted earnings per share for 2002, 2001 and 2000 would
have been as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Net income:
As reported $75.5 $56.5 $44.7
Pro forma 74.5 55.7 44.2

Diluted earnings per share:
As reported $2.70 $2.06 $1.64
Pro forma 2.67 2.03 1.62

Stock Ownership Policy. Under the terms of our Stock Ownership
Policy, executives and certain key employees are required to own UGI
Common Stock having a fair value equal to approximately 40% to
450% of their base salaries. Prior to the enactment of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, we offered full recourse, interest-bearing loans to
employees in order to assist them in meeting the ownership require-
ments. Each loan may not exceed ten years and is collateralized by
the Common Stock purchased. At September 30, 2002 and 2001,
loans outstanding totaled $3.5 million and $4.6 million, respectively.
The Company is no longer offering loans under this program.

Note 11 – Preference Stock Purchase Rights
Holders of our Common Stock own one-half of one right (as
described below) for each outstanding share of Common Stock. The
rights expire in 2006. Each right entitles the holder to purchase one
one-hundredth of a share of First Series Preference Stock, without par
value, at an exercise price of $120 per one one-hundredth of a share

Note 10 continued
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or, under the circumstances summarized below, to purchase the
Common Stock described in the following paragraph. The rights are
exercisable only if a person or group, other than certain underwriters:

1. acquires 20% or more of our Common Stock (“Acquiring
Person”) or

2. announces or commences a tender offer for 30% or more of
our Common Stock.

We are entitled to redeem the rights at five cents per right at
any time before the earlier of:

1. the expiration of the rights in April 2006 or
2. ten days after a person or group has acquired 20% of our

Common Stock if a majority of continuing Directors con-
cur and, in certain circumstances, thereafter.

Each holder of a right, other than an Acquiring Person, is enti-
tled to purchase, at the exercise price of the right, Common Stock
having a market value of twice the exercise price of the right if:

1. an Acquiring Person merges with UGI or engages in certain
other transactions with us or

2. a person acquires 40% or more of our Common Stock.
In addition, if, after UGI (or an Acquiring Person) publicly

announces that an Acquiring Person has become such, UGI engages
in a merger or other business combination transaction in which:

1. we are not the surviving corporation, or
2. we are the surviving corporation, but our Common Stock is

changed or exchanged, or
3. 50% or more of our assets or earning power is sold or trans-

ferred, then each holder of a right is entitled to purchase, at
the exercise price of the right, common stock of the acquir-
ing company having a market value of twice the exercise
price of the right.

The rights have no voting or dividend rights and, until exercis-
able, have no dilutive effect on our earnings.

Note 12 – Partnership Distributions
The Partnership makes distributions to its partners approximately 45
days after the end of each fiscal quarter in a total amount equal to its
Available Cash for such quarter. Available Cash generally means:

1. all cash on hand at the end of such quarter,
2. plus all additional cash on hand as of the date of determina-

tion resulting from borrowings after the end of such quarter,
3. less the amount of cash reserves established by the General

Partner in its reasonable discretion. 
The General Partner may establish reserves for the proper con-

duct of the Partnership’s business and for distributions during the
next four quarters. In addition, certain of the Partnership’s debt
agreements require reserves be established for the payment of debt
principal and interest.

Distributions of Available Cash have generally been made 98% to
Common and Subordinated unitholders and 2% to the General
Partner. The Partnership may pay an incentive distribution if
Available Cash exceeds the Minimum Quarterly Distribution of
$0.55 (“MQD”) on all units. If there was sufficient Available Cash,
the holders of Common Units had the right to receive the MQD,
plus any arrearages, before the distribution of Available Cash to
holders of Subordinated Units. Common Units will not accrue

arrearages for any quarter after all the remaining Subordinated Units
have been converted to Common Units pursuant to the terms of the
Partnership Agreement. Effective November 18, 2002, the remain-
ing Subordinated Units held by the General Partner as of September
30, 2002 were converted to Common Units (see Note 18).

Note 13 – Commitments and Contingencies
We lease various buildings and transportation, computer, and office
equipment under operating leases. Certain of our leases contain
renewal and purchase options and also contain escalation clauses.
Our aggregate rental expense for such leases was $46.5 million in
2002, $38.4 million in 2001, and $34.1 million in 2000.

Minimum future payments under operating leases that have
initial or remaining noncancelable terms in excess of one year are
as follows:

After
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2007

AmeriGas Propane $35.0 $29.5 $25.4 $20.9 $16.8 $41.2
UGI Utilities 2.8 2.6 2.1 1.8 1.6 4.0
International Propane 

and other 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.2 – –

Total $38.9 $32.8 $27.9 $22.9 $18.4 $45.2

Gas Utility has gas supply agreements with producers and mar-
keters with terms of less than one year. Gas Utility also has agree-
ments for firm pipeline transportation and storage capacity, which
Gas Utility may terminate at various dates through 2015. Gas
Utility’s costs associated with transportation and storage capacity
agreements are included in its annual PGC filing with the PUC
and are recoverable through PGC rates. In addition, Gas Utility
has short-term gas supply agreements which permit it to purchase
certain of its gas supply needs on a firm or interruptible basis at
spot-market prices.

Electric Utility purchases its capacity requirements and electric
energy needs under contracts with various suppliers and on the
spot market. Contracts with producers for capacity and energy
needs expire at various dates through December 2006. 

Energy Services enters into fixed price contracts with suppliers
to purchase natural gas to meet its sales commitments. Generally,
these contracts have terms of less than two years.

The following table presents contractual obligations under Gas
Utility, Electric Utility and Energy Services supply contracts exist-
ing at September 30, 2002:

After
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2007

Gas and electric
supply contracts $106.4 $ 96.5 $56.9 $23.3 $14.9 $92.4

Energy Services 
supply contracts 145.8 11.7 – – – –

Total $252.2 $108.2 $56.9 $23.3 $14.9 $92.4

The Partnership also enters into contracts to purchase propane
to meet a portion of its supply requirements. Generally, these con-
tracts are one- or two-year agreements subject to annual review
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and call for payment based on either fixed prices or market prices
at date of delivery.

The Partnership has succeeded to certain lease guarantee obli-
gations of Petrolane relating to Petrolane’s divestiture of non-
propane operations before its 1989 acquisition by QFB Partners.
Future lease payments under these leases total approximately 
$20 million at September 30, 2002. The leases expire through
2010 and some of them are currently in default. The Partnership
has succeeded to the indemnity agreement of Petrolane by which
Texas Eastern Corporation (“Texas Eastern”), a prior owner of
Petrolane, agreed to indemnify Petrolane against any liabilities
arising out of the conduct of businesses that do not relate to, and
are not a part of, the propane business, including lease guarantees.
In December 1999, Texas Eastern filed for dissolution under the
Delaware General Corporation Law. In May 2001, Petrolane filed
a declaratory judgment action in the Delaware Chancery Court
seeking confirmation of Texas Eastern’s indemnification obliga-
tions and judicial supervision of Texas Eastern’s dissolution to
ensure that its indemnification obligations to Petrolane are paid or
adequately provided for in accordance with law. Those proceed-
ings are pending. In a Liquidation and Winding Up Agreement
dated September 17, 2002, PanEnergy Corporation (“PanEnergy”),
Texas Eastern’s sole stockholder, agreed to assume all of Texas
Eastern’s liabilities as of December 20, 2002, to the extent of the
value of Texas Eastern’s assets transferred to PanEnergy as of that
date (which is expected to exceed $94 million), and to the extent
that such liabilities arise within ten years from Texas Eastern’s date
of dissolution. Notwithstanding the dissolution proceeding, and
based on Texas Eastern previously having satisfied directly default-
ed lease obligations without the Partnership’s having to honor its
guarantee, we believe that the probability that the Partnership will
be required to directly satisfy the lease obligations subject to the
indemnification agreement is remote. 

Columbia Propane, CPLP, and CPH (collectively, the
“Company Parties”) agreed to indemnify the former general part-
ners of National Propane Partners, L.P. and certain of their affili-
ates (collectively, “National General Partners”) against certain
income tax and other losses that the National General Partners
may sustain as a result of the 1999 acquisition by CPLP of the
National Propane business (the “1999 Acquisition”) or its opera-
tion of the business after the 1999 Acquisition.

CEG has agreed to indemnify AmeriGas Partners, AmeriGas
OLP, the General Partner (collectively, the “Buyer Parties”) and
the Company Parties against any losses that they sustain under
the 1999 Acquisition Agreement and related agreements
(“Losses”), including claims asserted by the National General
Partners (“National Claims”), to the extent such claims are based
on acts or omissions of CEG or the Company Parties prior to the
acquisition of the Columbia Propane Businesses by AmeriGas
OLP on August 21, 2001 (the “2001 Acquisition”). The Buyer
Parties have agreed to indemnify CEG against Losses, including
National Claims, to the extent such claims are based on acts or
omissions of the Buyer Parties or the Company Parties after the
2001 Acquisition. The Seller and Buyer Parties have agreed to

apportion certain losses resulting from a National Claim to the
extent such losses result from the 2001 Acquisition itself.

From the late 1800s through the mid-1900s, UGI Utilities and
its former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of manufac-
tured gas plants (“MGPs”) prior to the general availability of natural
gas. Some constituents of coal tars and other residues of the manu-
factured gas process are today considered hazardous substances under
the Superfund Law and may be present on the sites of former
MGPs. Between 1882 and 1953, UGI Utilities owned the stock of
subsidiary gas companies in Pennsylvania and elsewhere and also
operated the businesses of some gas companies under agreement.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Public Utility Holding
Company Act of 1935, UGI Utilities divested all of its utility
operations other than those which now constitute Gas Utility and
Electric Utility.

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for investigation and
remediation of hazardous substances at Pennsylvania MGP sites to
be material to its results of operations because Gas Utility is cur-
rently permitted to include in rates, through future base rate pro-
ceedings, prudently incurred remediation costs associated with
such sites. UGI Utilities has been notified of several sites outside
Pennsylvania on which (1) MGPs were formerly operated by it or
owned or operated by its former subsidiaries and (2) either envi-
ronmental agencies or private parties are investigating the extent
of environmental contamination or performing environmental
remediation. UGI Utilities is currently litigating two claims
against it relating to out-of-state sites.

Management believes that under applicable law UGI Utilities
should not be liable in those instances in which a former sub-
sidiary operated an MGP. There could be, however, significant
future costs of an uncertain amount associated with environmen-
tal damage caused by MGPs outside Pennsylvania that UGI
Utilities directly operated, or that were owned or operated by for-
mer subsidiaries of UGI Utilities, if a court were to conclude that
the subsidiary’s separate corporate form should be disregarded.

UGI Utilities has filed suit against more than fifty insurance
companies alleging that the defendants breached contracts of
insurance by failing to indemnify UGI Utilities for certain envi-
ronmental costs. The suit seeks to recover more than $11 million
in such costs. During 2002, 2001 and 2000, UGI Utilities entered
into settlement agreements with several of the insurers and record-
ed pretax income of $0.4 million, $0.9 million and $4.5 million,
respectively, which amounts are included in operating and admin-
istrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

In addition to these matters, there are other pending claims and
legal actions arising in the normal course of our businesses. We
cannot predict with certainty the final results of environmental and
other matters. However, it is reasonably possible that some of them
could be resolved unfavorably to us. We believe, after consultation
with counsel, that damages or settlements, if any, recovered by the
plaintiffs in such claims or actions will not have a material adverse
effect on our financial position but could be material to our oper-
ating results or cash flows in future periods depending on the
nature and timing of future developments with respect to these
matters and the amounts of future operating results and cash flows.

Note 13 continued
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Note 14 – Financial Instruments
In accordance with its propane price risk management policy, the
Partnership uses derivative instruments, including price swap and
option contracts and contracts for the forward sale of propane, to
manage the cost of a portion of its forecasted purchases of propane
and to manage market risk associated with propane storage invento-
ries. These derivative instruments have been designated by the
Partnership as cash flow or fair value hedges under SFAS 133. The
fair values of these derivative instruments are affected by changes in
propane product prices. In addition to these derivative instruments,
the Partnership may also enter into contracts for the forward pur-
chase of propane as well as fixed-price supply agreements to manage
propane market price risk. These contracts generally qualify for the
normal purchases and normal sales exception of SFAS 133 and
therefore are not adjusted to fair value. FLAGA also uses derivative
instruments, principally price swap contracts, to reduce market risk
associated with purchases of propane. These contracts may or may
not qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS 133.

Energy Services uses exchange-traded natural gas futures con-
tracts to manage market risk associated with forecasted purchases
of natural gas it sells under firm commitments. These derivative
instruments are designated as cash flow hedges. The fair values of
these futures contracts are affected by changes in natural gas prices.

In addition, we have, on occasion, used a managed program of
derivative instruments including natural gas and oil futures con-
tracts, to preserve gross margin associated with certain of our nat-
ural gas customers. These contracts are generally designated as
cash flow hedges.

Gas Utility and Electric Utility are parties to a number of con-
tracts that have elements of a derivative instrument. These con-
tracts include, among others, binding purchase orders, contracts
which provide for the delivery of natural gas, and service contracts
that require the counterparty to provide commodity storage, trans-
portation or capacity service to meet our normal sales commit-
ments. Although many of these contracts have the requisite ele-
ments of a derivative instrument, these contracts are not subject to
the accounting requirements of SFAS 133 because they provide for
the delivery of products or services in quantities that are expected
to be used in the normal course of operating our business or the
value of the contract is directly associated with the price or value of
a service. 

On occasion, we enter into interest rate protection agreements
(“IRPAs”) to reduce market interest rate risk associated with fore-
casted debt issuances. We designate these IRPAs as cash flow
hedges. Gains or losses on IRPAs are included in other compre-
hensive income and are reclassified to interest expense as the
interest expense on the associated debt issue affects earnings.

During the year ended September 30, 2002, the net pre-tax loss
recognized in earnings representing cash flow hedge ineffectiveness
was $2.1 million. During the year ended September 30, 2001,
such gain or loss was not material. The amount of cash flow hedge
gains reclassified to net income because it became probable that
the original forecasted transactions would not occur was $1.0 mil-
lion in 2001. This amount is included in other income.

Gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive
income at September 30, 2002 relating to cash flow hedges will be
reclassified into (1) cost of sales when the forecasted purchase of
propane or natural gas subject to the hedges impacts net income
and (2) interest expense when interest on anticipated issuances of
fixed-rate long-term debt is reflected in net income. Included in
accumulated other comprehensive income at September 30, 2002
are net after-tax losses of approximately $3.8 million from IRPAs
associated with forecasted issuances of debt generally anticipated to
occur during the next two years. The amount of this net loss which
is expected to be reclassified into net income during the next twelve
months is not material. Also included in accumulated other com-
prehensive income at September 30, 2002 are net after-tax gains of
approximately $7.0 million principally associated with future pur-
chases of natural gas or propane generally anticipated to occur dur-
ing the next twelve months. The actual amount of gains or losses
on unsettled derivative instruments that ultimately is reclassified
into net income will depend upon the value of such derivative con-
tracts when settled. The fair value of derivative instruments is
included in other current assets, other current liabilities and other
noncurrent liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

The carrying amounts of financial instruments included in
current assets and current liabilities (excluding unsettled derivative
instruments and current maturities of long-term debt) approxi-
mate their fair values because of their short-term nature. The car-
rying amounts and estimated fair values of our remaining finan-
cial instruments (including unsettled derivative instruments) at
September 30 are as follows:

Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value

2002:
Natural gas futures contracts $ 5.1 $ 5.1
Propane swap and option contracts 9.8 9.8
Interest rate protection agreements (4.0) (4.0)
Long-term debt 1,275.7 1,328.1
UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock 20.0 20.4

2001:
Natural gas futures contracts $ (1.5) $ (1.5)
Propane swap, option and forward sales contracts (10.5) (10.5)
Interest rate protection agreements (3.0) (3.0)
Available for sale securities 18.3 18.3
Long-term debt 1,295.2 1,386.5
UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock 20.0 21.4

We estimate the fair value of long-term debt by using current
market prices and by discounting future cash flows using rates
available for similar type debt. The estimated fair value of UGI
Utilities Series Preferred Stock is based on the fair value of
redeemable preferred stock with similar credit ratings and
redemption features. Fair values of derivative instruments reflect
the estimated amounts that we would receive or pay to terminate
the contracts at the reporting date based upon quoted market
prices of comparable contracts at September 30, 2002 and 2001.



We have financial instruments such as short-term investments
and trade accounts receivable, which could expose us to concentra-
tions of credit risk. We limit our credit risk from short-term invest-
ments by investing only in investment-grade commercial paper
and in U.S. Government securities. The credit risk from trade
accounts receivable is limited because we have a large customer
base, which extends across many different U.S. markets. We
attempt to minimize our credit risk associated with our derivative
financial instruments through the application of credit policies.

Note 15 – Energy Services Accounts Receivable
Securitization Facility
Energy Services has a receivables purchase facility (“Receivables
Facility”) with an issuer of receivables-backed commercial paper
expiring November 30, 2004. Under the Receivables Facility,
Energy Services transfers, on an ongoing basis and without
recourse, its trade accounts receivable to its wholly owned, special
purpose, bankruptcy-remote subsidiary, Energy Services Funding
Corporation (“ESFC”) which is consolidated for financial state-
ment purposes. ESFC, in turn, has sold, and subject to certain
conditions, may from time to time sell, an undivided interest in
these receivables for up to $50 million in proceeds to a commer-
cial paper conduit of a major bank. The proceeds of these sales are
less than the face amount of the accounts receivable sold by an
amount that approximates the purchaser’s financing cost of issu-
ing its own receivables-backed commercial paper. ESFC was creat-
ed and has been structured to isolate its assets from creditors of
Energy Services and its affiliates, including UGI. In accordance
with a servicing arrangement, Energy Services continues to serv-
ice, administer and collect trade receivables on behalf of the com-
mercial paper issuer and ESFC. This two-step transaction is
accounted for as a sale of receivables following the provisions of
SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.”

During 2002, Energy Services sold $302.4 million of trade
receivables to ESFC of which ESFC sold an aggregate $34.0 mil-
lion to the commercial paper conduit. At September 30, 2002, no
receivables had been sold to the commercial paper conduit and
removed from the balance sheet. Losses on sales of receivables to
the commercial paper conduit that occurred during the year
ended September 30, 2002, which losses are included in other
income, net, were $0.1 million.

Note 16 – Provision for Shut-down Costs – Hearth USA™
In September 2001, after evaluating the prospects for Hearth
USA™ in light of the weak retail environment and the capital
required to expand beyond its two-store pilot phase, we committed
to close both of its stores and cease all operations by the end of
October 2001. Hearth USA™ sold, installed and serviced hearth,
grill and spa products and sold related accessories from two super-
stores located in Rockville, Maryland and Springfield, Virginia. As a
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result of this action, in September 2001 we recorded a pre-tax charge
of $8.5 million. The pre-tax charge reflects $3.7 million associated
with the impairment of leasehold improvements; $3.2 million for
estimated costs associated with lease guaranty arrangements and the
restoration of the leased facilities; $1.1 million associated with the
write-down of inventory to net realizable value; and $0.5 million
associated with vehicle lease, severance and other costs directly
resulting from the decision to close the stores. These charges and
accrued costs have been reflected in the 2001 Consolidated
Statement of Income as “Provision for shut-down costs – Hearth
USA™.” As of September 30, 2001, the $3.7 million of costs asso-
ciated with lease guaranty arrangements, the restoration of the leased
facility and the vehicle lease, severance and other costs is included in
other current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. At
September 30, 2002, all amounts had been settled. 

Note 17 – Other Income, Net
Other income, net, comprises the following:

2002 2001 2000

Interest and interest-related income $ (3.1) $ (6.7) $ (9.3)
Utility non-tariff service income (5.7) (5.4) (3.2)
Gain on sales of fixed assets (1.6) (2.4) (3.6)
Pension income (3.9) (5.9) (3.0)
Other (3.1) (2.6) (8.7)

Total other income, net $(17.4) $(23.0) $(27.8)

Note 18 – Subsequent Event
Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, the 9,891,072
Subordinated Units outstanding as of September 30, 2002, all of
which are held by the General Partner, were eligible to convert to
Common Units on the first day after the record date for any
quarter ending on or after March 31, 2000 in respect of which:

1. distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus (as
defined in the Partnership Agreement) equal or exceed the
MQD on each of the outstanding Common and
Subordinated units for each of the four consecutive
nonoverlapping four-quarter periods immediately preceding
such date,

2. the Adjusted Operating Surplus (as defined in the
Partnership Agreement) generated during both (i) each of
the two immediately preceding nonoverlapping four-quarter
periods and (ii) the immediately preceding sixteen-quarter
period, equals or exceeds the MQD on each of the
Common and Subordinated units outstanding during those
periods, and

3. there are no arrearages on the Common Units.
In December 2002, the General Partner determined that the

cash-based performance and distribution requirements had been
met in respect of the quarter ended September 30, 2002. As a
result, the remaining 9,891,072 Subordinated Units held by the
Company were converted to Common Units effective November

Note 14 continued
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18, 2002. Concurrent with the Subordinated Unit conversion, the
Company recorded an increase in common stockholders’ equity
and a decrease in minority interest of approximately $160 million
associated with gains from sales of Common Units by AmeriGas
Partners in conjunction with, and subsequent to, the Partnership’s
April 19, 1995 initial public offering in accordance with the guid-
ance in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 51, “Accounting for
Sales of Common Stock by a Subsidiary.” The gains result because
the public offering prices of the AmeriGas Partners Common
Units at the dates of their sales exceeded the associated carrying
amount of our investment in the Partnership. No deferred taxes
were recorded relating to this gain due to the Company’s intent to
hold its investment in the Partnership indefinitely. The changes to
the Company’s balance sheet resulting from the Subordinated
Unit conversion had no effect on the Company’s net income or
cash flow. The conversion of the Subordinated Units did not
result in an increase in the number of AmeriGas Partners limited
partner units outstanding.

Note 19 – Investments in Equity Investees
Our principal investments accounted for using the equity method
and our approximate ownership interest in each at September 30,
2002 and 2001 are as follows:
Company Percentage Ownership

Atlantic Energy 50.0%
AGZ Holdings 19.5%
China Gas Partners 50.0%
Hunlock Creek Energy Ventures 50.0%

Income (loss) from our equity investees comprises the following:
2002 2001 2000

Equity in income (loss) of equity investees $6.0 $(2.1) $(0.9)
Interest income on AGZ Bonds 0.9 0.5 –
Currency gain from redemption of AGZ Bonds 1.6 – –

Total $8.5 $(1.6) $(0.9)

Undistributed net earnings (loss) of our equity investees
included in consolidated retained earnings were $3.6 million and
$(2.3) million at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

On March 27, 2001, UGI France, Inc. (“UGI France”), a
wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Enterprises, together with
Paribas Affaires Industrielles (“PAI”) and Medit Mediterranea
GPL, S.r.L. (“Medit”), acquired, through AGZ Holdings
(“AGZ”), the stock and certain related assets of Elf Antargaz, S.A.,
one of the largest distributors of liquefied petroleum gas in France
(referred to after the transaction and herein as “Antargaz”). Prior
to the transaction, Antargaz was a subsidiary of Total Fina Elf
S.A., a French petroleum and chemical company. Under the terms
of the Shareholders’ Funding Agreement among UGI France, PAI
and Medit, we acquired an approximate 19.5% equity interest in
Antargaz; PAI an approximate 68.1% interest; Medit an approxi-
mate 9.7% interest; and certain members of management of
Antargaz an approximate 2.7% interest. PAI is a leading private

equity fund manager in Europe and an affiliate of BNP Paribas,
one of Europe’s largest commercial and investment banks. Medit
is a supplier of logistics services to the liquefied petroleum gas
industry in Europe, primarily Italy.

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Funding Agreement, on March
27, 2001, UGI France made a 29.8 million euro ($26.6 million
U.S. dollar equivalent) investment comprising a 9.8 million euro
investment in shares of AGZ and a 20.0 million euro investment
in redeemable bonds of AGZ (“AGZ Bonds”). In July 2002, the
Company received $19.3 million in cash from AGZ representing
repayment of 18 million euro face value (90%), $17.7 million
U.S. dollar equivalent, of the AGZ Bonds held by the Company,
plus accrued interest. This repayment was funded from the pro-
ceeds of an AGZ placement of high-yield debt. Concurrent with
the repayment, the remaining 2.0 million euro (10%) investment
in AGZ Bonds was redeemed in the form of additional shares of
AGZ. After these transactions, the Company continues to hold an
approximate 19.5% equity investment in shares of AGZ. As a
result of the redemption of AGZ Bonds, we recorded a pretax cur-
rency transaction gain of $1.6 million. Because we believe we have
significant influence over operating and financial policies of
Antargaz due, in part, to our membership on its Board of
Directors, our investment in AGZ shares is accounted for by the
equity method. 

Summarized financial information for AGZ follows:
2002 2001(a)

Statement of income data:
Revenues $ 550.6 $ 243.8

Operating income $ 79.4 $ 22.5
Interest, net (27.9) (13.9)

Income before income taxes $ 51.5 $ 8.6
Income taxes $ (20.7) $ (5.1)
Net income $ 29.9 $ 2.9

Balance sheet data (at September 30):
Current assets $ 171.5 $ 195.1
Property, plant and equipment, net 259.5 233.8
Goodwill 378.8 355.7
Other assets 116.7 93.3

Total assets $ 926.5 $ 877.9

Current liabilities $ 106.1 $ 123.4
Long-term debt 436.2 458.1
Other liabilities 292.0 248.3

Total liabilities $ 834.3 $ 829.8

Equity $ 92.2 $ 48.1

(a) Statement of income data is for the period March 27, 2001 to September
30, 2001. Summarized financial information for AGZ as of September 30, 2001
and for the period March 27, 2001 to September 30, 2001 was not required to
be disclosed previously, but is being presented for comparative purposes only.

Summarized financial information for our other equity
investments are not presented because they are not material to our
Consolidated Balance Sheets or Consolidated Statements of Income.
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The accounting policies of our reportable segments are the same as
those described in Note 1. We evaluate our AmeriGas Propane and
International Propane segments’ performance principally based upon
earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amorti-
zation, minority interests, income from equity investees and cumulative
effect of accounting changes (“EBITDA”). Although we use EBITDA
to evaluate segment performance, it should not be considered as an
alternative to cash flow (as a measure of liquidity or ability to service
debt obligations) and is not a measure of performance or financial con-
dition under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. The Company’s definition of EBITDA may be different from
that used by other companies. We evaluate the performance of our Gas
Utility, Electric Operations and Energy Services segments principally
based upon their earnings before income taxes.

No single customer represents more than ten percent of our
consolidated revenues and there are no significant intersegment
transactions. In addition, all of our reportable segments’ revenues,
other than those of our International Propane segment, are derived
from sources within the United States, and all of our reportable seg-
ments’ long-lived assets, other than those of our International
Propane segment, are located in the United States.
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Note 21 – Segment Information
We have organized our business units into five reportable segments
generally based upon products sold, geographic location (domestic
or international) or regulatory environment. Our reportable seg-
ments are: (1) AmeriGas Propane; (2) Gas Utility; (3) Electric
Operations, comprising Electric Utility and our electricity genera-
tion business; (4) Energy Services; and (5) an international
propane segment comprising FLAGA and our international
propane equity investments (“International Propane”).

AmeriGas Propane derives its revenues principally from the sale
of propane and related equipment and supplies to retail customers
from locations in 46 states. Gas Utility’s revenues are derived prin-
cipally from the sale and distribution of natural gas to customers in
eastern and southeastern Pennsylvania. Electric Operations derives
its revenues principally from the sale and distribution of electricity
in two northeastern Pennsylvania counties. Energy Services rev-
enues are derived from the sale of natural gas and, to a lesser
extent, electricity and fuel oil to customers located primarily in the
Middle Atlantic region. Our International Propane segment’s rev-
enues are derived principally from the distribution of propane to
retail customers in Austria, the Czech Republic and Slovakia.

Note 20 – Quarterly Data (Unaudited)
December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,

2001 2000 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002(a) 2001(b)

Revenues $ 619.4 $737.1 $ 764.0 $943.8 $446.3 $411.9 $384.0  $375.3 
Operating income (loss) $ 73.8 $ 92.2 $ 150.5 $143.9 $ 29.0 $ 8.4 $ (0.7)  $ (15.5)
Income (loss) from equity investees $ 3.8 $ (0.2) $ 3.7 $ (1.3) $ 0.7 $ – $ 0.3  $ (0.1)
Income (loss) before changes in accounting $ 24.1 $ 27.1 $ 54.0 $ 45.5 $ 4.0 $ (4.3) $ (6.6)  $ (16.3)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net (c) –  4.5 –  –   –   –   –  –   

Net income (loss) $ 24.1 $ 31.6 $ 54.0 $ 45.5 $ 4.0 $ (4.3) $ (6.6)  $ (16.3)

Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic:

Income (loss) before accounting changes $ 0.88 $ 1.00 $ 1.96 $ 1.68 $ 0.14 $ (0.16) $ (0.24)   $ (0.60)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net (c) –  0.17 –  –    –    –    –   –

Net income (loss) $ 0.88 $ 1.17 $ 1.96 $ 1.68 $ 0.14 $ (0.16) $( 0.24)   $ (0.60)

Diluted:
Income (loss) before accounting changes $ 0.87 $ 1.00 $ 1.92 $ 1.67 $ 0.14 $ (0.16) $( 0.24)   $ (0.60)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net (c) –  0.16 –  –    –   –   –   –   

Net income (loss) $ 0.87 $ 1.16 $ 1.92 $ 1.67 $ 0.14 $ (0.16) $( 0.24)   $ (0.60)

The quarterly data above includes all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments with the exception of those indicated below) that we consider
necessary for a fair presentation. Our quarterly results fluctuate because of the seasonal nature of our businesses.
(a) Includes euro currency transaction gain resulting from the redemption of AGZ Bonds which increased income from equity investees by $1.6 million and
decreased net loss by $1.1 million or $0.04 per share. 
(b) Includes shut-down costs associated with Hearth USA™ which increased operating loss by $8.5 million and net loss by $5.5 million or $0.20 per share. 
(c) Includes the impact of changes in accounting associated with (1) the Partnership’s changes in accounting for tank fee revenue and tank installation costs, and (2)
the Company’s adoption of SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”



Financial information by reportable business segment follows:
Reportable Segments

AmeriGas Gas Electric Energy International Corporate &
Total Eliminations Propane Utility Operations Services Propane Other

2002
Revenues $ 2,213.7 $ (2.0) $ 1,307.9 $ 404.5 $ 86.0 $ 332.3 $ 46.7 $ 38.3
EBITDA $ 346.1 $ – $ 210.7 $ 96.1 $ 16.4 $ 11.9 $ 7.1 $ 3.9
Depreciation and amortization (93.5) – (66.4) (19.0) (3.2) (0.8) (3.2) (0.9)

Operating income 252.6 – 144.3 77.1 13.2 11.1 3.9 3.0
Income (loss) from equity investees 8.5 – 0.3 – – – 8.3(a) (0.1)
Interest expense (109.1) – (87.8) (14.2) (2.4) – (4.2) (0.5)
Minority interest (28.0) – (28.0) – – – – –

Income before income taxes $ 124.0 $ – $ 28.8 $ 62.9 $ 10.8 $ 11.1 $ 8.0 $ 2.4
Total assets $ 2,614.4 $ (34.1) $ 1,492.2 $ 689.1 $109.0 $ 57.2 $ 141.1 $ 159.9
Capital expenditures $ 94.7 $ – $ 53.5 $ 31.0 $ 4.9 $ 0.9 $ 3.9 $ 0.5
Investments in equity investees $ 35.5 $ – $ 3.4 $ – $ 10.0 $ – $ 22.1 $ –
Goodwill and excess reorganization value $ 644.9 $ – $ 589.1 $ – $ – $ – $ 53.1 $ 2.7

2001
Revenues $ 2,468.1 $ (2.8) $ 1,418.4 $ 500.8 $ 83.9 $ 370.7 $ 50.9 $ 46.2
EBITDA $ 334.2 $ (0.4) $ 209.3 $ 108.0 $ 14.3 $ 7.6 $ 5.1 $ (9.7)(b)
Depreciation and amortization (105.2) – (75.5) (20.2) (3.6) (0.3) (4.3) (1.3)

Operating income (loss) 229.0 (0.4) 133.8 87.8 10.7 7.3 0.8 (11.0)
Loss from equity investees (1.6) – – – – – (1.5)(a) (0.1)
Interest expense (104.8) 0.4 (80.3) (16.3) (2.7) (0.4) (4.9) (0.6)
Minority interest (23.6) – (23.6) – – – – –

Income (loss) before income taxes $ 99.0 $ – $ 29.9 $ 71.5 $ 8.0 $ 6.9 $ (5.6) $ (11.7)
Total assets $ 2,550.2 $ (43.3) $ 1,522.3 $ 678.9 $105.5 $ 44.7 $ 141.2 $ 100.9
Capital expenditures $ 79.3 $ – $ 39.2(c) $ 31.8 $ 5.0 $ 0.2 $ 2.7 $ 0.4
Investments in equity investees $ 44.8 $ – $ 3.2 $ – $ 10.8 $ – $ 30.8(d) $ –
Goodwill and excess reorganization value $ 641.1 $ – $ 589.0 $ – $ – $ – $ 48.6 $ 3.5

2000 
Revenues $ 1,761.7 $ (3.1) $ 1,120.1 $ 359.0 $ 77.9 $ 146.9 $ 50.5 $ 10.4
EBITDA $ 289.6 $ – $ 158.6 $ 105.3 $ 19.6 $ 3.0 $ 2.8 $ 0.3
Depreciation and amortization (97.5) – (68.4) (19.1) (4.5) (0.2) (4.6) (0.7)

Operating income (loss) 192.1 – 90.2 86.2 15.1 2.8 (1.8) (0.4)
Loss from equity investees (0.9) – – – – – (0.9) –
Interest expense (98.5) – (74.7) (16.2) (2.2) – (4.8) (0.6)
Minority interest (6.3) – (6.3) – – – – –

Income (loss) before income taxes $ 86.4 $ – $ 9.2 $ 70.0 $ 12.9 $ 2.8 $ (7.5) $ (1.0)
Total assets $ 2,275.8 $ (19.0) $ 1,281.7 $ 653.7 $ 97.4 $ 36.2 $ 113.7 $ 112.1
Capital expenditures $ 71.0 $ – $ 30.4 $ 31.7 $ 4.7 $ 0.1 $ 1.8 $ 2.3
Investments in equity investees $ 5.5 $ – $ – $ – $ – $ – $ 5.5 $ –
Goodwill and excess reorganization value $ 668.1 $ – $ 615.7 $ – $ – $ – $ 47.6 $ 4.8

(a) In addition to equity income (loss) of international propane equity investees (1) 2002 amount includes a currency transaction gain of $1.6 million from the
redemption of AGZ Bonds and $0.9 million of interest income on AGZ Bonds and (2) 2001 amount includes $0.5 million of interest income on AGZ Bonds.
(b) Includes Hearth USA™ shut-down costs of $8.5 million.
(c) Includes capital leases of $1.3 million.
(d) Includes investment in AGZ Bonds of $18.2 million.

UGI Corporation 2002 Annual Report

51



Financial Statistics
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise)
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Year Ended 
September 30,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Income Statement Data
AmeriGas Propane revenues $1,307.9 $1,418.4 $ 1,120.1 $ 872.5 $ 914.4
UGI Utilities revenues 490.5 584.7 436.9 420.6 422.3
International Propane revenues 46.7 50.9 50.5 – –
Energy Services and other revenues 368.6 414.1 154.2 90.5 103.0

Total revenues $2,213.7 $2,468.1 $ 1,761.7 $1,383.6 $1,439.7
Income from continuing operations $ 75.5 $ 52.0 $ 44.7 $ 55.7(d) $ 40.3
Net income (loss) $ 75.5 $ 56.5(c) $ 44.7 $ 55.7(d) $ 40.3
Balance Sheet Data
Capitalization at period end:

Bank loans – AmeriGas Propane $ 10.0 $ – $ 30.0 $ 22.0 $ 10.0
Total long-term debt – AmeriGas Propane 945.8 1,005.9 857.2 744.7 709.0
Bank loans – UGI Utilities 37.2 57.8 100.4 87.4 68.4
Total long-term debt – UGI Utilities 248.4 208.4 172.9 180.0 187.2
Other bank loans and long-term debt 90.1 90.9 89.8 103.2 8.2

Total debt 1,331.5 1,363.0 1,250.3 1,137.3 982.8
Minority interests in AmeriGas Partners 276.0 246.2 177.1 209.9 236.5
UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0
Common stockholders’ equity 317.3 255.6 247.2 249.2 367.1

Total capitalization $1,944.8 $1,884.8 $ 1,694.6 $1,616.4 $1,606.4
Total assets $2,614.4 $2,550.2 $ 2,275.8 $2,140.5 $2,074.6
Common Stock Data
Shares outstanding – end of period (millions) 27.7 27.3 27.0 27.3 32.8
Average shares outstanding (millions) 27.6 27.2 27.2 32.0 33.0
Return on average common equity 26.4% 22.5% 18.0% 15.3% 10.8%
Per common share:

Earnings from continuing operations – diluted $ 2.70 $ 1.90 $ 1.64 $ 1.74(d) $ 1.22
Net earnings (loss) – diluted $ 2.70 $ 2.06(c) $ 1.64 $ 1.74(d) $ 1.22
Book value – end of period $ 11.45 $ 9.36 $ 9.15 $ 9.14 $ 11.18
Dividends declared $ 1.625 $ 1.575 $ 1.525 $ 1.47 $ 1.45
Annual dividend rate – end of period $ 1.65 $ 1.60 $ 1.55 $ 1.50 $ 1.46

Dividend yield – end of period 4.5% 5.9% 6.4% 6.5% 6.3%
Price range:

High $ 36.76 $ 29.480 $24.3125 $ 25.750 $ 30.125
Low $ 25.67 $ 21.375 $18.1875 $ 15.000 $ 20.500
Close $ 36.35 $ 27.100 $24.2500 $ 23.250 $ 23.125

Other Data
Investments and acquisitions, net $ 1.0 $ 241.7 $ 65.3 $ 82.5 $ 10.1
Capital expenditures $ 94.7 $ 79.3 $ 71.0 $ 73.7 $ 69.2

(a) Reflects amounts for the unaudited twelve-month period ended September 30, 1993.
(b) Reflects amounts for the nine-month transition period resulting from the Company’s change in fiscal year.
(c) Includes cumulative effect of accounting changes of $4.5 million or $0.16 per share associated with (1) the Partnership’s changes in accounting for tank fee revenue and

tank installation costs, and (2) the adoption of SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
(d) Includes net after-tax merger termination fee income from Unisource Worldwide, Inc. of $12.9 million or $0.40 per share.
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Nine Months
Year Ended Ended Year Ended

September 30, September 30, December 31,

1997 1996 1995 1994 1993(a) 1993(b) 1992

$ 1,077.8 $ 1,013.2 $ 511.7 $ 367.1 $ 376.4 $ 258.3 $ 358.3
461.2 460.5 357.4 395.1 354.4 251.2 349.8

– – – – – – –
103.0 83.9 8.5 – – – –

$ 1,642.0 $ 1,557.6 $ 877.6 $ 762.2 $ 730.8 $ 509.5 $ 708.1
$ 52.1 $ 39.5 $ 7.9 $ 37.4 $ 28.8 $ 12.6 $ 31.5
$ 52.1 $ 39.5 $ (8.4)(e) $ 45.0 $ 29.3 $ 12.6 $ 33.7

$ 28.0 $ 15.0 $ – $ – $ – $ – $ –
691.1 692.5 658.5 210.3 210.2 210.2 210.8
67.0 50.5 42.0 17.0 – – 36.3

169.3 174.8 206.3 175.6 200.4 200.4 153.7
8.6 9.0 9.3 9.6 9.9 9.9 –

964.0 941.8 916.1 412.5 420.5 420.5 400.8
266.5 284.4 318.9 – – – –
35.2 35.2 35.2 35.2 33.2 33.2 34.2

376.1 377.6 380.5 424.3 414.5 414.5 389.9
$ 1,641.8 $ 1,639.0 $1,650.7 $ 872.0 $ 868.2 $ 868.2 $ 824.9
$ 2,151.7 $ 2,133.0 $2,152.3 $1,182.2 $1,211.4 $1,211.4 $1,103.5

32.9 33.1 32.9 32.4 31.9 31.9 30.1
33.0 33.1 32.7 32.2 30.2 30.3 27.6
13.8% 10.4% (2.1)% 10.7% 7.3% N.M. 9.8%

$ 1.57 $ 1.19 $ 0.24 $ 1.16 $ 0.94 $ 0.41 $ 1.14
$ 1.57 $ 1.19 $ (0.26)(e) $ 1.39 $ 0.96 $ 0.41 $ 1.21
$ 11.45 $ 11.40 $ 11.56 $ 13.10 $ 12.98 $ 12.98 $ 12.95
$ 1.43 $ 1.41 $ 1.39 $ 1.36 $ 1.32 $ 0.995 $ 1.285
$ 1.44 $ 1.42 $ 1.40 $ 1.38 $ 1.34 $ 1.34 $ 1.30

5.2% 6.0% 6.8% 7.4% 5.5% 5.5% 5.4%

$ 28.000 $ 24.875 $ 22.125 $ 24.750 $ 25.625 $ 25.625 $ 24.500
$ 20.875 $ 19.750 $ 18.250 $ 17.375 $ 21.000 $ 21.875 $ 16.250
$ 27.625 $ 23.500 $ 20.625 $ 18.750 $ 24.375 $ 24.375 $ 24.250

$ 11.6 $ 29.0 $ 116.3 $ 12.5 $ 34.4 $ 32.1 $ 3.8
$ 68.8 $ 62.7 $ 68.8 $ 50.1 $ 54.5 $ 41.7 $ 43.9

(e) Includes extraordinary loss from debt restructuring and loss from cumulative effect of change in accounting for postemployment benefits of $13.2 million and $3.1 
million, or $0.40 and $0.10 per share, respectively.

N.M. – Not Meaningful.
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Year Ended 
September 30,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

AmeriGas Propane (c)
Retail sales – millions of gallons

Residential 388.2 334.6 308.3 318.3 317.5
Commercial/Industrial 351.6 306.6 284.3 285.3 287.3
Motor fuel 119.0 114.4 116.7 112.4 106.0
Agricultural 74.0 65.2 61.9 67.2 74.5

Total 932.8 820.8 771.2 783.2 785.3

Wholesale sales – millions of gallons 250.0 292.8 258.0 190.6 205.1
Total customers – January 1 1,317,678 990,363 992,563 988,265 980,814
Retail distribution locations 646 750 561 579 617
Degree days – percent of normal 90% 103% 86% 90% 91%
Number of employees 6,315 6,306 4,874 5,026 5,107
Property, plant and equipment, net (millions) $ 612.2 $ 628.6 $ 437.6 $ 437.7 $ 445.4 

Gas Utility
System throughput – millions of cubic feet

Residential – firm 16,848 20,197 18,447 17,442 16,612
Commercial – firm 10,114 12,292 10,894 10,506 10,247
Industrial – firm 1,282 1,687 1,565 1,759 3,099
Transportation – firm 18,031 18,989 20,796 21,175 20,366
Transportation – interruptible 23,748 23,508 27,167 24,308 23,243
Retail – interruptible 475 656 851 913 1,345

Total 70,498 77,329 79,720 76,103 74,912

Total customers 285,605 277,369 272,082 264,541 257,950
Miles of gas main 4,721 4,640 4,549 4,446 4,360
Degree days – percent of normal 83% 102% 90% 87% 84%
Number of employees 922 946 932 946 987
Property, plant and equipment, net (millions) $ 527.6 $ 514.1 $ 504.0 $ 491.2 $ 479.3

Electric Operations
Distribution system sales – thousands 
of kilowatt hours

Residential 482,921 491,652 465,006 469,061 455,575
Commercial 333,248 334,367 320,478 316,141 305,138
Industrial and other 117,373 119,445 121,710 115,199 115,694

Total 933,542 945,464 907,194 900,401 876,407

Total customers 61,531 61,357 61,244 60,954 60,724
Miles of line 2,122 2,112 2,092 2,086 2,083
Number of employees 175 180 188 192 194
Property, plant and equipment, net (millions) $ 65.5 $ 64.7 $ 66.0 $ 65.5 $ 64.6 

(a) Reflects amounts for the unaudited twelve-month period ended September 30, 1993.
(b) Reflects amounts for the nine-month transition period resulting from the Company’s change in fiscal year.
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Nine Months
Year Ended Ended Year Ended

September 30, September 30, December 31,

1997 1996 1995 1994 1993(a) 1993(b) 1992

330.4 358.4 313.5 343.9 166.1 121.5 139.9
297.8 314.8 293.0 296.2 138.4 108.1 106.4 
106.2 108.0 109.5 112.2 55.6 44.4 42.7
73.0 74.2 72.0 77.0 44.2 29.4 33.5

807.4 855.4 788.0 829.3 404.3 303.4 322.5

218.6 309.7 198.0 259.9 110.9 72.2 80.1
990,354 973,735 941,842 889,588 413,203 413,203 416,714

616 616 580 572 688 688 296
99% 102% 92% 99% – – –

5,131 5,071 5,052 4,914 5,055 5,055 2,229
$ 449.3 $ 457.4 $ 456.9 $ 475.0 $ 478.1 $ 478.1 $ 164.0

18,311 19,677 16,592 18,701 17,523 12,138 17,118
11,898 12,978 10,899 11,971 11,350 7,639 11,147
4,824 5,124 4,882 5,543 5,534 3,876 5,324

21,090 21,343 24,506 24,682 23,184 17,262 23,408
22,389 23,631 21,704 20,130 22,591 16,843 21,542
1,727 2,634 3,830 2,522 2,495 1,682 2,687

80,239 85,387 82,413 83,549 82,677 59,440 81,226

252,284 247,366 243,521 238,168 233,456 233,456 233,030
4,229 4,160 4,082 3,965 3,884 3,884 3,838

95% 104% 95% 111% 105% 105% 104%
1,028 1,016 1,045 1,040 1,026 1,026 1,023

$ 465.0 $ 445.0 $ 427.1 $ 397.3 $ 379.1 $ 379.1 $ 367.4

464,233 481,280 458,491 475,358 455,917 335,159 444,505
292,956 300,623 301,856 297,001 288,960 219,106 276,407
111,278 102,765 100,511 101,361 97,672 74,120 93,965

868,467 884,668 860,858 873,720 842,549 628,385 814,877

60,534 60,230 60,005 59,763 59,489 59,489 59,328
2,087 2,080 2,093 2,077 2,065 2,065 2,053

198 202 205 206 212 212 212
$ 63.4 $ 62.3 $ 60.7 $ 58.4 $ 55.5 $ 55.5 $ 53.4

(c) Includes data of equity investee Petrolane Incorporated (Petrolane) from July 16, 1993 through April 19, 1995 (the date the Company acquired the approximately 65%
of Petrolane it did not already own).
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Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m.
on Tuesday, February 25, 2003 in Ballrooms A and B of the
Desmond Hotel and Conference Center, One Liberty Boulevard,
Malvern, Pennsylvania.

Common Stock Data
The Company’s Common Stock is traded on the New York and
Philadelphia stock exchanges under the symbol UGI. Shareholders
of record numbered 10,235 on September 30, 2002 and common
shares outstanding totaled 27,701,730.

Dividends 
Dividends on UGI’s Common Stock have been paid without
interruption since 1885. During the 2002 fiscal year, quarterly
dividends were paid on the first days of October, January, April
and July.

Market Price of Common Stock and Dividends Paid
2002 Fiscal Year High Low Dividends

1st Quarter $31.53 $26.69 $.400

2nd Quarter 31.49 27.09 .400

3rd Quarter 33.21 29.40 .400

4th Quarter 36.76 25.67 .413

2001 Fiscal Year High Low Dividends

1st Quarter $26.31 $21.38 $.388

2nd Quarter 25.38 22.50 .388

3rd Quarter 27.90 24.20 .388

4th Quarter 29.48 25.12 .400

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Shareholder communications regarding transfer of shares, lost
certificates, lost dividend checks, or changes of address should be
directed to:

Mellon Investor Services LLC
Overpeck Centre
85 Challenger Road 
Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660
1-800-756-3353

Shareholders can also view real-time account information and
request transfer agent services online at the Mellon Investor
Services website: www.melloninvestor.com

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
UGI’s plan enables all shareholders to automatically purchase
shares of UGI Common Stock by reinvesting UGI Common
Stock and UGI Utilities Preferred Stock dividends. All such pur-
chases are without fees or commissions. The Plan also permits
participants to make monthly cash purchases of Common Stock,
up to $3,000 quarterly, with no brokers’ fees or commissions. For
information about the Plan, write or call:

Mellon Investor Services LLC
Investment Services
P.O. Box 3338 
South Hackensack, NJ 07606-1938
1-800-756-3353

Plan information is also available on the Mellon Investor Services
website: www.melloninvestor.com

Investor Relations
Securities analysts, portfolio managers and other members of the
professional investment community should direct inquiries about
the company to:

Robert W. Krick
Treasurer
UGI Corporation
P.O. Box 858
Valley Forge, PA 19482
1-610-337-1000

News, Earnings and Financial Reports
UGI has a toll-free, 24-hour, corporate news and investor infor-
mation service. By calling 1-800-UGI-9453, you can hear UGI
news on dividends, earnings and other matters and access other
shareholder services. You can also request copies of news releases
by fax or mail, and annual reports, annual reports on Form 10-K,
and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q by mail – all without charge.

Comprehensive news, webcast events and other information
about UGI and our majority-owned AmeriGas Partners, L.P. is
also available via the Internet at: www.ugicorp.com

You can also request all reports by writing to Robert W. Krick,
Treasurer, UGI Corporation at the address above.
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P.O. Box 858
Valley Forge, PA 19482

For More Information
You can obtain news and other information about

UGI and our majority-owned AmeriGas Partners, L.P.
24 hours a day at 1-800-UGI-9453 or www.ugicorp.com


